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CORPORATE PROFILE
AT

ABOUT RADIANCE

Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited (stock code: 9993.HK) is a
reputable large property developer with national presence, regional focus and
leading positions in select cities, and we focus on providing quality residential
properties to first-time homebuyers and first-time upgraders. With over 26
years’ experience, we have expanded our operations into eight regions with
strong growth potential in China, namely, the Yangtze River Delta, the Bohai
Economic Rim, Shenzhen/Huizhou, Southeastern China, Eastern China, Central
China, Southwestern China and Northwestern China.

In terms of comprehensive strengths, we were ranked as one of “China’s
Top 50 Real Estate Developers” (TH[El B i#h & (> 247 5 B150381) by the
China Real Estate Association ([l #1Z1#®) and the China Real Estate
Appraisal Center of Shanghai E-house China Research Institute (L85
& B 3 E R 3EB5%) for nine consecutive years since 2014 and was named
to the “Top 30 Chinese Real Estate Brand Value List” and “2022 TOP 30
Comprehensive Strength of Real Estate Listed Companies”.

RAMNEHE :

TEER (E®) BRAB BREMREE 1 9993.HK) B@— XK E2E
HmE BEFEE T BLEBESEN AR ERER
EINAERBEERE AN EARESRHEELANES
ME BRBE2CENEER  RMESEFBEEEDE/NK
KHREEAERYNES  OEE=ZA - BIE - FE R
B FEREFER AR KLALe

RIGAEN RMB0MFEERNFEPEEMER

BhtBZERMEMRFEREMERTHOTH
Bl fh EE (D AR B ATS0R) 5 W T 20220 B Bt

FREE3058) R M2002EME EHABGEE ITOP30E R
&

COMPANY MISSION

¥ fEm

3]

Build properties with craftsmanship and
make homes better.

ROREFE BREXRL

CORPORATE VALUES
B ES

Customer-first, the pursuit of excellence,
win-win cooperation, pragmatic and
responsible, positive-thinking and integrity
BERE— BRIW HBIEHLE
HBEES GG

2 &IBER (EE) BRAR 202658

CORPORATE VISION
EXESR

We endeavour to pursue better products

and services and aim to become a trusted

partner in quality benchmarking

BREFHERKRE AR ERN

mEBERTFEE



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Ting Keung (Chairman)

Mr. Lam Yu

Mr. Huang Junquan

Mr. Chen Chaorong (resigned on 25 March 2022)
Mr. Xu Xiaodong (appointed on 25 March 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Huagiao

Mr. Tse Yat Hong

Mr. Chung Chong Sun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chung Chong Sun (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Huagiao
Mr. Tse Yat Hong
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Mr. Zhang Huagiao (Chairman)

Mr. Tse Yat Hong
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Mr. Lam Yu (appointed on 25 Mach 2022)
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Mr. Lam Ting Keung (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Huagiao
Mr. Chung Chong Sun

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chiu Ngam (FHKICPA, AICPA)
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Mr. Chen Chaorong (resigned on 25 March 2022)
Mr. Xu Xiaodong (appointed on 25 March 2022)
Mr. Chiu Ngam

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, Oxford House

Taikoo Place,
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Quarry Bay,

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

Sidley Austin
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AFAEH

REGISTERED OFFICE

PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

42/F, Radiance Plaza
Qiyang Road
Wangjing
Chaoyang District
Beijing

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 6709, 67/F

The Center

99 Queen’s Road Central
Central

Hong Kong

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
Third Floor, Century Yard,

Cricket Square P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman

KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Agricultural Bank of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Bank of China

China Construction Bank

China Minsheng Bank

China Merchants Bank

China Everbright Bank

China Guangfa Bank

Industrial Bank

WEBSITE

http://www.radiance.com.cn

STOCK CODE
9993

4 HBER(GEE) BRAE  202FFR
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PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands
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Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
Third Floor, Century Yard,

Cricket Square P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman

KY1-1103

Cayman Islands
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MAJOR EVENTS OF RADIANCE

JANUARY 2022

On 19 January, the “13th Forum of House China and the Chinese Real
Estate Red List Ceremony 2021" hosted by House.china.com.cn was held
virtually online. The ceremony unveiled the “Chinese Real Estate Red List
2021", and Radiance Holdings was successfully listed in the “Enterprise with
Brand Influence “, which commended enterprises that promoted industry
development and established their own brands in the past year and made
outstanding cases, reviewed industry development and helped the industry
move forward.

MARCH 2022

On 14 March, Lianyungang Jinhui donated RMB300,000 to the Lianyungang
Red Cross to fight against the epidemic together with the city as a tribute.
With our presence and investment in Lianyungang for 11 years, the donation
is a reflection of the corporate mission and social responsibility of Radiance
Group.

On 29 March, the China Real Estate Association issued the 2022 “Top 500
Real Estate Developers in terms of Comprehensive Strength”. Radiance Group
ranked 38th and was named to the “2022 TOP 10 Real Estate Development
Enterprises — Business Performance” list.

On 31 March, in the “2022 China Top 100 Real Estate Developer Research
Results Conference” (2022F0 [ F= #h 2 H a8 1 2E B SR AL R EEMF D) 1 jointly
organised by the Tsinghua University Real Estate Research Institute (& ZE A2
E#h EHTZTFR) and China Index Academy (FF#58fF3EB5%) , Radiance Holdings
was awarded the “2022 China Top 100 Real Estate Enterprises TOP 50”, citing its
steady growth and annual results.

MAY 2022

On 26 May, Shanghai E-house China Research Institute (£ 5 ERB#
EHMIZEBT), and the China Real Estate Association jointly issued the latest
“Evaluation and Research Report on Real Estate Listed Companies in 2022"
Radiance Holdings gained growing recognition from the market and investors
for its superb market value management and steady development and
operation philosophy, and was named to the “2022 TOP 30 Comprehensive
Strength of Real Estate Listed Companies” list.

On 31 May, Radiance’s 2021 Sustainability Report was released. In the green
initiative and responsibility-themed report, Radiance showcased the action
items and achievements made in environmental protection, green operation,
product and service responsibility, employee training and development,
and social contribution, and disclosed data such as “Environmental Key
Performance Indicators’, “Resource Consumption Data Summary’, “Pollutant
and Exhaust Emission Targets” and “Customer Satisfaction’, showing Radiance’s
determination to build and implementation in the build of an ESG working
mechanism and fulfil its commitment to sustainable development.

THEAREL

2022 —H

TRBoB ARBEMEET RN IE+ZEtETEREE
2021 HR B 5 st AR AL 5 R B ) FEAR E BT > ARER IR T
M2021PEEMELASE) > SIEERA EE TmEZES
TEEE ) UBRERE—SFTHETEER ©XB5
MR MEHREEANEE  BRTEER NITE
AI{T °

2022 =H

B4R BEEEBSEBAEZBA+FERk308E v 828
H—EHRREE BB NE - FHEER+—F EM
BEGERT SEEBNCEEmETTSER-

3BOH  FEEMEERELEMONEMERZELEES
B ITOP500 B E ML 5E38% » T 2022 ERH & 1
AT EMTOP10 | R EFESE o

3A3HE BEEAREREMEN AN IS 2 b A 22
MW 200FEEETRPEMNERREMG > 8
ZEREFEEEBER BB NTEEMETRELHE
TOP50 ] ©

2022 HA

SH2B EEZERMEMRRMSREREMEEXG G
BT MBI 20202EE EHABRFRERS) SR
REERFINTEEE BRNEBRECEER EBDH
MEBEAN - KB 2002EME EHRABGREED
TOP30 ] °

S5A3E EIERER T2 EIFELERRS - REU
BE -EEAZN EBETNISETRERE KOE
E ERERBEC - RILZIERERE - HEEHREHIEN
TEHHERE WIRET TRIBAEEKIEE)  TERHEHR
BRHE TSR EBERMERE - TRRREE) S/
HiE BTRHSEZNBEESGTEEFIFROEAITH
B BITHAFEEENAE.
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MAJOR EVENTS OF RADIANCE
EHEAER

JUNE 2022

In June, the second round of Radiance Group’s “Wake Up of Sleeping Toys
Project” CILEEEZTEMBESTE]) 1> a toy donation tour connecting different
cities across China for over 20 days, was successfully completed. In this
event, Radiance Group once again joined hands with the Ma Wei Social Work
Development Center in Liangshan, Sichuan Province, so that more friends
and children, big or small, could actively participate in the charity event and
contribute to the children in Daliangshan. These newly donated toys will be
sent to 110 towers of “Jincai Educational Garden” (s ¥z &5 &) 1 to provide
continuous companionship to their childhood.

In June, Radiance Group donated RMB16 million to the Education Bureau
of Quanzhou Municipality to support the development of education in
Luojiang District and fulfil its corporate mission of “building properties with
craftsmanship and making better homes (AL BT FE > SBRERLT) 1 ©

JULY 2022

On 12 July, the TOP 500 of “Fortune China" 2022 was officially released,
and Radiance Holdings was ranked among the top 500 companies for
its consistent and excellent performance in the industry. Since its listing,
Radiance Holdings has continued to rank in the list, reflecting the recognition
of Radiance Holdings' comprehensive strength by authoritative international
institutions.

In the afternoon of 28 July 2022, the Inaugurating Meeting of the Beijing
Radiance Plaza Party Committee and Radiance Group Party Committee and
the Opening Ceremony of Radiance Plaza Party Service Centre (bR & 12
AEEZ - SBEREZRUASESBAEEHRD R OBBEI)
was held in Beijing Radiance Plaza. The establishment of the Party Committee
of Radiance Group will be a window for Radiance to learn the important
instructions of the Central Committee of the CPC. It is believed that all party
members of the Party Committee of Radiance Group will be a role model and
become a bridge between the Party and the masses.

AUGUST 2022

On 9 August, the “2022 Boao Real Estate Forum' (M202218 2 R i E:m18)
“hosted by www.guandian.cn released the “Influence Index — Prominent Real
Estate Enterprises 2022" Radiance Holdings was named a ‘“Influential Real
Estate Enterprise 2022" for its strength and steady development.

On 19 August, the "Annual Forum and Finance Night” hosted by Leju was
held in Hangzhou. Radiance Group was named a “2022 Quality Real Estate
Benchmark Enterprise” for its outstanding performance in the industry
during the year. The award focuses on the ability to build a quality real estate
enterprise, and is determined based on multiple criteria including customer
feedbacks, leadership, management system, improvement, and mutually
beneficial supplier relationship, highlighting the steady and diversified
development of Radiance.

6 SEZR(EE) BRAT  202FER

20224758

6B B EB INEAMEE I E_FERMNKEE
R0 X REEZEARTREETR T —HnANE 0 E
BT RS ERERBERFTM)IERLUBMRLTE
EBHRO BESHNARE NETBEHESEIQAmTIS
RRRUNEZFER—MEC  BLEMBENITARRE
FroEIERHEEE R MEZTFMHEENEMY-

oA EREERARMNTHBERBEBARE 60087 AR
XRNEDRIGHERENER BITROREFRE 2
KEZFINBED-

2022Ft A

7B128 20225 (8 E ) PRS00 FETIE E N 3R > SEE
B BREATENNFERFRITIEBHIS003R1EE - SHEITR
BEITREEEAFEESR RMHEREREEBEERE
RSB NNER o

20028788 T EREEAEES SEERESR
YARGETHEAEZHRBPORBENTIEREEKRE
BRERT - LEEFESZNET BASASESEEERR
EZETEHNED BEEBEZNE2BEI LR EE
SRR IER A BRRERETHEBRNME -

2022\ A

8HoH > BB B MMM 2002BEEMERIE AT
MORFXENIEBMERNBERR) - SIBEREED
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MEN TIEEEEREAFETTEANES KRR KB
MonFREMERELE ZREBEMECERE
BN REENBEREL ASER EEAREH
BRE-BEMHNESMASSAEETTIESH WESE
TERERESTHBNHOFES-



SEPTEMBER 2022

On 2 September, the 26th anniversary of Radiance Group, Radiance has
been continuously empowering a better life through four dimensions:
image revamp of Jin Xiao Rui (/1> a convenient service), content
and configuration upgrade of Jinhui Yansuan 3.0 (& #BEE%E3.0), quality
improvement of Radiance's themed activities, and the upgrade of
transportation and security services. Besides, the Company published the
main theme system of corporate culture of Jinhui 2.0 through all employees.
The new cultural concept carries the new understanding of Radiance on
the time and industry, gathers the new consensus of Radiance people on
corporate development, and will also bring more warmth and power to all
Radiance people. In the tide of the era, we will step further in better shape.

On 15 September, the delivery ceremony of Shishi Ninth Experimental Primary
School (AT 5 LE B/)V2) was held. Leaders of the Shishi government
and education bureau and representatives of Radiance Group gathered to
take urban education to the next level as a joint effort. The Shishi Ninth
Experimental Primary School was a municipal public experimental primary
school funded by Radiance Group and donated to the education bureau of
Shishi. The delivery is not only a reflection of Radiance Group's corporate
social responsibility, but also a demonstration of Radiance’s brand recognition.

OCTOBER 2022

On 27 October, the “2022 Research Report on Evaluation of Brand Value of Real
Estate Enterprises” issued by Shanghai E-house China Research Institute was
released. With its stable operation and excellent overall quality, Radiance was
named to the “Top 30 Chinese Real Estate Brand Value List” for five consecutive
years, and its brand influence has been recognised by the industry again.

NOVEMBER 2022

On 23 November, China Bond Investment Co., Ltd. issued a credit
enhancement letter to three private real estate enterprises, including
Radiance Group, under the policy framework of the private enterprise bond
financing support instrument (the “Second Arrow”) to support Radiance to
issue medium-term notes of RMB1.2 billion.

On 24 November, Industrial and Commercial Bank of China signed a strategic
cooperation agreement with 12 national real estate enterprises, including
Radiance Group, on a total-to-total basis to provide directional financing
with a total amount of RMB655 billion, bringing together bank-enterprise
cooperation to promote the stable and healthy development of the real estate
market.

MAJOR EVENTS OF RADIANCE
EHEAFER

2022 hB

oORE  EESBEMEST  TEBBIAME IS8
BRELEE I/ BT EAR - TEBEE NS R EE
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B-mHMmENBERNE FATEEELEREEHER
BEOMBBERN—FITEBALER/ NS ILRZNTER
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TIBRIR

2022+ A

108278 B EEZERMEMRREMRN( 20225 ER
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MAJOR EVENTS OF RADIANCE
EHEAER

DECEMBER 2022

In December, Radiance Group entered into comprehensive strategic
cooperation agreements with Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, China
Minsheng Bank and Postal Savings Bank of China, and obtained more than 30
billion bank-level strategic credit in total.

On 5 December, Radiance Holdings has completed the issuance of the first
tranche of the 2022 medium-term notes, with a principal amount of RMB1,200
million at a coupon rate of 4.00% and it is a three-year bond. The credit rating
of the issuer was AA+, and the credit rating of this tranche was AAA. The
medium-term notes were unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by
China Bond Insurance Co., Ltd. ("China Bond Insurance”) on a joint and several
basis. It was also the first medium-term notes issued by an AA+ entity in the
industry to be fully guaranteed by China Bond Insurance.

JANUARY 2023

On 4 January 2023, the “Signing Ceremony of the Bank-Enterprise Cooperation
Agreement” sponsored by Xi‘an Housing and Urban-Rural Development
Bureau to support the stable and healthy development of the real estate
industry was held, and Radiance Group signed a strategic agreement with
Shaanxi Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China and Shaanxi
Branch of China Construction Bank. Subject to the national macro policies,
regulatory requirements and credit system, the above banks will provide
financing facilities to Radiance High-quality Projects for supporting delivery
and new project loans.

In January 2023, Radiance Group entered into a strategic cooperation
agreement with the Fujian Branch of China Construction Bank, pursuant to
which, Radiance Group was granted an additional comprehensive credit
facility of RMB10 billion. Both parties will establish a long-term strategic
cooperation relationship and actively commit to constructive business
cooperation in the financial field. As of 19 January, Radiance Group has
successively entered into strategic cooperation agreements with the head
offices and provincial branches of major banks, including Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China, Agricultural Bank of China, Bank of China, China
Construction Bank, Postal Savings Bank of China, China Minsheng Bank and
Industrial Bank, and obtained credit facilities of more than RMB70 billion in
aggregate, which provided sufficient credit support for the operation of the
Company and demonstrated the recognition from financial institutions for the
steady development of Radiance Group.

8 &IFER (M) BRAE 202FFR

2022%F+_H

128 &BEELBEAEIHRT  PERERIT PE
BREHZRTEZE RHE 2EHBRERZE RAES
83002 AR 1T R B BRIR (5 -

12ASH EBERTHARETNFEFE —HPHAR
B BTHRERAREET REBRE > RENKR4.0%
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FREITREEEBERNPIAZES-

2023 —AH
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NEERE -HENEERNHERE -
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"2022 Notes”

F2022Z 4

“2023 Notes”

F2023Z 4

2023 AGM”

M03EREBERSG

"ABS”
MEERTET

"Articles”
TEF2 488

"ASP”
()

“Board”
===

"BVI"
IREELEHS]

“China”" or "PRC"
TR

“Company” or “our Company” or

“Radiance” or “Radiance Holdings"

NNl Al Al 2

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

HERIR R

"CG Code”

M &R

“Deed of Non-competition”

R 35 55 2245

GLOSSARY AND DEFINITION
s R R

the 10.5% senior notes due January 2022 in the aggregate principal amount of US$300 million
listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and issued by Radiance Capital
TRERBITR _ZE__F— B RS H4REE#300,000,0005 7519 10.5%E 5L B > W
FIRESTSAMAERAR LT

the 7.8% senior notes due September 2024 in the aggregate principal amount of US$300 million
listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and issued by Radiance Capital
TBEAETR S MHFNAFHAAREEEE300,000,000% TTHI7 8% E LRI > WA
MINKBHRZZABRAT L

the annual general meeting of the Company to be convened and held on 18 May 2023

FAABRR _ZE_=ZFa R+ N\AEBHAKBTHREAFARE

asset-backed securities

BEERMES

the amended and restated articles of association of the Company adopted on 29 October 2020

AT F20205E 10829 MBI 18] RS 5| 4R B =2 40

average selling price

FHEE

the board of Directors
58

the British Virgin Islands
ENe) kel

the People’s Republic of China
HREE AR HEME

Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited (E#B1Zf& ((£E) BRAE), a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability

TEEK (EE) ARAT —HERSEESEMMINEREERATR

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules and, unless the context requires
otherwise, collectively refers to Mr. Lam, Ms. Lam, Radiance Group Holdings and Glowing Shine
AR LTRIBTFZANEE RIEXESHEME SHRMEE ML eEERE
B& DU BUB B9 472 18

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

E AR SR OPR &R EE AT A

the deed of non-competition dated 13 October 2020 entered into by the Controlling
Shareholders with and in favor of the Company, further information of which is set out in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”in the Prospectus
ERRREAARRBMILLEUARTAHZm A > HEIA2020F108 138 B 55 F 245
BN IBRER AR R G —E
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GLOSSARY AND DEFINITION

ARk ER

"Directors”

===

"GFA"
e ER

“Glowing Shine”

TR

"Group,”"our Group, “we, “our” or "us”

SR Al

“Hong Kong dollars” or "HKS$"
=S|

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

MEII%=A]

“Listing”

F kg

“Listing Date”

FEmEH

“Listing Rules”
FEmRA

“Model Code”

“Mr. Lam”

ThRSE 4

“Ms. Lam”

ML)

10 &EZk EM) BRAE  202FFH

director(s) of the Company

TABES

gross floor area
MERmA

Glowing Shine Limited (Bif8HR/AE]), a company incorporated in the BVI with limited
liability, which is wholly owned by Radiance Group Holdings, and is one of the Controlling
Shareholders

MEBERAE —HERBRELHESMBRINERAR HEBEERAERE2ERE
W ARG ER 2 —

the Company and its subsidiaries

FABREMBAT

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

EBEEERET

an individual(s) or company(ies) who or which is/are to the best of our Director’s knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, is/are not our connected persons
as defined under the Listing Rules

BESKFEH— VS EBEETHBMAN BXREE TIFRMNBAEAL (EERE L™
HAD WALHRF

the listing of the Shares on the main board of the Stock Exchange on 29 October 2020
BB 1220208108298 TR Bk 2 PR =R £ 7

29 October 2020, the date on which dealings in the Shares on the Stock Exchange first
commence
2020108290 RN ERNEZFMEEE R

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

EBMARZAERABES EHRE

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules
T HRAIM SR EN LR EIT AESETRE S ZNERETA

Mr. Lam Ting Keung (#AE3&) , an executive Director and one of the Controlling Shareholders

MEREE > BEMANATESTRIERRRZ —

Ms. Lam Fung Ying (M JBL2%) , the spouse of Mr. Lam and one of the Controlling Shareholders
MBEZ L AMEENRBRIERKE —



"Over-allotment Option”

MEBRARCAR 1)

“Prospectus”
MERER]

“Radiance Capital

IEIEE A

“Radiance Group”

Mg @)

“Radiance Group Holdings”

M 13 5 AR

“Register of Members"

Mg

“Renminbi” or "RMB"
TAER

“SFO”
585 K B S 1R B

“Share(s)”
TRE15 ]

“Share Option Scheme”
TR RESTEI)

“Shareholder(s)"
TR,

“sq.m”

75Ky

“Stock Exchange”
T2 Ffr )
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GLOSSARY AND DEFINITION
AEKRER

the option which had been exercised on 25 November 2020 by the Joint Global Coordinators
(for themselves on behalf of the International Underwriters) in respect of an aggregate
of 45,227,000 Over-allotment Shares, under the International Underwriting Agreement as
described in Prospectus

BE2KBEAAN BEAIRARBERCHED) REBRERMANEKRSH B ER
2020511825 A Bt & 345,227,000/ B EREC A& & 1D 1T B RO BB PR 12

the prospectus of the Company dated 16 October 2020 being issued in connection with the
Listing
A B R LTI H#A%R2020F108 16 BB ER

Radiance Capital Investments Limited (& AKX EHRAT]), a company incorporated in
the BVl and an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
TREALERRAR —HEEBHEMRFEERIINAE UAKXATZHEIFEE
M &8 A B)

Radiance Group Co., Ltd. (ZBEERMDBIRAF), a company incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China and an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
TREERNERAE —BEFREMRINBRAT UARABZEZEIFEZENBEA
S|

Radiance Group Holdings Limited (2 &£ @IERRBPRAF]), a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability which is owned as to 64.97% by
Mr. Lam and 35.03% by Ms. Lam, and one of the Controlling Shareholders
TERERMERARAR —HEHSHEFMMINERRERAE  DAHEMEE R
MZ T HEH64.97%5235.03% > Wi AFERIRER > —

the register of members of the Company

RABBIRERBLM

the lawful currency of the PRC

PENEEERS

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BREOIE71 BB H RIS HRA

ordinary share(s) in the capital of the Company with the nominal value of HK$0.01 each

KABRAFERE(EOEITAEER

the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 5 October 2020
AR FHR20205F 1085 B RN BB RS RE 5T 21

holder(s) of the Shares
[EELEST=DN

square meter(s)

FK

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EBMERXZMARRE

U.S. dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

EXEZEEE®ET
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRBE

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

| am pleased to present to all shareholders of Radiance Holdings (the
“Shareholders”) the annual results and business review for the year ended 31
December 2022 as well as the prospects for 2023 of Radiance Holdings.

ANNUAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue of the Group amounted
to RMB35,318.0 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 11.8% as
compared to the corresponding period of last year. Gross profit amounted to
RMB5,179.5 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately
33.1% as compared to the corresponding period of last year. Profit attributable
to the owners of the Company was RMB1,705.0 million, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 47.9% as compared to the corresponding period of last
year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Eased policies with continuous market adjustment

Looking back at 2022, due to the repeated outbreaks of the pandemic in
many places, the demand for housing was weakened, and the real estate
market was operating at a low level due to the impact of various factors. The
challenges faced by the real estate industry were unprecedented, and the
overall situation was relatively sluggish. Since the beginning of 2022, despite
the continuously optimised regulatory policies and credit environment, the
effect of the policies was not obvious, and the real estate market remained to
be subject to deep adjustments.

In 2022, the floor area sold of commercial properties nationwide was 1.36
billion square meters (“sq.m.”), representing a decrease of 24.3% over last year,
of which the floor area sold of residential properties decreased by 26.8%. The
sales of commercial properties amounted to RMB13.3 trillion, representing a
decrease of 26.7% over last year, of which the sales of residential properties
decreased by 28.3%.

In addition, real estate enterprises suffered from the slowdown of capital
recovery and the tightened financing environment, the increasing risks of
debt default. In order to solve the financing difficulties faced by real estate
enterprises, the central government has adopted a combination of policies,
known as the “three-arrow” policy, on the three major financing channels,
namely credit support, bond financing and equity financing, to support real
estate enterprises to broaden their financing channels and address their
financing difficulties. In addition, with the concerted efforts of financial
institutions, shareholders and regulatory authorities, a large amount of
funds was input to real estate projects and real estate enterprises through
different channels. The “three-arrow” policy is gradually improving the external
financing environment of real estate enterprises, and also directly supports to
ensure the delivery of properties, thereby boosting market confidence.
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Steadily moving forward and strict performance of
contracts

In response to the severe market changes, the Group has reinforced its
development strategy of maintaining a stable financial structure. By actively
responding to policy changes, focusing on sales, promoting payment
collection and controlling costs, the Group continued to promote the
reduction of financial leverage, adjust debt structure and control liquidity risk,
thereby maintaining a stable financial position with remarkable results.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had a debt balance of
RMB37,815.8 million, representing a decrease of 28.4% from RMB52,794.2
million as at 31 December 2021. The Group's weighted average cost of debt
further decreased to 6.22%, representing a decrease of 0.36 percentage-point
as compared to that of 6.58% for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Moreover, the Group completed the repurchase and payment of principal and
interest of several domestic and overseas bonds and notes in 2022, strictly
fulfilling its repayment obligations and safeguarded the rights and interests of
the investors.

Receiving numerous industry awards for high-quality
development

Radiance Holdings ranked 38th in the “Top 500 Real Estate Developers in
terms of Comprehensive Strength” jointly released by China Real Estate
Association and Shanghai E-House China Research Institute in 2022. In
addition, the Company won a number of awards such as being included in
the "List of Brand Influential Enterprise’, the “Best Practicing Enterprise in ESG
Social Responsibility for the Year’, the “Influential Real Estate Enterprise for the
Year’, the “Real Estate Benchmark Enterprise in Term of Quality for the Year”,
and was awarded the “Fortune China Top 500 for 2022"

Adhering to the product concept of “crafting a sense of craftsmanship and
building a home with utmost care’, the Group continued to carry out product
research and development in 2022, and won a number of design awards
at home and abroad, including the “Innovation Design Award in Space
Category”and the “U.S. TITAN Real Estate Award (Platinum Award)".

Consolidating the brand of “Jinhui Yanxuan” with a
customer-oriented approach

In 2022, with a customer-oriented approach, the Company continued to
consolidate the brand of “Jinhui Yanxuan” and completed 7 iterations of
research and development achievements, including “Yanxuan Living Room’,
“Yanxuan Landscapes” and “"Yanxuan Space’, accomplishing 71 achievements
and sorting out 396 product standards in 101 projects nationwide. It won 17
domestic and foreign product design awards, including the “MUSE Design
Award in the United States” and the "AHLA Asian Habitat Design Award”. In
addition, in 2022, we focused on the “cost reduction without compromising
quality” action for our products, whereby we exercised control over costs
while ensuring product power and customer value, so as to maximise project
profits and Shareholder returns.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ER®BE
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Optimising organisation and promoting high-quality
corporate development

In order to adapt itself to the development and changes of the industry, meet
customers’ needs for product and service quality improvement and support
the Group's future strategic direction, in terms of organisational management,
the Group re-planned the organisational management mechanism by
optimising its organisational structure, simplifying its management path
and reconstructing its organisational role. In terms of corporate culture
management, the Group organised the iterative upgrade of the corporate
culture system. Adhering to the corporate mission of “build properties with
craftsmanship and make better homes (BDOEFRE ' :BHREEL)" the
corporate vision has been updated to pursue better products and services,
become a reliable benchmark enterprise of quality, put forward the core
values of customer first, strive to promote high-quality development, win-win
cooperation, pragmatism and integrity as well as the corresponding code of
conduct for managers, and promote high-quality development.

Adhering to Original Commitments and Promoting the
Sustainable Development of Public Welfare

The Group has always adhered to practising corporate social responsibility. In
May 2022, the Group issued the 2021 Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report. The Group recognises that business activities are closely
related to the society. Therefore, the Group actively incorporates ESG factors
into all aspects of corporate operation and management, consolidates
and drives the sustainable development of the Group, and reduces the
impact of business on the environment. While striving to improve business
performance and steady development, the Group will continue to optimise
the management of projects in terms of working environment quality,
environmental protection, humanities and social responsibility, and strive
to maintain communication with stakeholders, identify material issues of
the Group, and endeavours to align with the priorities of global sustainable
development. The Group fulfils our commitment to sustainable development
by constructing an ESG working mechanism.

As an enterprise full of sense of social responsibility, the Group always bears
in mind its corporate social responsibility and actively participates in public
welfare and charity activities such as poverty alleviation, education support,
charity donation and disaster relief.

In May 2022, Radiance once again joined hands with the Mawei Social
Work Development Centre in Liangshan, Sichuan Province to carry out the
second season of the “Wake Up of Sleeping Toys Project (370 BE It B M2 B2 51
%) "in more than 10 cities including Wuxi, Quanzhou, Shaoxing, Zhengzhou,
Shijiazhuang and Hefei, continuing the previous toy donations to provide
practical help and care for children in Daliangshan and help them grow
healthily and happily.
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In June 2022, the Group donated RMB16 million to Quanzhou Municipal
Education Bureau to support and help the development of education in
Luojiang District and to fulfil its corporate mission of “build properties with
craftsmanship and make better homes (FBI0VE TR > SER B =) "

Looking ahead, the Group will stick to our original commitment, and
continue to contribute to the development of education, science, culture,
health, sports, overseas Chinese affairs and international exchanges, striving
to become an important participant, promoter and contributor to the
development of social charity and public welfare.

PROSPECTS FOR 2023

Looking forward to 2023, under the keynote of “houses are for living in, not for
speculation’, the policy will still focus on stabilising housing price. There is still
room for optimising policies for both supply side and demand side, especially
for the demand-side policy. Real estate enterprises will still face high cash
flow pressure, and policy care is still needed to boost market confidence.
Regarding the trend of real estate policy in 2023, the demand-side policy will
be further strengthened. There is room for policy optimisation in core first-
tier and second-tier cities, especially in core second-tier cities, where there is
huge room for policy optimisation. We will continue to optimise the policy of
“recognizing both properties and loans” and adjust the purchase restriction
policy to further support the release of rigid demand and improved housing
demand. The reasonable financing demand at enterprise side will continue to
be supported, and the financing chain of real estate enterprises is expected to
be further smoothened. In addition, the capital level of enterprises is expected
to be improved, and the relevant funds of the “three-arrow” policy will be
provided in an accelerated manner.

“Ensuring the delivery of properties” will remain the focal point, and the
accelerated provision of special borrowings from policy banks and supporting
financing from financial institutions is expected to make more substantial
progress.

Although the challenging yet impressive year of 2022 has passed, the
Group remains confident in the future development of the industry and the
Company. In 2023, the Group will continue to strengthen its team building
and strive to cultivate a more competitive, more efficient and pragmatic
team in the next two to three years. It will develop a deep understanding
of changes in the industry, improve its operation awareness, develop its
determination and ability to solve problems, dare to take responsibility, stay
diligent and dedicated, continue to improve professional capabilities and
standards, enhance its management level and develop the awareness of
innovation. In the spirit of team work, we will be able to complement each
other and improve communications. we will insist on integrity and self-
discipline, and will strictly abide by professional ethics and moral bottom line.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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In 2023, we will continue to focus on customer sensitive points and improve
product quality. We plan to iterate 9 innovative research and development
achievements and implement 63 achievements, and will continue to promote

the physical sample display of the Yanxuan Workshop on an “as is where is"

basis.

In terms of operation, in 2023, we will safeguard the selling prices, strictly
control costs, pay attention to operation quality and improve refined
management level and operating efficiency, thereby smoothly passing
through 2023.

The Group will will continue to keep abreast with the trend of the times and
the pace of urban development, to create ideal quality residential properties
with high quality development and artisanal design concepts to empower the
city and brighten up a better life.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express the most sincere appreciation
to all shareholders, investors, business partners and customers for their
supports to, and trust in, the Company, and all members of the management
team and all employees for their dedication and hard work in the preceding
year. In 2023, we will continue to uphold the corporate mission of “"build
properties with craftsmanship and make better homes (RO IF = > 5B
EEUF) " to further achieve quality and sustainable development. We will
stick to our original commitment and move forward with perseverance for the
purpose of creating higher value for the Shareholders and investors.

Lam Ting Keung
Chairman

16 @R (M) BRAE  202F5K

TET-FRBZENERYEM AHMERES 53R
Hb 25 B SR IE ALOTE N SR Hhe3TA ﬁ@a%&)‘;z EIHEER
RET > &R REIFTS

ERERH S FTEHEER BEREENE B
AREEE BEABMICEERKTNEEND  FTREB
7%7:55’50

AERRBESZREFSANARERTERS O USEEH
EB-EOoRES HEEEREANE AEHEE s
ES e

g

T RAERRESZGEC MABERR -REE - SF
BHEERERPHARBDNIFHEGE 2REERBEN28
EITEBE—FNFHHHEE S RnsmB2ORH -
TEC-H HMABEERATRELORTER BREXFIN
TEEm E—FERaRE IHENER FT0
MRERATTT > AREMNREERIEEANEE.

ZiE
HER



PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
RGEE

As of 31 December

HE+-HB=+—H

Highlights of financial information

Recognised revenue (RMB'000)

Gross profit (RMB'000)

Profit attributable to the owners of the
Company

Core net profit (RMB'000)

Gross profit margin (%)

Net profit margin (%)

Core net profit margin (%) @

Earnings per Share (basic and diluted)
(RMB cents)

Total assets (RMB'000)

Cash and bank balances (RMB'000)

Total indebtedness (RMB'000) @

Net indebtedness (RMB'000) “

Equity attributable to owners of
the parent company (RMB'000)

Current ratio (times) ©

Weighted average cost of indebtedness (%) ©

Net gearing ratio (%)
Cash to current borrowings ratio ©

Liability asset ratio after excluding receipts

in advance (%) ©

Change in
2021 percentage
TET—F Bt EEE
BHEENBE
BEEBWA (ARETFT) 35,318,003 40,025,826 -11.8%
EFH (ANBEETF ) 5,179,484 7,747 451 -33.1%
RABIEB AFESEFE
1,705,026 3,274,774 —47.9%
ZOEFE (AREFTO 1,435,272 3,155,426 ~54.5%
FEFIZE (%) 14.7% 19.4%
TFEHMZE (%) 5.9% 9.2%
TZ00F F T = (%) 4.1% 7.9%
BREF EAREH)
(NEHD) 42 81
BEEHEE (ARETIT) 161,675,553 191,647,312 -15.6%
BERIBTHER (AREFTT 12,319,530 19,728,486 ~37.6%
BEHEE (ARETTO 37,815,752 52,794,206 -28.4%
FaEE (ARBTTY 25,496,222 33,065,720 -23.0%
BABEB AEGHER
(NRH#F ) 24,534,167 23,637,200 +3.8%
TRENLEE (%) © 1.3 14
NI BT AR 2R (%)© 6.22% 6.58%
FEEZE %) 71.7% 88.0%
IBEIEELE® 1.0 12
A RFEWRRIEERD
BEEBEE%)" 65.2% 68.5%
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
RETHE

Notes:

Core net profit is profit for the period excluding changes of fair value of
investment properties and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and gain on disposal of subsidiaries and associates, net of related deferred
tax.

Core net profit margin is core net profit divided by revenue and multiplied by
100%.

Total indebtedness represents total interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, proceeds from asset-backed securities, corporate banks and
senior notes.

Net indebtedness is calculated by total borrowings (including current and
long-term interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, current and long-
term proceeds from asset-backed securities, current and long-term senior
notes as well as current and long-term corporate bonds) minus cash and bank
balances (including restricted cash, pledged deposits as well as cash and cash
equivalents).

Current ratio is calculated based on total current assets divided by total
current liabilities as of the respective dates.

Weighted average cost of indebtedness represents the weighted average of
interest costs of all outstanding indebtedness.

Net gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings (including current
and long-term interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, current and long-
term proceeds from asset-backed securities, current and long-term senior
notes as well as current and long-term corporate bonds) minus cash and bank
balances (including restricted cash, pledged deposits as well as cash and cash
equivalents) by total equity.

Cash to current borrowings ratio is calculated by dividing cash and bank
balances (including restricted cash, pledged deposits as well as cash and cash
equivalents) by current borrowings (including current interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings, current proceeds from asset-backed securities, current
senior notes and current corporate bonds).

Liability asset ratio after excluding receipts in advance is calculated by
dividing total liabilities minus contract liabilities by total assets minus
contract liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND SALES

We focus on suitable locations in selected cities in eight major regions
of Yangtze River Delta, the Bohai Economic Rim, Southeastern China,
Eastern China, Central China, Southwestern China, Northwestern China and
Shenzhen/Huizhou. The table below sets forth our revenue generated from
each region, total gross floor area ("GFA”") delivered in each region and the
respective recognised average selling price ("“ASP") per square meter (“sq.m.”)
for each region for the periods indicated:

ERE mRA

MERBERHEE

RAPAFEEINER=ZA - BYE - RE ER - FER -AE A
ERARBENREHEERTNEEMUE - FRETFIE
BRMEELENRA SR ERNEEREE (MEER
7)) UhEMEEBMENERRE T K (F5K) B
FHEE (PEE) :

Year ended 31 December

HE+T-A=+-HILEE

2022 2021
ok Jonfen s
GFA Recognised GFA  Recognised
LEE Delivered ASP Revenue Delivered ASP
Bxf B2 BX B
A BERE THEE A BEEE THEER
RMB’000 sg.m. RMB/sq.m. RMB'000 % sqm.  RMB/sq.m
ARERT/ ARERT/
ANRET EHR Frk INEE % THK EAHK
Yangtze River Delta E=A 8,408,202 24.1 439,914 19,113 3,606,905 9.1 149,718 24,091
Northwestern China il 5,560,144 15.9 361,056 15,400 11,453,881 290 846,180 13,536
Southwestern China i 4,266,348 123 296,578 14,385 4,817,539 122 430,953 11,179
Southeastern China 1] 4,163,374 11.9 363,311 11,460 3,971,017 100 276,899 14,341
Central China Zrh 3,892,016 1.1 383,073 10,160 7,034,127 1738 587,083 11,981
Eastern China EH 3,522,967 10.1 354,541 9,937 4,556,151 16 497,871 9,151
Bohai Economic Rim BiE 3,022,301 8.7 267,190 11,311 3,284,603 83 259,861 12,640
Shenzhen/Huizhou RE 2,071,352 5.9 120,241 17,227 797,328 20 70,171 11,363
Total st 34,906,704 100.0  2,585.904 13,499 39,521,551 1000 3118736 12,672
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWME

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 26 investment properties with a total
GFA of approximately 1,864,880 sg.m., and one investment property held for
future development with a total GFA of 69,530 sg.m.

PROJECTS UNDER CONSTRUCTION

As at 31 December 2022, the total planned GFA of the Group's projects under
construction was 16,104,002 sg.m., representing a decrease of approximately
18.3% compared to the total planned GFA of 19,719,260 sgq.m. as at 31
December 2021.

RIBZ_HF+-RA=+—H aEEKH20EREY
o RBREEMN 71,864,880 5K WA —BRIFIERR
FENREYE LB EEE 269,530 5 K e

£21EH
BE_ S+ _A=+—H AXEEEEEENTE
MIEEMEBEA16,1040RF A K REE_T_—F+_

B=1+—HBEEREmMES9,719,260F 75 K&
18.3%°
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE R RO

T
BE-S-_F+-A=+-AL AEETHEER

BEMBREGHEREBDBE D NGA25952,144F F KK
20,666,751 F3 5K ©

LAND BANK

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s land bank GFA and total land bank GFA
attributable to the Group were approximately 25,952,144 sq.m. and 20,666,751
sg.m., respectively.

TREJN _Z__F+_A=+—HEEEWREAS
BECERBEABME R EEM M FHFHREME :

The table below sets forth the breakdown of the total land bank of the
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate companies of the Group as at 31
December 2022:

Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage of Completion Gross Land Bank  Interests Held
Region Project Projects Year Site Area Area by the Group
‘ B Hit HiGE  AEERE
e HE HEXERABE BITER Gt E R b= PG e
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAR) (FAR) (%)
Properties developed by the Group and its subsidiaries
FEEREMBARRENYE
Southwestern China
Chongging Tianchen Elite's Mansion Residential/commercial 2022 52,683 14,904 49.0%
EF RREE tE/BE
Chongging Jiangshan Elite’'s Mansion/ Residential/commercial 2021 69,489 172,437 57.6%
Lanyin World
E:] TWEE ERXM TE/HE
Chongging Zhongyang King's Garden Residential/commercial 2019-2022 157,925 17,712 96.0%
EF hREEE tE/BE
Chongging Yujiang House Residential/commercial 2020 77,342 20,230 96.0%
EL 4 IR TE/HE
Chongging Boshe Residential/commercial 2020 52,086 24,775 96.0%
EF aE tE/BE
Chongging Changjiang King's Garden Residential/commercial 2020 59,031 18,862 96.0%
EL 4 RII8E TE/HE
Chongging Jinhui City Phase IV Residential/commercial 2018 135452 76,960 96.0%
EE EIEEIIEA tE/BE
Chongging Jinhui City Phase V Office building/commercial 2023 9,932 71,235 96.0%
EL 4 iy b 1 mae/ mx
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE® RO

Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage of Completion Gross Land Bank  Interests Held
Region Project Projects Year Site Area Area by the Group
. 'R FEs T FERBF
& EH HEXERAAE BIER fEER mRast FE(L RS
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FHK) (FFHK) (%)
Southwestern China (Continued)
7 (&)
Chongging Binjiang Complex Commercial 2022 12,738 18,522 96.0%
] BILRS SES
Chongging Jinhui Plaza Commercial 2015 28,229 123,801 96.0%
EL 4 EES HES
Chongging Jinhui Elite’'s Mansion Residential 2022 25,896 15,549 96.0%
EF NHEEIR =
Chongging Caihu Yunjing Residential 2024 44,496 65,557 96.0%
BB FHER Tt
Chongging Tanzikou Residential 2023 25,006 87,556 96.0%
EF #r0 =
Chongging Hushan Elite’s Mansion Phase | Residential/commercial 2023 105,693 153617 48.0%
BB MUEE—H T/ BE
Chongging Hushan Elite's Mansion Phase Il Residential/commercial 2024 67,358 150,713 48.0%
] MLEZE "M T/ BHE
Chengdu Jinhui New Block Garden Residential/commercial 2021 41112 8,064 96.0%
AR TIRESTEE T/ BE
Chengdu Fenggi Yunjing Residential 2023 46,094 121416 96.0%
% BREER F=
Subtota\‘ of Southwestern China region 1,261,910
/st
Subtotal of interests in Southwestern China region 992,129

P /) st
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

242A
BIEEN R ROWN
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage of Completion Gross Land Bank  Interests Held
Region Project Projects Year Site Area Area by the Group
. BTt T FEEME
& 1HH EEHIERIAR BTEH EtER mESE FEfLtE
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAK) (FAK) (%)
Central China
g
Wuhan Jinhui City Residential/commercial 2026 188,736 601,832 96.0%
HE EIE [EP
Wuhan Jiangyue Elite's Mansion Residential/commercial 2024 128,280 339,996 38.4%
g THEE [EP S
Wuhan Jiangshan Elite's Mansion Residential/commercial 2023 151,926 835,794 62.4%
HE IWEE [EP
Wuhan New Elock Lakeside Residential/commercial 2020 69,985 26,351 96.0%
g BF M [EP
Xiangyang Xiangyang New Block Academy Residential/commercial 2025 172,060 418,690 72.0%
1 BRES 2 T, e
Changsha Hongtao Jade Bay Phase | Residential 2018 22,771 4433 96.0%
= BEHRE—B *E
Changsha Hongtao Jade Bay Phase Il Residential/commercial 2022 37,374 16,413 96.0%
=8 BEERECH [EP
Changsha Xingyu Academy Residential/commercial 2023 105,625 295,372 96.0%
=0 REEM T/ BE
Changsha Xingyue Yundi Residential/commercial 2023 115,142 247,570 96.0%
=8 EHMZp [EP
Hefei Land parcel 06, Hefei New Station Residential/commercial 2023 61,928 174,118 96.0%
Gl AL 06k 1R [EP
Hefei New Block Academy Residential/commercial 2021 100,289 8,198 67.2%
& BT ERN [EP E
Hefei Cloudworld Garden Residential 2020 16,262 7,634 96.0%
aE ERTEE £
Hefei Xin'an Garden Residential/commercial 2021 34,505 3,723 96.0%
ae MLZEE [EP E
Hefei Xin'an Yayuan Residential/commercial 2023 64,532 177,111 96.0%
aiE kg2 [EP
Hefei Xizi Garden Residential 2021 104,760 3,580 22.1%
ae AFIEE (G
Hefei Yunman Xijing Residential/commercial 2024 60,128 152,107 96.0%
aiE RERIE s/ H%
Subtota\‘ of Central China region 3,312,922
E/)st
Subtotal of interests in Central China region 2,598,248

bl ot
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Region

Ul

Bohai Economic Rim
RS
Beijing
IR
Beijing
IR
Tianjin
PN
Tianjin
xiE
Tianjin
PN
Tianjin
xiE
Tianjin
PN
Tianjin
xiE
Tianjin
PN
Langfang
e
Shijiazhuang
AR

Shijiazhuang

AR

Project

EH

Chaoyang Port No.1 Block
GO =150

Radiance Plaza

TIERE

Xueshi Garden
EHTEE

Yunqi Garden
ZRTER

Yunhui Garden
EETEE

Yunque Garden

EMTtE

Hu'an Garden
WETEE

Yuncui Gardan
EETEE

Mingzhu Garden
HETEE
New Block Riverside Garden

B KETEE

New Block Star

BYER

Jinhui Elite’s Mansion
SREZE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREFA®mRD

Actual/
Estimated
Main Planned Usage of Completion
Projects Year
\ £ /Bt
EEHIERIAR BTEH
Office building 2022
EIYN
Office building/commercial 2016
YN Y- ES
Residential/commercial 2022
5/ ¥
Residential/commercial 2023
s/ H%
Residential/commercial 2022
5/ ¥
Residential/commercial 2022
s/ H%
Residential/commercial 2021
5/ ¥
Residential/commercial 2021
s/ H%
Residential/commercial 2025
5/ ¥
Residential/commercial 2024
s/ H%
Residential/commercial 2022
5/ ¥
Residential/commercial 2020
s/ H%

Site Area

EMEE

(sq.m)

(5K

73,891

11,423

80,124

40,442

36,586

42,078

98,930

25,236

81,437

167,549

39,389

65,052

Annual Report 2022 Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited

Gross Land Bank
Area

T

ERGE

(sq.m)

(FHR)

175,469

106,212

115,135

98,572

91,460

11,915

5,784

2,825

219,441

455,719

103,534

22,539

Attributable
Interests Held
by the Group
FEEMG
FEfLtE
(%)

(%)

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

52.8%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE R
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage of Completion Gross Land Bank  Interests Held
Region Project Projects Year Site Area Area by the Group
. 'R HEs T FEBF
& EH HEXERAAE BIER G ER mRast FE(L RS
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FHK) (FFHK) (%)
Bohai Economic Rim (Continued)
RHE (@
Shijiazhuang New Block (Pinyuan) Residential 2020 48,378 7,583 32.6%
AR Bhe (RE) =
Shijiazhuang West District of New Block Shangfu Residential/commercial 2022 52,543 63,367 96.0%
AR BYEHMAR T/ BE
Shijiazhuang East District of New Block Shangfu Residential 2023 35,286 88,456 96.0%
AR BrERRE =
Shijiazhuang Kaiyuan House Residential/commercial 2022 54,619 14,807 96.0%
AR b T/ BE
Shijiazhuang New Block Yayuan Residential/commercial 2022 45,729 159,941 76.8%
AR BYHE T/ BmE
Shenyang Jiangshan Elite’s Mansion Residential/commercial 2020 127,325 25,345 96.0%
&S TWEE T/ BE
Shenyang Land parcel 88-1, Shenyang Yuhong  Residential/commercial 2024 55,258 150,522 96.0%
New Town
& B R R s 1 1 1R TE/BE
Subtqta\ of Bohai Economic Rim region 1,918,626
IR 38/ st
Subtotal of interests in Bohai Economic Rim region 1,796,631

bt iy
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Region

Ul

Eastern China

R

Huai'an
ER

Huai'an
EZ

Huai'an
EZ

Huai'an
EZ

Huai'an
EZ

Huai'an
ER
Huai'an
ER
Huai'an
ER
Huai'an
ER
Huai'an
ER

Huai'an
EZ

Project

EH

Jinhui City Phase Il
EH=H

Jinhui City Square
TEHTES

Jinhui City Phase Il
8 5

Jinhui Swan Bay Phase |
EERBE—HB

Jinhui Swan Bay Phase Il

SRS

Jinhui Four Seasons
Community Phase Il
MEEERE_H

Jinhui Four Seasons
Community Phase |
MEEERE—BH

New Block Garden

BFIEE

New Block Dongjun

B R

New Block Academy
By &L

New Block Academy 2
BF &5

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREFA®mRD

Main Planned Usage of
Projects

BETXERAME

Residential/commercial

5/ B
Residential/commercial/
office building
EXVAEVE YN

Residential/commercial

TE/BE

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Residential/commercial

TE/HE
Residential/commercial
TE/HE
Residential/commercial
TE/HE

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Residential/commercial

TE/BE

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Residential/commercial

TE/BE

Actual/
Estimated
Completion
Year

BR st
BIEH

2022

2024

2020

2016

2020

2021

2021

2023

2024

2024

2026

Site Area

EtER
(sq.m)
(FHK)

108,819

93,398

86,833

66,440

63,426

72,902

70,750

28,600

56,712

29,312

52,215

Annual Report 2022 Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited

Gross Land Bank
Area

T fEE
mfEsE

(sq.m)
(FFHK)

1,041

361,372

3,018

11,052

20,430

23,055

64,127

12,173

116,875

114911

168,323

Attributable
Interests Held
by the Group
FEEMG
FEfLtE
(%)

(%)

97.4%

57.6%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERER AR
Region Project
& EB

Eastern China (Continued)

ER (@

Huai'an
ER
Huafan
ER
Huai'an
EZ
Huafan
EZ
Huai'an
EZ
Lianyungang

b

Lianyungang
BEEE

Lianyungang
BELE

Lianyungang
BEEE

Lianyungang
BELE

Lianyungang
BEE

Lianyungang
TS

Lianyungang
BEEE

Lianyungang
BELE

New Block Academy 3
By &3

New Block Academy 4
B &34

World City Phase 5
R R HA

Southern Plot of City Plaza
W E R MR

Northern Plot of City Plaza
W RSt IR

Jinhui Four Seasons

e

Jinhui Four Seasons Guanlan

NEEEHE

Yunting Riverside
EREKE

Parcel LTC2020-19
LTC2020-19%3 3 18

Yundi
il

Peninsula Elite’s Mansion

FEER

Elite's Mansion
oy

Yunxie

i

Outlets
BT

26 ISR (EE) BRAR  202EF8

Main Planned Usage of
Projects

BETXERAME

Residential

*FE

Residential
£

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Residential
£

Residential

*FE

Residential/commercial

TE/BE

Residential

(EES
Residential
£
Residential

*FE

Residential/commercial

TE/BE

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Residential/commercial

TE/BE

Residential

*FE

Commercial

CIES

Actual/
Estimated
Completion
Year

BR st
BIEH

2026

2024

2025

2024

2025

2019

2021

2023

2023

2025

2024

2026

2028

2025

Site Area

EMEE

(sq.m)

(5K

56,833

56,913

20,136

47,869

46,677

223,045

49,756

97,508

34,819

165,929

61,705

93,032

59,397

108,623

Gross Land Bank
Area

T

HREE

(sq.m)

(FHR)

183,403

184,843

65,538

155,161

151,284

66,859

12,428

166,438

96,905

516,476

130,501

267,947

189,825

148,258

Attributable
Interests Held
by the Group
FEEMG
FEfLtE
(%)

(%)

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

57.6%

57.6%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

48.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREFA®mRD

Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage of Completion Gross Land Bank  Interests Held
Region Project Projects Year Site Area Area by the Group
. B st T FEEME
& 1HH EEHIERIAR BTEH EtER mESE FEfLtE
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAK) (AR (%)
Eastern China (Continued)
ER (B
Yancheng Jinhui City Residential/commercial 2023 76,441 113,572 96.0%
B4, EIE 5/ B
Yancheng Jinhui New Block Garden Residential/commercial 2021 31,180 15,276 96.0%
i EEEFIER e/ B
Yancheng Jinhui Tongyin Yunshang Residential/commercial 2023 46,650 124,993 52.8%
B4, EIEBIRE 5/ ¥
Yancheng Junhefu Residential/commercial 2023 72422 200,643 49.0%
B MR s/ H%
Xuzhou Xjnbu Lanting Residential/commercial 2023 55,982 174,621 96.0%
M BEYEE 5/ ¥
Xuzhou Jiangshan Yunjing Community Residential/commercial 2024 26,358 87,181 48.0%
=M TUERHE e/ B
Zhenjiang Jinhui Four Seasons Guanlan Residential/commercial/ 2024 37,422 149,638 96.0%
hotel
T MEEESE T/ B/ BE
Zhenjiang New Block Xinyuan Residential 2024 76,715 175517 96.0%
T BEED (G
Zhenjiang Yundu Shangyuan Residential 2022 50,041 120,807 96.0%
T = b £
Yangzhou New Block Avenue Residential/commercial 2023 128,052 124,545 96.0%
izl BEKRE 5/ ¥
Yangzhou Eden Garden Residential/commercial 2021 52,581 5373 32.0%
#M 1B2ER s/ H%
Yangzhou Qihu Cloud Atrium Residential/commercial 2023 93,813 207,657 96.0%
izl B 5/ ¥
Yangzhou Yuedu Cloud Atrium Residential/commercial 2023 43528 96,627 47.0%
M REEfE e/ B
Subtota\‘ of Eastern China region 4,928,693
EF/5t
Subtotal of interests in Eastern China region 4,187,630

ZERgm/) st
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE kD
Region Project
& EH

Northwestern China

[ipis

Xi'an
[

Xi'an
Az

Xi'an
[

Xi'an
ik
Xi'an
ik

Xi'an
g

Xi'an
[

Xi'an
g

Xi'an
g
Xi'an
[
Xi'an
g
Xi'an
[
Xi'an
g
Xi'an
[

Jinghe Town

RS

Academy Mansion
EEh]

New Block Avenue

B KE

Jinhui World City Upper
East Side Phase |
SEERR -RE—H
Jinhui World City Upper
East Side Phase Il
ESEHRE -REZH

Gaoxin Elite’s Mansion
BMER

Jinhui Chang'an Elite’s Mansion

TERZEH

Jinhui New Block Garden

TIRESTEE
Jinhui East King's Garden
TERAHE

Jinhui World City Phase A1-2
SIEHRIRAI- 28

Jinhui World City Phase A3
FIEE RIFAEH

Jinhui World City Phase B3
F I R IEB3HA

Jinhui World City Phase C1
I RFCIE

Jinhui World City Phase C2
FIEHRIRCH
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Main Planned Usage of
Projects

BETXERAME

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Residential/commercial

TE/BE

Residential/commercial

tE/ B
Residential/commercial
tE/ B
Residential/commercial
tE/ B

Residential/commercial

TE/BE

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Residential/commercial

TE/BE

Residential/commercial/
hotel
T/ B/ BE

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Residential/commercial

TE/BE

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Residential/commercial

TE/BE

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Actual/
Estimated
Completion
Year

BR Bt
BIEH

2028

2021

2026

2018

2020

2021

2023

2020

2022

2016

2019

2021

2019

2021

Site Area

EMEE

(sq.m)

(5K

697,823

46,649

189,256

43,653

22,884

37,326

53,859

39412

127,015

60,300

40,774

26,000

48,700

38,780

Gross Land Bank
Area

T fEE
HmREE
(sq.m)
(FAK)
2,274,510
11,559

812326

16,548

216

1,235

219,831

2,378

296,915

16,190

32,359

6,143

927

32,991

Attributable
Interests Held
by the Group
FEEMG
FEfLtE
(%)

(%)

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE® RO

Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage of Completion Gross Land Bank  Interests Held
Region Project Projects Year Site Area Area by the Group
. B st T FEEME
& 1HH EEHIERIAR BTEH EtER mESE FEfLtE
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAK) (AR (%)
Northwestern China (Continued)
7l (&)
Xi'an Jinhui Wor\q City Block D Residential/commercial 2022 126,133 152 96.0%
[ FIEH R DM IR 5/ B
Xi'an Jinhui World City Block G Residential/commercial 2020 28,399 35,781 96.0%
Az EIEHRIRCHIR e/ B
Xi'an Jinhui Global Plaza Phase | Office building/commercial 2017 14,402 83,481 96.0%
[ EERIKES —H YN E
Xi'an Jinhui qubal Plaza Phase Il Office building/commercial 2020 32,247 262,740 96.0%
g TIERIKES _H YN Y- ES
Xi'an Jinhui Wor\q City Block 1/J Residential/commercial 2028 115,320 581,841 96.0%
[ EIEH IR/ IR 5/ ¥
Xi'an Jinhui Building (International Plaza) Office building/commercial 2015 15,908 48,685 96.0%
g EEXE ERES YN Y- ES
Xi'an Chuangzhi Building Office building/commercial 2019 6,035 20,497 96.0%
[ BB KRE YN E
Xi'an Xi'an Jinhui Plaza Commercial 2024 35,237 280,827 96.0%
g AZTEES [EES
Xi'an Xi'an Jinhui Fengxi Elite’s Mansion Residential/commercial 2023 38,775 179,442 96.0%
[ ALEREEEE 5/ ¥
Zhengzhou Jinhui New Block Garden Residential 2023 48,549 167,249 96.0%
=) EEESTEE £
Zhengzhou Jinhui New Block Garden Residential 2024 47,062 154,535 96.0%
=) EERESEE (G
Zhengzhou Jinhui Youbu Lanting Residential 2025 33,704 109,965 96.0%
=) TIEIES B £
Subtota\‘ of Northwestern China region 5,649,323
Fadb/ et
Subtotal of interests in Northwestern China region 5,423,350

Akt
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERER AR
Region Project
& EB

Southeastern China

Quanzhou

FM

Quanzhou

M

Quanzhou

FM

Quanzhou

M

Quanzhou

FM

Quanzhou

M

Quanzhou

FM

Quanzhou

M

nghou
&M

Fuzhou
&M

nghou
&M

Fuzhou
&M

nghou
&M

Fuzhou
&M

Shishi Jinhui City Phase |
AMEEE—8

Shishi Jinhui City Phase I
AR 8

Jinhui New Block Academy

EEESBH

Parcel No. 11 at Luojiang

L8R

Land parcel J-05-01 at Anxi

L -05-0131 38

Shishi Heming
AMARIEE

Parcel 52021-13 in Shishi
BHIS2021-1357 358

Parcel 52021-14 in Shishi
FRIS2021-145% 1 8

Jinhui New Block Garden
EEESEE

Jinhui Lanlinxuan

SHERME

Huai'an Phase |
ELZ—H
Huai'an Phase Il
EZZH
Huai'an Phase Ill

HEZ=H

Huai'an Phase V
EZREB
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Main Planned Usage of
Projects

BETXERAME

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Residential/commercial

TE/BE

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Residential/commercial

TE/BE

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Residential/commercial

TE/BE

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Residential/commercial

TE/BE

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Residential/commercial

TE/BE

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Residential/commercial

TE/BE

Residential

*FE

Residential
£

Actual/
Estimated
Completion
Year

BR st
BIEH

2022

2025

2023

2023

2023

2024

2024

2023

2021

2021

2014

2020

2021

2016

Site Area

EMEE

(sq.m)

(5K

38,866

183,643

30,865

64,921

20,267

31,959

21,879

19,646

19,891

63,518

266,962

357,309

360,992

56,873

Gross Land Bank
Area

T fEE
HmREE
(sq.m)
(FAK)
21,000
657,783
96,877
219,254
69,698

106,500

78,230

8,269

17,681

3,488

25,768

82,945

9,268

Attributable
Interests Held
by the Group
FEEMG
FEfLtE
(%)

(%)

81.6%

81.6%

96.0%

25.0%

86.4%

49.0%

81.6%

81.6%

96.0%

96.0%

57.6%

57.6%

57.6%

57.6%



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREFA®mRD

Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage of Completion Gross Land Bank  Interests Held
Region Project Projects Year Site Area Area by the Group
. BTt T FEEME
& 1HH EEHIERIAR i T 13 G E R HmREE FE(b
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAK) (AR (%)
Southeastern China (Continued)
R (&)
nghou Radiance Plaza Commercial 1999 1,141 16,760 96.0%
&M EEAE ES
nghou Jinhui New Block Mansion Residential/commercial 2023 22,088 54,459 96.0%
&M EEESNE e/ B
Shangrao Shangrao Tongluowan Residential/commercial 2024 232917 595,732 49.0%
s FEAEE [EP
ngmg New Block Avenue Residential/commercial 2022 43,071 3,594 96.0%
N} BHRE s/ H%
Fuging Jiangshan Elite’s Mansion Residential/commercial 2021 49,504 9,132 37.4%
BA IWEE [EP
ngmg Gugn\an Elite’s Mansion Residential/commercial 2020 49,440 3,587 96.0%
=N} BREZE s/ H%
Fuging New Block Academy Residential/commercial 2020 53,168 4,083 34.6%
N BEE [EP
ngmg New Block Garden Residential/commercial 2022 45138 525 49.0%
=N} BFHIER s/ H%
Fuging East Elite's Mansion Residential 2022 16,330 1,933 49.0%
BA RHEE (G
Fuging Zhongyang King's Garden Residential/commercial 2022 65,225 24,112 67.2%
=N} RREEE s/ H%
Fuging Land Parcel No.2021 Lot-13 Residential/commercial 2025 91,256 199,094 57.6%
BE 202198-135% 3 52 e/ BE
Subtota\‘ of Southeastern China region 2,380,887
EEli
Subtotal of interests in Southeastern China region 1,534,569

EfE )
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242A
IS EREN-SE
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage of Completion Gross Land Bank  Interests Held
Region Project Projects Year Site Area Area by the Group
. B st T FEEME
& 1HH EEHIERIAR BTEH EtER mESE FEfLtE
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAK) (FAK) (%)
Shenzhen/Huizhou
RE
Foshan New Block Avenue Residential/commercial 2021 43523 11,908 96.0%
L BERE 5/ ¥
Foshan Lingnan Elite's Mansion Residential/commercial 2021 17,165 26,157 96.0%
Bl BHEE [EP S
Foshan New Block Academy Residential 2020 23,275 12,009 48.0%
L BT ERN (EES
Foshan Yunjing Garden Residential/commercial 2025 44207 158,641 96.0%
L ZRTEE e/ B
Foshan Yunzhu Garden Residential/commercial 2025 66,439 224,112 96.0%
L EHTEE 5/ BE
Huizhou Dongdi Huayuan Residential/commercial 2020 19,231 14,257 96.0%
=M RIEER [EP
Huizhou Jinhui Elegant Pavilion Residential/commercial 2021-2022 49915 59,002 96.0%
B BRI 5/ BE
Huizhou New Block Mansion Residential/commercial 2022 12415 9,372 96.0%
£l b/N e/ B
Huizhou Gaoling Phase Il Residential/commercial 2023 67,841 317,080 57.6%
B =E_H 5/ BE
Huizhou Land parcel at Kaoling Township, Residential/commercial 2023 39,344 174,545 96.0%
Qiuchang Street, Huiyang District
B EREMREESENMIE 5/ BE
Huizhou Land parcel at Jiangjun Road, Qiuchang Residential/commercial 2023 43,506 148,330 96.0%
Street, Huiyang District
B EREMREE R ERMIE 5/ ¥
Huizhou North of Baiyun district, 67,000 sq.m Residential/commercial 2025 72,128 223,999 96.0%
£l AZd678A e/ B
Subtotal of Shenzhen/Huizhou 1,379,412
RENE
Subtotal of interests in Shenzhen/Huizhou 1,196,712

RERD/ )
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Suzhou
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M

Nantong
)

Project

EH

Jiushang Elite’s Mansion
NS

Ziya Elite's Mansion
SEER

New Block Guanlan Garden

BEERR

Shaoxing Mirror Lake
BB

Peninsula Elite’s Mansion

FERER

Jingyue Elite’'s Mansion
BREZR

Huiyi Elite’s Yunting
BREE

Sea Breeze Garden

8 LA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREFA®mRD

Main Planned Usage of
Projects

BETXERAME

Residential

*FE

Residential
£

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Residential/commercial

TE/BE

Residential
(G
Residential
£

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Residential/commercial

TE/BE

New Block Four Seasons Garden Phase | Residential

BHOETEE—H

*FE

New Block Four Seasons Garden Phase Il Residential

Ky METEE "

Qianwan Commercial Center

REBEPL

Runyuan Mansion Yayuan
HTBERD

New Block Jiang Lai

JE RN

Taicang Block No.17
XE1753H R

Riverside Yunjing Garden
BARRTEE

Runyuan King's Garden

HrhBtE

Jinhui Elite's Mansion

BEER

=

Commercial

IS

Residential
£

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Commercial

CIES

Residential/commercial

tE/ B

Residential
£

Residential

*FE

Actual/
Estimated
Completion
Year

BR st
BIEH

2020

2020

2022

2022

2022

2023

2023

2020

2021

2022

2019

2021

2023

2022

2022

2019

2023

Site Area

EMEE

(sq.m)

(5K

64,505

11,349

70,150

48,883

57,812

63,210

29,366

18,866

25,934

28,102

39,428

43,611

85,305

35,504

41,941

80,669

38,049
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Gross Land Bank
Area

T

ERGE

(sq.m)

(FHR)

20,918

16,065

33,240

23,842

13,900

163,004

89,150

14,817

8,824

10,817

45,567

9,645

214216

72,999

47,147

18,771

96,319

Attributable
Interests Held
by the Group
FEEMG
FEfLtE
(%)

(%)

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

96.0%

67.2%

96.0%

96.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R R R
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage of Completion Gross Land Bank  Interests Held
Region Project Projects Year Site Area Area by the Group
. 'R HEs T FEBF
& EH HEXERAAE BIER G ER mRast FE(L RS
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FHK) (FFHK) (%)
Yangtze River Delta (Continued)
R=A @
Wuxi Xidong King's Garden Residential 2023 128,379 329,018 96.0%
) BRER R =
Shgngha'\ Jinhui Tiancui Garden Residential 2019 32,142 7,942 96.0%
B FERES Tt
Shanghai Jingang Commercial Plaza Commercial 2017 31438 46,484 96.0%
+E ERBEES HES
Shanghai Shanghai Jiulong Hotel Commercial/hotel 2023 1,943 31,750 96.0%
& EEAREER GEYEELS
Ningbo Huiyi Yunting Residential/commercial 2022 26,477 2,857 96.0%
B ERE=S T/ BmE
Ningbo Jiangyue Waterflow Residential/commercial 2022 122,292 212,950 57.6%
B LHGERY T/ BE
Ningbo Zilin Yunting Residential/commercial 2023 48,012 123,720 96.0%
B SHERE T/ BmE
Ningbo Chengyang Yunfu Residential/commercial 2023 25,091 65,127 96.0%
B WRER T/ BE
Ningbo Yuyao Meishan Road Project Residential/commercial 2024 54,476 135,375 96.0%
B REEIIRIER e/ BE
Subtotal of Yangtze River Delta region 1,854,464
R=A/NG
Subtotal of ime(ests in Yangtze River Delta region 1,684,934
R=AfEm/ Nt
Subtotal of land bank developed by the Group and its 22,686,237
subsidiaries )
AE B R E M B A B R &ALt GE 6 Et
Subtotal of interests in the land bank developed by the Group 19,414,203

and its subsidiaries

FERREMEBARREN D EEES
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE® RO

Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage of Completion Gross Land Bank  Interests Held
Region Project Projects Year Site Area Area by the Group
. 'R FEs T FERBF
& EH HEXERAAE BIER fEER HfRAE FE(L RS
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FHK) (FFHK) (%)
Properties developed by the Group’s
joint ventures and associates
FEERELERMEATBENYE
Southwestern China
[i]:]
Chongging Luming House Residential/commercial 2021 157,427 50,975 32.6%
EF RS IT T/ BHE
Chongging Jinke Jinhui Meiyuan Residential/commercial 2018-2021 177,239 29,925 47.0%
EL 4 EHeBER T/ BE
Chongging Jinke Jinhui Bocui Mountain Residential/commercial 2018-2021 188,419 21,248 47.0%
EF EREEERL T/ BHE
Chongging Liyue Jiangshan Residential/commercial 2019-2021 61,919 39,623 19.2%
BB BIIW T/ BE
Chengdu Midea Jinhui Town Residential 2022 41,940 7,308 48.0%
% X0 - EX =
Chengdu Peninsula Elite's Mansion Community — Residential/commercial 2019 39,038 16,469 48.0%
Phase |
% FEEENE—H T/ BHE
Chengdu Peninsula Elite's Mansion Community — Residential/commercial 2019 71,472 23,676 48.0%
Phase Il
% FEEENRTH e/ BE
Subtota\‘ of Southwestern China region 189,224
/st
Subtotal of interests in Southwestern China region 71,095

P /) st
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

242A
BIEEN R ROWN
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage of Completion Gross Land Bank  Interests Held
Region Project Projects Year Site Area Area by the Group
. BTt T FEEME
& 1HH EHEXERIAR BTEH EtER mESE FEfLtE
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAK) (FAK) (%)
Central China
g
Hefei Duhui City Residential/commercial 2022 109,852 28,864 24.0%
&Y BE Lo fre,/
Chgngsha Jinhui Weichu Mansion Residential/commercial 2021 60,331 13,056 48.0%
= EEIERTEE [EP S
Jingzhou Chuyue Elite's Mansion Residential/commercial 2022 51,187 31,720 48.0%
i BHEE [EP
Subtota\‘ of Central China region 73,640
E)it
Subtotal of iqterests in Central China region 28,420
Ehiga ot
Bohai Economic Rim
Ri#E
Tianjin Yonghe Yayuan Residential 2022 45437 90,126 38.4%
PN RS £
Tianjin Yunzhu Garden Residential/commercial 2021 62,024 107,526 57.6%
K EETLE [EP
Shijiazhuang Jinke Tianyu Community Residential 2026 56,946 161,604 33.6%
AR THEAEHE £
Shenyang Jimei Wanxiang Residential/commercial 2020 78,517 17,651 31.7%
B £EX8BR 5/ BE
Beijing Daxing Huang Village Project Residential/commercial 2025 108,244 393,784 24.0%
= REENIEER s/ H%
Subtqta\ of Bohai Economic Rim region 770,691
BEEE
Subtotal of interests in Bohai Economic Rim region 250,942

REBHEE/ ST
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE® RO

Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage of Completion Gross Land Bank  Interests Held
Region Project Projects Year Site Area Area by the Group
. 'R FEs T FERBF
& EH HEXERAAE BIER fEER mRast FE(L RS
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FHK) (FFHK) (%)
Eastern China
ER
Lianyungang New Block Academy Residential 2020 51,452 23,245 49.0%
BEERE By B =
Lianyungang Gaoxin Elite's Mansion Residential 2023 79,720 149,654 48.0%
ELAE BMER tE
Lianyungang New Block Garden Phase | Residential/commercial 2022 122,205 92,207 8.7%
BERE BHItE—B T/ BHE
Lianyungang New Block Garden Phase I Residential/commercial 2022 124,566 9,860 8.7%
ETAE BHTEE_H T/ BE
Lianyungang New Block Garden Phase lll Residential/commercial 2024 131,888 289,051 8.7%
BEEE BHIEE=H T/ BHE
Nanjing Time Mansion Residential/commercial 2022 131,964 12,689 47.0%
BR B SEIR T TE/HE
Nanjing Mansion Yayuan Residential/commercial 2019 28,257 3,006 57.6%
i BEME T/ BmE
Yangzhou Tang Yuan Residential/commercial 2020 72,660 18,236 48.0%
# #58 T/ BE
Xuzhou Jiangshan Yunjing Community Residential/commercial 2024 25,157 80,801 48.0%
R TLERME T/ BmE
Xuzhou Jiangshan Yunjing Community Residential 2024 24,514 83,246 48.0%
M TUEBHER tE
Xuzhou New Block Riverside Residential/commercial 2021 50,212 14,541 48.0%
R B KE e/ BE
Subtota\‘ of Eastern China region 776,536
EH/st
Subtotal of interests in Eastern China region 219,521

ERE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

242A
BIEEN R ROWN
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage of Completion Gross Land Bank  Interests Held
Region Project Projects Year Site Area Area by the Group
. BTt T FEEME
& 1HH EEHIERIAR BTEH EtER mESE FEfLtE
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAK) (FAK) (%)
Northwestern China
[ichln
Xi'an Jinhui Mansion Residential/commercial 2017 64,269 23,749 96.0%
[ EIERA [EP
Zhengzhou Binhe Elite’s Mansion Residential/commercial 2023 88,578 203,400 49.0%
=) TEETEER e/ B
Subtota\‘ of Northwestern China region 227,149
Fadb/ et
Subtotal of iqterests in Northwestern China region 122,383
fipl et
Southeastern China
nghou Lexin Garden Residential/commercial 2022 125,737 48,333 31.7%
&M SETER [EP
Fuzhou Yuzhou Jinhui Zhongyang Garden Residential/commercial/ 2020 45,134 14,944 32.6%
_ office building
&M BMNEBRRTER EXVEEVE YN
nghou Jinhui Longyue Garden District 1 Residential 2022 86,558 49278 57.6%
&M TEREEE—& £
nghou Jinhui Longyue Garden District 2 Residential/commercial 2019 19,163 3,718 57.6%
&M ETEREEE_E [EP
nghou Gugn\an Mansion Residential/commercial 2024 19,515 59,439 47.0%
&M BRAE [EP
Fuging Bright Binjiang Residential/commercial 2021 99,992 41,388 47.0%
BA BEREL [EP E
Fuging Bright Tianjing Residential/commercial 2021 26,133 12 47.0%
N} 3L PN [EP
Fuging Bright Tianyue Residential/commercial 2021 36,757 6,951 15.0%
BA BEXIR [EP E
ngmg City Plaza Residential/commercial 2021 75,854 19,011 48.0%
N} W ES [EP
Fuging Boyue Mansion Residential/commercial 2020 41,675 3,344 32.0%
BA HHIR A [EP E
Subtota\‘ of Southeastern China region 246,418
RE/st
Subtotal of interests in Southeastern China region 109,391

R/ st

38 IR (W) BRAR  202EF8



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREFA®mRD

Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage of Completion Gross Land Bank  Interests Held
Region Project Projects Year Site Area Area by the Group
. BTt T FEEMG
& 1HH EEHIERIAR i T 13 G E R HmREE FE(b
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAK) (AR (%)
Shenzhen/Huizhou
RE
Foshan Elite’s Mansion Mingyuan Residential/commercial 2021 39,844 64,090 49.0%
L BEELT [EP
Huizhou Baoliyue Mansion Residential/commercial 2020 27,990 844 32.0%
£l RARAE e/ B
Subtotal of Shenzhen/Huizhou 64,934
R
Subtotal of interests in Shenzhen/Huizhou 31,649
REERNE
Yangtze River Delta
k=8
Hangzhou Zizhangtai Apartment Residential 2020 68,263 119,093 49.0%
AN KEEAB (G
Hangzhou Huiyi Elite’s Mansion Residential 2020 59,668 49,726 47.0%
AN IEREHR £
Shaoxing Guanlan Yunting Residential 2024 117,391 300,012 48.0%
BE BREZE (G
Ningbo Jinhui & Powerlong Plaza Residential/commercial 2022 86,528 283,991 47.0%
= EERERNTES s/ H%
Suzhou Lanxi Bay Yuyuan Residential 2019 66,738 10,496 30.7%
B BEEEE (G
Suzhou Shanghu King's Garden Residential 2019 46,004 20,348 31.7%
B EHBETLE £
Suzhou §ea Time Garden Residential 2020 69,206 40,066 15.4%
B B ERIEE (G

Annual Report 2022 Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE R RO

Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage of Completion Gross Land Bank  Interests Held
Region Project Projects Year Site Area Area by the Group
. 'R HEs T FEBF
& EH HEXERAAE BIER G ER mRast FE(L RS
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAHR (FFHK) (%)
Yangtze River Delta (Continued)
R=A @
Suzhou Huaman Seasons Garden Residential 2020 32,044 345 49.0%
| TERNETEE =
Suzhou Jiangnan Elite's Mansion Garden Residential 2020 24,583 15,769 47.0%
Phase |
B IEEETEE 1 =
Suzhou Jiangnan Elite’s Mansion Garden Residential 2021 30,760 24,010 47.0%
Phase Il
B IEEETEE S =
Suzhou Jiangnan Elite's Mansion Garden Commercial/office building 2022 7,239 53,459 47.0%
Phase lll
B IEEETEE=H [GEV$ i UN
Subtotal of Yangtze River Delta region 917,315
E=A/
Subtotal of interests in Yangtze River Delta region 419,147
R=AfEm/ Nt
Subtotal of land bank developed by the Group’s joint ventures and associates 3,265,907
FEERECERBMEATBBENLMGERE G
Subtotal of interests in the land bank developed by the Group’s joint ventures and 1,252,548
associates
FEBGECERKMEATMEN L AERET G
Total 25,952,144
w3t
Total interests 20,666,751
R8st
Note: B EE

The GFA of the Group's land bank includes (i) GFA available for sale and total rentable ~ AEE L HMFHENEREEREROBERIYEIHEERSER
GFA of completed projects; (i) total GFA for properties under development; and (i) R B HIAAREE@EE > (BT ENEREERBERGNFIER
total GFA for properties held for future development. In respect of the non-wholly ~ ZREIEVENBEREBE -MIEZELERNBEEMS  BERERE
owned projects, the GFA will be adjusted according to the equity interests of the Group 15 IZ B EEEBRHIER PR REETHE -

in relevant projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue of the Group was
approximately RMB35,318.0 million, represented a decrease of 11.8% as
compared to RMB40,025.8 million of the corresponding period last year.
Our revenue mainly derived from the development and sales of the Group's
residential properties and commercial properties, we also derived revenue
from leasing of commercial properties, and provision of management
consulting services for the overall operation of property projects to our joint
ventures and associates.

The table below sets forth the certain information related to our revenue:

BERE® RO

A #5[ol BE

WA

HE_ S - —_F#+-_B=+—HLEEE ZEBRRKRAHA
R#353180A 8 REFRPNAAET400258BE T
BA118% WMARBEEFEREAEBNEENEREBEY
EPREREE AEETRUEEEREYERIYEE
BERNERESERNaEtENME ARIRHESELHAMRBM
ERUWA

TERESBBABANETER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—AILEE

2022 2021

—E-— TEC—&F
RMB’000 RMB'000 %
ARETT AREFT %
Property development and sales YIERERIFE 34,906,704 98.8 39,521,551 98.7
Residential (e 33,746,782 95.6 38,314,480 95.7
Commercial [EES 1,159,922 3.2 1,207,071 3.0
Property leasing MEMRE 390,410 1.1 397,061 1.0
Management consulting services BIRE AR 20,889 0.1 107,214 03
Total st 35,318,003 100.0 40,025,826 100.0

Revenue from Property Development and Sales

As of 31 December 2022, the revenue from property development and sales
was approximately RMB34,906.7 million, represented a decrease of 11.7% as
compared to approximately RMB39,521.6 million of the corresponding period
last year. The decrease in the Group's revenue from property development and
sales was primarily attributable to a decrease in the total GFA delivered by the
Group.

MERBERIFENKA

REE S - —F+-A=+—HlE WERERIHEE
ERNBRALN A ARIE4067BB T BEERBPNAAR
#%39,521.6 8 B ITR1.7% o N5 B W) 3 B 8% K38 & I AR
DI EEHFRARAERERVERZREmBER VR
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ERE W RO

Rental Income

Revenue from property leasing consists of recurring rental revenue from
leasing our commercial properties, such as office buildings, shopping malls
and shopping streets. Our rental income decreased by approximately 1.7%
to RMB390.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from RMB397.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Management Consulting Services

The Group provides management consulting services to its joint ventures
and associates, such services mainly include management consultation
services provided to these entities in connection with the construction,
sales and marketing of properties, and overall project management during
the development and sales of properties. Our revenue from management
consulting services decreased by approximately 80.5% to RMB20.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 from RMB107.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly due the decrease in scale of
projects developed by our joint ventures and associates which we provided
management consulting services.

Cost of Sales

Cost of property development and sales mainly consists of construction
costs, land acquisition costs and capitalized interest. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, our cost of sales amounted to approximately
RMB30,138.5 million, represented a decrease of 6.6% as compared to that
of RMB32,278.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, which was
primarily attributable to the contraction of our business scale, leading to a
corresponding decrease in total GFA delivered.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group's gross profit decreased to RMB5,179.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 from RMB7,747.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2021.

The Group's gross profit margin decreased to 14.7% for the year ended 31
December 2022 from 19.4% for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Finance Income

The Group's finance income primarily consists of interest income from
bank deposits, interest income from funds the Group advanced to our joint
ventures and associates and interest received from third parties. For the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's finance cost was approximately
RMB91.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately 50.2% as compared
to RMB183.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly
due to the decrease in average bank deposits of the Group during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Income and Gains

The Group's other income and gains decreased to RMB60.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 from RMB183.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, which was mainly due to the net exchange gain recorded
in 2021 while a net exchange loss was recorded for the Year and there was a
one-off gain on the disposal of subsidiaries recorded in the same period of
2021.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses mainly consist of (i) promotion
and advertising expenses, which primarily represent costs incurred in
connection with advertisement in media and promotional events; (ii)
employee benefit expenses, which primarily represent salaries paid to our
Group's selling and marketing personnel; (iii) office and property management
expenses, which primarily represent the expenses incurred in daily operation
and management of the Group's sales offices; (iv) sales expenses, which
primarily represent commissions paid to third-party sales agencies; (v)
depreciation and amortization, which primarily represent the depreciation
and amortization of equipment and devices used by the Group’s selling and
marketing personnel; (vi) travelling and entertainment expenses; and (vii)
after-sales service expenses, which primarily represent expenses incurred
during the provision of our Group's after-sales services to our customers.

The Group's selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately
35.7% to RMB931.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from
RMB1,449.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, which was primarily
attributable to the decrease in promotion and advertising expenses, salaries
paid to the selling and marketing personnel and office expenses.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly consist of (i) employee benefit expenses,
which primarily represent salaries paid to our Group's administrative
personnel; (ii) tax and surcharges, which primarily represent stamp duties
in relation to sales contracts the Group entered into and property tax in
relation to properties our Groups leased; (iii) depreciation and amortization,
which primarily represent the depreciation and amortization of the Group's
offices and office equipment; (iv) office expenses, which primarily represent
the expenses incurred by our Group’s administrative personnel in the daily
operations of our Group's offices; (v) professional consulting expenses,
which primarily represent the expenses for the consulting services the
Group engaged in order to increase our operational efficiency; (vi) bank
service charges, which primarily represent the expenses for miscellaneous
bank services; (vii) travelling and entertainment expenses; and (viii) service
expenditures.

The Group's administrative expenses decreased by approximately 28.6% to
RMB853.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from RMB1,195.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, which was primarily
attributable to the decrease in salaries paid to the staff salaries and office
expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERE W RO

Finance Cost

Our finance costs mainly consist of (i) interest on bank and other borrowings,
corporate bonds, asset-backed securities, senior notes and lease liabilities; and
(i) interest expense arising from revenue contracts, which represents interest
expenses recognised for the significant financing components included in
contract liabilities during the period from the receipt of sales proceeds to the
delivery of the underlying properties, less capitalized interest directly relating
to properties under development.

The Group's finance cost decreased by approximately 32.5% to RMB236.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from RMB349.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021, which was primarily attributable to the
decrease in interest-bearing debts and the reduction of average finance cost
due to the continuous optimization of the Group's debt structure.

The Group's weighted average cost of debt as at 31 December 2022 was
approximately 6.22% (31 December 2021: 6.58%).

Other Expenses

The Group's other expenses increased by approximately 326.7% to RMB191.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from RMB44.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021, which was primarily attributable to the
exchange loss recorded due to the depreciation of Renminbi.

Fair Value Gains on Investment Properties

Fair value gains on investment properties represent the changes in the fair
value of our investment properties. For the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group recorded fair value gains on investment properties of RMB844.6
million, represented a increase of 28.6% compared to that of RMB657.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021. Such increase was primarily because
Xi'an Jinhui Plaza (FAZ & #&E&33), Xi'an Jinhui World City Block J (FA & <& 8
I E) and Chongging Lanyin World (88 88 85 B X #f) were added to
our investment properties portfolio, and accordingly we recorded a relatively
high level of appreciation in value in 2022 as compared to the corresponding
period of 2021.

Share of Profits and losses of Joint Ventures

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded share of losses
of joint ventures of RMB732.6 million, while we recorded share of profits of
joint ventures of RMB98.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. Such
change was mainly attributable to the provision for impairment losses of the
property projects held by the Group's joint ventures during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Share of Profits of Associates

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's recorded share of profits
of associates of RMB491.0 million, while we recorded share of profits of
associates of RMB641.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, which
was primarily attributable to the decrease in GFA delivered property projects
held by the Group’s associates during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Profit before Tax

The Group's profit before tax decreased by approximately 42.7% to RMB3,706.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from RMB6,465.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Income Tax Expenses

The Group’s income tax expenses for the year included the provision made
for PRC enterprise Income tax and land appreciation tax. The Group's income
tax expenses decreased by approximately 41.4% to RMB1,623.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 from RMB2,771.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, which was primarily attributable to the decrease in provision
for land appreciation tax.

The effective enterprise income tax rate (i.e. income tax divided by profit
before tax) of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 was 43.8%, as
compared to that of 42.9% for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the change in the Group's financial data mentioned above, the
profit after tax of the Group decreased by approximately 43.6% to RMB2,083.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from RMB3,693.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's net current assets was RMB33,858.4
million (2021: RMB48,027.6 million). In particular, the Group's total current
assets decreased by approximately 19.4% to RMB131,789.1 million as at
31 December 2022 from RMB163,474.6 million as at 31 December 2021.
The Group's total current liabilities decreased by approximately 15.2% to
RMB97,930.8 million as at 31 December 2022 from RMB115,447.1 million as
at 31 December 2021. The decrease of the Group's net current assets was
mainly attributable to (i) the decrease in properties under development as a
result of our completion and delivery of properties; and (ii) the decrease in
cash and cash equivalents. Such decrease was partly offset by the decrease in
contracted liabilities as a result of decrease in sales of properties.

Cash Position

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's cash and bank balances was
RMB12,319.5 million (2021: RMB19,728.5 million). Excluding the restricted
cash and pledged deposits, our cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB4,410.2 million, of which RMB4,374.9 million, RMB1.5 million and RMB33.8
million (2021: RMB11,221.9 million, of which RMB10,873.3 million, RMB97.7
million and RMB250.9 million) were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong
dollars and US dollars.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE RO

Indebtedness

(EEE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's outstanding borrowings amounted RZZE-"HF+"A=+—H > AEBENKREEERIEEE
to RMB37,815.8 million (2021: RMB52,794.2 million), of which RMB19,109.5 A AR378158B 8T (ZE2Z—F | ARB52,794.28

million (2021: RMB26,893.8 million) carried interests at fixed rate. Save for the B 7t) * EFHRARM19,1095BB T (ZE_—F | AR
RMB2,516.4 million senior notes which were denominated in US dollars, all ~ 26,893.8E & 70) IEEFI Rt B B AR 251648 B TE
other borrowings of the Group were denominated in Renminbi. FREBUETHEN ZEEMBEMERUARET]E -

The table below sets forth the components of the Group’s borrowings as at ~ FREFIANEBE ZEFTBHANGERAMRITD !

the dates indicated:

As of 31 December
BE+-B=+—8H

2022 2021
S - BT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFx AREBTT
Current BNHA

Bank loans — secured RITER—FIKE = 126,875
Other loans - secured HMmEmR—FIKE 1,190,000 747,000
Current portion of long term bank loans — secured EHIRTTE BB S — B KT 8,520,513 7,730,586
Current portion of other loans — secured H S ENER S D —F K 1,226,840 899,572
Corporate bonds NEMESH 667,743 4,572,592
Senior notes BERE 440,607 2,650,016
Proceeds from asset-backed securities BERFESAERIE 70,696 65,705
Total current BNHR4a %R 12,116,399 16,792,346

Non-current JEENHA
Bank loans - secured RITER—FRR 14,718,167 24,789,490
Bank loans — unsecured IRITER—HIKE 50,000 -
Other loans - secured HMmEmR—FIKE 839,300 1,870,000
Corporate bonds NEMES 2,797,578 2,197,450
Senior notes BEEE 2,075,827 1,891,050
Proceeds from asset-backed securities & EIRFESRENE 5,218,481 5,253,870
Total non-current JEENEA4EER 25,699,353 36,001,860
Total borrowings fETR4EEE 37,815,752 52,794,206
Secured P=EiR L 31,713,301 41,483,098
Unsecured i 6,102,451 11,311,108
Total borrowings fETR4REE 37,815,752 52,794,206
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREFA®mRD

The following table sets out the maturity of the Group's total borrowings and ~ FR&F| A EBERAEE R AEEUETE I ZSHFF R
the extent of the Group's total borrowings subject to fixed or floating interest AU FRARZBFS P B HARIZIERIB R ¢
rates as at the dates indicated:

As of 31 December
gE+-HA=+—H

2022 2021
—E-C —_EF"—
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREF T
Bank loans repayable: BERFITEMN
Within one year — &R 8,520,513 7,857,461
Between one and two years —EEME 12,584,529 12,280,310
Between two and five years MEERE 1,629,823 12,007,940
More than five years EEMUE 553,815 501,240
23,288,680 32,646,951
Other borrowings repayable: BEEEMER
Within one year —FRN 2,416,840 1,646,572
Between one and two years —FEEWE 839,300 900,000
Between two and five years MEERE = 970,000
3,256,140 3,516,572
Other senior notes, corporate bonds and proceeds EEENBRER RAMESFK
from asset-backed securities repayable BEERIRESMENRIE
Within one year — &R 1,179,046 7,288,313
Between one and four years —FENER 5,072,690 5,917,165
Over four years OEM E 5,019,196 3,425,205
11,270,932 16,630,683
Total st 37,815,752 52,794,206
By fixed or floating interest rates HREEXH FEHEE 72
Fixed interest rate Bl 19,109,501 26,893,800
Floating interest rate EEIRIES 18,706,251 25,900,406
Total Indebtedness B AEEE 37,815,752 52,794,206
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERE W RO

Pledged Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's borrowings was secured by the Group's
assets that amounted to RMB55,954.2 million (2021: RMB70,721.9 million),
such assets included (i) property, plant and equipment; (i) land use rights;
(i) investment properties; (iv) properties under development; (v) completed
properties held for sale; and (vi) pledged deposits.

Financial Risk

The Group's businesses exposed us to various financial risks, including
interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. In order
to minimize such risk exposures of the Group, we do not use any derivatives
and other instruments for hedging. The Group does not hold or issue financial
derivatives for trading purpose.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group's exposure to changes in market interest rate relates primarily to
the Group's interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The Group does not
use financial derivatives to hedge interest rate risk, and uses variable rate bank
borrowings and other borrowings to manage its interest cost.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group mainly operates its business in China, and substantial of its revenue
and expenses are denominated in Renminbi. As at 31 December 2022, among
the Group's cash and bank balances, RMB1.5 million and RMB33.8 million was
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars, respectively, such amounts
were subject to the exchange rate fluctuation. The Group does not have any
policy to hedge against foreign exchange risk. However, the Group will closely
monitor its foreign exchange exposure, and strive to maintain the value of the
Group's cash.

Credit Risk

The Group divides financial instruments on basis of shared credit risk
characteristics, such as instrument type and credit risk ratings for the
purpose of determining significant increases in credit risk and calculation
of impairment. To manage risk arising from trade receivables, the Group has
policies in place to ensure that credit terms are made only to counterparties
with an appropriate credit history and management performs ongoing
credit evaluations of the Group’s counterparties. The credit quality of these
customers is assessed after taking into account their financial position,
past experience and other factors. The Group also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
receivables. In addition, the Group regularly reviews the recoverable amount
of trade receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk, with credit risk spread over a large number of counterparties and
customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity Risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between sustainability and
flexibility of funding through the use of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings. The Group reviews its liquidity position on an ongoing basis.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group has arrangements with various banks for the provision of mortgage
financing and, where required, provides our customers with guarantees as
security for mortgage loans. The terms of such guarantees typically last until
the issuance of the real estate ownership certificate upon the completion of
guarantee registration or satisfaction of mortgage loan by the purchaser. As
a guarantor, if the purchaser defaults in payment, the Group is obligated to
repay all outstanding amounts owed by the purchaser to the mortgagee bank
under the loan and have the right to claim such amount from the defaulting
purchaser. As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not incur any material
losses in respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities granted
to purchasers of the Group's completed properties held for sale. The Directors
considered that the likelihood of default in payments by purchasers is minimal
and therefore the financial guarantees measured at fair value was immaterial.
As such, no provision has been made in connection with the guarantees.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has provided guarantee to the banks
amounting to RMB35,685.8 million (2021: RMB40,093.5 million) in total for
the financing granted to the purchasers of the Group’s properties. As at 31
December 2022, the Group has provided guarantee to the banks and other
institutions amounting to RMB1,044.1 million (2021: RMB1,426.5 million)
in total for the financing granted to the Group's related companies. As at
31 December 2022, the Group did not have any outstanding loan capital,
bank overdrafts and acceptance liabilities or other similar indebtedness,
debentures, mortgages, charges or loans, or acceptance credits or hire
purchase commitments, guarantees or other material contingent liabilities
or any covenant. The Directors have confirmed that there had not been any
material change in the indebtedness, capital commitments and contingent
liabilities of the Group up to the latest practicable date for the purpose of the
indebtedness statement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERE W RO

Legal Contingents

The Group may be involved in lawsuits and other proceedings from time
to time during the ordinary course of business. The Group believes that the
liabilities resulting from these proceedings will not have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition or operating results.

Commitment

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had capital commitment of RMB24,893.2
million (2021: RMB23,147.5 million) in respect of properties under
development, merger and acquisition of equity interest and capital injection
for investment in joint ventures and associates.

Off-Balance Sheet Commitment and Arrangements

Save for the contingent liabilities disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022,
the Group did not have any outstanding loan capital issued or agreed to be
issued, bank overdrafts, loans, loan securities, borrowings or other similar
indebtedness, acceptance liabilities (save for normal commercial notes),
acceptance credits, debentures, mortgages, charges, finance lease or hire
purchase commitments, guarantees or other material contingent liabilities.

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has no other
significant investments held or material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

Future Plan for Significant Investment

The Group did not have any other immediate plans for material investments
and capital assets as at 31 December 2022.

Employees

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has a total of 2,257 employees (2021:
3,383 employees), with most of them were based in China. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, staff costs (including Directors) was approximately
RMB435.1 million (2021: approximately RMB605.6 million). The Group
determined the salary based on the qualifications, position and experience of
each employee. The Group has established a regular assessment mechanism
to assess the performance of our employees, the assessment results are used
as the basis for determining salary increment, bonuses and promotions.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTOR AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Ting Keung (M€ 38), aged 56, founded our Group in September
1996. Mr. Lam was appointed as our Director on 17 October 2019 and was re-
designated as our executive Director on 16 March 2020. Mr. Lam is currently
the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Group as well.
He is primarily responsible for the leadership, overall strategic planning, major
investment and decision making of our Group. Mr. Lam also has over 28 years
of experience in the PRC real estate industry.

Currently, Mr. Lam is a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (EBIBUA A R E2HEE )
since March 2013, a standing member of All-China Federation of Returned
Overseas Chinese (FRZEZFEFEEFH & F) since July 2009, a vice
president of the Overseas Chinese Charity Foundation of China (FEIZEFA
HE L E) since December 2015, a vice president of the Overseas Chinese
Entrepreneurs Association (FEfE @ # & &) since December 2010. He is
also a permanent honorary chairman of Hong Kong-Fujian Association (& &
BEMLEE), Hong Kong Federation Overseas Chinese Association (&7
BE B E) and Hong Kong-Fuzhou Shiyi Fellow Association (& 48 M
+ER4ME) since May 2008, December 2018 and July 2002, respectively. Mr.
Lam obtained the Enthusiastic Overseas Chinese Outstanding Contribution
Award (BUCvEINEEH A T H B BREE) granted by Overseas Chinese Affairs
Office of the State Council (BEl#5BRE#5H#/A %) in December 2017 and the
2018 Annual Overseas Chinese Charity Star (2018 FEEBENWEEZE)
granted by Overseas Chinese Charity Foundation of China (TEI#EEA &
£ ) in December 2018.

Mr. Lam is the father of Mr. Lam Yu, our executive Director.

Mr. Lam is the sole director of Radiance Group Holdings and Glowing Shine,
both of which have interests in the Shares that are discloseable under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Lam Yu (#%F), aged 32, was appointed as our Director on 17 October
2019 and was re-designated as our executive Director on 16 March 2020. Mr.
Lam Yu is also an executive president of our Group and is primarily responsible
for the management of Marketing Investment Management Centre of our
Group. He joined our Group in March 2011 as a director of Yancheng Jinhui
Juye and had been a director of our various subsidiaries.

Mr. Lam Yu participated in the Advanced Seminar for Chief Executive Officers
on Real Estate Development and Investment and Finance at Tsinghua
University CEZE RS2 FE M ZR & BE M E QS RIHEDD from May
2010 to March 2011.

Mr. Lam Yu is the son of Mr. Lam, our executive Director.
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Mr. Huang Junquan (£ R), aged 50, was appointed as our Director on
17 October 2019 and was redesignated as our executive Director on 16 March
2020. Mr. Huang is also a senior vice president of our Group and is primarily
responsible for the project operations and cost control of our Group. He
joined our Group in January 2009 as the vice president of Radiance Group and
was promoted as the senior vice president and director of Radiance Group in
September 2018.

From September 1995 to December 2005, Mr. Huang served in Xiamen
Zhongjian Northeast Architectural Design & Research Institute Co., Ltd. (/& P9
hE IR 5P A B2 F)) with his last position as the director in a branch
office, where he was primarily responsible for the design management of the
Fuzhou branch. From January 2006 to December 2008, he served as a director
in the Fuzhou branch of Beijing Zhonghuajian Planning and Design Institute
Co, Ltd. QERAERRBRXARRBRADEEDAF), where he
was primarily responsible for the design business and overall operation of
such company.

Mr. Huang obtained a bachelor’s degree in architecture from Tianjin University
(K7EAKZ)in the PRC in July 1995. He obtained qualifications for Class 1
Registered Architect (—#R&E 2 ZEET) granted by MOHURD, Ministry of
Human Resource and Social Security of the People’s Republic of China (F
EAREMBEANE R ERESD) formerly known as Ministry of
Personnel of the People’s Republic of China (FA#E A R HAE A FE=6)and
Fujian Provincial Department of Human Resource and Social Security in April
2001. He obtained the qualification of Senior Architect (75 4R 32 52 8) granted
by FREIRFEEILERFHIZERT (China Construction Northeast Architectural
Design & Research Institute) in September 2002. He is the vice president of
Fuzhou Real Fstate Association (8N B EX£H ) .

Mr. Xu Xiaodong, aged 40, has over 16 years of experience in financial
management, treasury management, capital market financing, risk
management and internal control management. Mr. Xu joined the Group in
December 2016 and was promoted as assistant executive president of the
Group in November 2020. In September 2021, Mr. Xu was appointed and
is currently serving as a director of Radiance Group, an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Xu is primarily responsible for the financial and treasury management
of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu worked at Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP, Deloitte & Touche LLP (Singapore),
China Resources Land Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1109), Sincere Holding Group Co., Ltd., Hopson
Development Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 754).

Mr. Xu is a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (CICPA), a fellow member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants (CIMA) and a member of China Certified Tax Agents
Association (CCTAA). Mr. Xu is also a qualified practitioner under the Securities
Association of China (SAC) and Asset Management Association of China
(AMACQ).

Mr. Xu holds a bachelor’s degree in science and management from Nanjing
University, a master's degree in professional accounting and a master's degree
in economics from Peking University and an MBA degree from Tsinghua
University. He is currently pursuing a doctorate degree at Emlyon business
school.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Huagiao (3R1E5#8), aged 59, was appointed as the independent
director of Radiance Group in June 2016. Mr. Zhang's appointment was solely
to enable him to serve as an independent director of Radiance Group upon
its listing on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the application for which was
still pending at the time of his appointment. As such listing has not taken
place, he has not taken part in the day-to-day operations and management
of Radiance Group or of the Group. Mr. Zhang was further appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 5 October 2020. Mr. Zhang is
primarily responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group.

From July 1994 to July 1995, Mr. Zhang worked as analyst in Equity Capital
Markets Department of Swiss Bank Corporation Warburg. From June
1999 to April 2006, he worked in the equities department of Union Bank
of Switzerland (Hong Kong branch) (%1 $#847), a Swiss multinational
investment bank and financial services company, with the last position as
the co-head of the China research team. From May 2006 to September 2008,
he served in Shenzhen Investment Limited GRIIFERRARAE) with his
last position as chief operation officer and executive director, a real estate
development company, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 0604). From September 2008 to June 2011, he was employed by
UBS AG with the last capacity as a deputy head of UBS China IBD with the
corporate rank of managing director in the Investment Banking Department.
From September 2011 to April 2012, he served as an executive director and
chief executive officer of Man Sang International Limited (R4 EIEARA
B]), a real estate development company, the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 0938).
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In addition, Mr. Zhang currently holds directorship in the following companies

listed on the Stock Exchange:

5N SR E BRIEE TN LB ABMNES !

Name of Entity Stock code Position and Period of Time
BRE%E B 15 X 55% B8 {1 Bz 12 HA
Fosun International Limited 0656 independent non-executive director;
since March 2012
EEBEREBRAS BIFMITES ;
H20126F38 e
Logan Property Holdings Company Limited 3380 independent non-executive director;
since November 2013
B EERBRAT BIFMITES ;
BH2013F 118
Zhong An Group Limited 0672 independent non-executive director;
since January 2013
MEZEEFRAE BIUIERNITES ;
H20134F1 B i
Luye Pharma Group Limited 2186 independent non-executive director;
since June 2014
HENEEEABRAR BIIFRITESE ;
H2014F6 A
Haitong International Securities Group Limited 0665 independent non-executive director;

BEERESFERBRAR
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BIUIFNITES ;
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Mr. Zhang also served as an independent non-executive director of
Yancoal Australia Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange (ASX code: YAL), from April 2014 to January 2018 and an
independent non-executive director of China Rapid Finance Ltd., the shares of
which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: XRF), from April
2017 to March 2019.

Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in financial and banking from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (AR & BF &8 A K 22) (formerly
known as Hubei Financial and Banking Institute GEJIEEF4822B%)) in July
1983. He also obtained a master’s degree in economics from both the
Graduate School of the People’s Bank of China (FRE] A R R1THHITESDR) in
the PRC in July 1986 and Australian National University in Australia in April
1991, respectively.

Mr. Tse Yat Hong (38 H BZ) , aged 53, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 5 October 2020. Mr. Tse is primarily responsible for
providing independent advice on the operations and management to our
Board.

From January 1994 to May 2000, Mr. Tse worked as an audit manager in an
international accounting firm. From June 2000 to May 2019, Mr. Tse worked
as the chief financial officer in Shenzhen International Holdings Limited
CRYIBEREEZERBRAE), the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0152), where he was primarily responsible for the
overall financial management and capital market operation of such company.
From August 2000 to March 2008, Mr. Tse also worked as the company
secretary of Shenzhen International Holdings Limited. From September 2004
to September 2007, Mr. Tse worked as a joint company secretary of Shenzhen
Expressway Company Limited CRIIBER AR D BRAE).

Mr. Tse is currently an independent non-executive director of China Bohai
Bank Co. Ltd. GE#/BIRT1TRRIDBIREAT), the H shares of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 9668), an independent non-executive
director of China Huirong Financial Holdings Limited (F1 Bl [E 84 & BRiZEE B
FR/AT)), the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1290) and an independent non-executive director of E-Star Commercial
Management Company Limited (2B £ BIERMHBERAE), the shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6668). Mr. Tse served
as a non-executive director of Shenzhen Expressway Company Limited (&
YIS ARERMAZ B EAT) from January 2009 to December 2017, the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0548) and the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600548), and served as an independent
non-executive director of Sky Light Holdings Limited (R¥IERERAT)
from December 2017 to November 2022, the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 3882).

Mr. Tse obtained a bachelor 's degree in science from Monash University in
Australia in April 1992. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA) and a FCPA of CPA Australia.

Mr. Chung Chong Sun ($E81¥f), aged 47, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 5 October 2020. Mr. Chung is primarily responsible
for providing independent advice on the operations and management of our
Group.
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From July 1997 to May 2000, Mr. Chung worked as an associate of the
investment bank department in Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) as
his last position, where he was primarily responsible for the projects of initial
public offering, corporate finance and financial advice. From May 2000 to July
2001, Mr. Chung worked as a senior executive in Deloitte & Touche Corporate
Finance Limited, where he was primarily responsible for the projects of
initial public offering, corporate finance and financial advice. From August
2001 to August 2003, Mr. Chung worked as an associate director of merger
and acquisition department in Cooperative Rabobank U.A. Hong Kong
Branch, a Dutch multinational banking and financial services company. From
August 2003 to December 2005, Mr. Chung worked as an investor support
officer in InvestHK of the government of Hong Kong. From December 2005
to September 2018, Mr. Chung worked as senior vice president of Issuer
Services, Market Development Department in Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited. From September 2018 to July 2019, Mr. Chung worked as
a chief financial officer in Xiaoi Robot Technology (H.K.) Limited, where he
was primarily responsible for financial functions, risk management, fund
raising, capital market operation and investor relations. He has been the
director of Resourceful Minds Limited CEE&B FR/A ) since September
2019, a consulting company, where he has been primarily responsible for the
development strategies and daily operation of such company.

Mr. Chung is currently an independent non-executive director of Strawbear
Entertainment Group (TEEREIREEE),
distributor in the PRC, covering the investment, development, production and
distribution of TV series and web series, whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2125)

a drama series producer and

Mr. Chung obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in May 1997. He is also a CPA
of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a CPA of Washington
State Board of Accountancy and a CFA of CFA Institute. Mr. Chung has been

appointed as a member of the Advisory committee of “IT Innovation Lab"

in Secondary School Initiative of Hong Kong secondary schools by the
government of Hong Kong since September 2020. He had also been served
as a contact convener of the artificial intelligence and high technology
committee in Hong Kong Chamber of Commerce in China (Shanghai) (FR[El
FE (&) mg— L8) from November 2018 to November 2019.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chiu Ngam (#3), was appointed as our chief financial officer and
company secretary in August 2019 and November 2019, respectively, and is
primarily responsible for the financial management and company secretarial
matters of our Group. Mr. Chiu obtained a bachelor’s degree in business
administration from Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
Hong Kong. He is also a FCPA of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), a CPA of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a CPA of Washington State Board of Accountancy, a member of
INSOL International, a member of taxation faculty of HKICPA and a member
of restructuring and insolvency faculty of HKICPA. Mr. Chiu has over 20 years
of experience in accounting, financial management, merger and acquisition,
capital market financing and listing compliance. He had served in numerous
companies listed on the main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
has been appointed as chief financial officer for more than 10 years in China
real estate industry. Mr. Chiu has been awarded “The Best CFO Award" of “Year
2021 China Financing Awards” by China Financial Market Magazine.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chiu Ngam was appointed as our company secretary on 19 November
2019. For further details of his qualification and experience, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Senior management”in this section.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2022, the Board consists of four executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lam Ting Keung (Chairman), Mr. Lam Yu, Mr. Huang Junquan and
Mr. Xu Xiaodong and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Zhang Huagiao, Mr. Tse Yat Hong, and Mr. Chung Chong Sun.

Mr. Lam Ting Keung is the father of Mr. Lam Yu, an executive Director.
Other than that, there are no financial, business, family or other material
relationships among the members of the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has at all times met
the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors with
at least one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The three independent non-executive Directors represent more
than one-third of the Board, complying with the requirement under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules whereby independent non-executive directors of a
listed issuer must represent at least one-third of the board. The Board believes
there is sufficient independence element in the Board to safeguard the
interest of Shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board performed the following
corporate governance duties:

1. reviewed the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance;

2. reviewed the compliance with Model Code for Directors;

3. reviewed the training and continuous professional development of
Directors;

4. reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management system and internal

control system; and

5. reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and
oversees all major matters of the Company, including the formulation and
approval of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitor the performance of the senior executives.
All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith and in compliance
with the standards of applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times. As at 31 December
2022, the Board comprised seven Directors, including four executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors. Their names and biographical
details are set out in the “Biographies of Director and senior management”
section of this report. Liability insurance for Directors and senior management
of the Company is maintained by the Company with appropriate coverage
for certain legal liabilities which may arise in the course of performing their
duties.

The Board has also established mechanisms to ensure independent views
are available to the Board, including providing the Directors with sufficient
resources to perform its duties and shall seek, at the Company’s expense,
independent professional advice to perform its responsibilities if necessary.
The Board shall at all times comprise at least three independent non-
executive Directors that represent at least one-third of the Board, such that
there is always a strong element of independence on the Board which can
effectively exercise independent judgment. All the Directors, including the
independent non-executive Directors, are given equal opportunity and
channels to communicate and express their views to the Board and have
separate and independent access to the management of the Group in order
to make informed decisions. The chairman of the Board will hold meetings
with the independent non-executive Directors without the involvement of
other Directors at least annually to discuss any issues and concerns. Any
Director or his/her associate who has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than by written resolutions. Such Director will be required to declare his/
her interests before the meeting and abstain from voting and not counted
towards the quorum on the relevant resolutions. Independent non-executive
Directors who, and whose associates, have no interest in the matter should
attend the Board meeting. The Board has reviewed and considered that the
mechanisms are effective in ensuring that independent views and input are
provided to the Board during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRELARS

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The management, consisting of executive Directors along with other senior
executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing the strategy
and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time, and conducting the
day-to-day management and operations of the Group. Executive Directors and
senior executives meet regularly to review the performance of the businesses
of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and
operational decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as to their powers
of management including circumstances where management should report
back, and will review the delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to
ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also
acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are published in a timely manner. The Directors are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the consolidated financial
statements of the Group on a going concern basis.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in the Board
by virtue of their independent judgment and their views carry significant
weight in the Board's decision. The functions of independent non-executive
Directors include bringing an impartial view and judgement on issues of
the Company's strategies, performance and control; and scrutinising the
Company'’s performance and monitoring performance reporting.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management experience and have
made positive contributions to the development of the Company through
providing their professional advice to the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of three
years.
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Confirmation of independence

The independence of the independent non-executive Directors has been
assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing Rules and each of
the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual written
confirmation of independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and are independent.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the approach
to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting the attainment of the
Company'’s strategic objectives and sustainable development. The Company
seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number of
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard to
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge, skills and experience,
including commercial property operation, overall business management,
finance and investment. They obtained degrees in various majors including
business administration, electrical engineering and automation, real estate,
computerized accounting. The Company has three independent non-
executive Directors who have different industry backgrounds, representing
over one-third of our Board members. Furthermore, the Board has a wide
range of age, ranging from 32 years old to 59 years old. We have taken
and will continue to take steps to promote gender diversity at all levels
of our Company, including but without limitation at our Board and senior
management levels. Taking into account our business model and specific
needs, we consider that the composition of the Board satisfies our board
diversity policy.
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With regard to gender diversity on the Board, all Board members are male
and the Company is aware that a single gender Board will not be considered
as having achieved gender diversity. The board diversity policy further
provides that the Board shall take opportunities to increase the proportion
of female members over time when selecting and making recommendations
on suitable candidates for Board appointments. The Board would ensure
that appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved with reference to
stakeholders’ expectation and international and local recommended best
practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing our Board to gender parity. Going
forward and with a view to developing a pipeline of potential successors to
the Board that may meet the targeted gender diversity ratio set out below,
we will (i) continue to make appointments based on merits with reference
to board diversity as a whole; (i) take steps to promote gender diversity at
all levels of the Group by recruiting staff of different gender; (iii) consider the
possibility of nominating female management staff who has the necessary
skills and experience to the Board; and (iv) provide career development
opportunities and more resources in training female staff with the aim of
promoting them to the senior management or board of the Company so
that we will have a pipeline of female senior management and potential
successors to our Board in a few years' time.

The Nomination Committee will use its best efforts to identify and
recommend female candidates to the Board for consideration for
appointment as Directors with an ultimate aim to achieve at least 20% female
representation in the Board within five years of Listing, subject to there being
suitable candidates and the Directors being satisfied with the qualification
and experience of the relevant candidates after a reasonable review process
based on selection criteria designed with the best interests of the Company's
business in mind. The Directors will exercise fiduciary duties in the process,
acting in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole
when making the relevant appointments.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring diversity of the Board
members and will use its best efforts to identify and recommend suitable
candidates, including female candidates, for the Board's consideration. We also
welcome candidates of different gender to apply for our mid to senior level
positions. The ultimate decision of the appointment will be based on merits
and the contribution which the selected candidates could bring to our Board
and management team. The Board believes that such merit-based selection
criteria will best enable the Company to serve the Shareholders and other
stakeholders going forward.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of 3 years.
Such term is subject to his retirement by rotation and re-election at an annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company's Articles
of Association. Pursuant to the Article 16.2 of the Articles, the Board shall have
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

Pursuant to the Article 16.19 of the Articles, at every annual general meeting
of the Company one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but
not less than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Any Director required to
stand for re-election pursuant to Article 16.2 shall not be taken into account
in determining the number of Directors and which Directors are to retire by
rotation. A retiring Director shall retain office until the close of the meeting at
which he retires and shall be eligible for re-election thereat. The Company at
any annual general meeting at which any Directors retire may fill the vacated
office by electing a like number of persons to be Directors.

Pursuant to the Article 16.6 of the Articles, the Company may by ordinary
resolution at any time remove any Director (including a Managing Director
or other executive Director) before the expiration of his period of office
notwithstanding anything in these Articles or in any agreement between the
Company and such Director and may by ordinary resolution elect another
person in his stead. Any person so elected shall hold office during such
time only as the Director in whose place he is elected would have held
the same if he had not been removed. Nothing in this Article should be
taken as depriving a Director removed under any provision of this Article of
compensation or damages payable to him in respect of the termination of
his appointment as Director or of any other appointment or office as a result
of the termination of his appointment as Director or as derogatory from any
power to remove a Director which may exist apart from the provision of this
Article.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

On the first occasion of each Director’s appointment, the Company would
arrange a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction session on his/her
appointment to ensure he/she would have a proper understanding of the
Company'’s businesses and operations as well as his/her responsibilities under
relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations as a director of a listed company.

As part of continuous professional development of the Directors, the
Company also provides briefings and other trainings to develop and refresh
the Director’s knowledge and skills. and continuously update Directors on
the latest developments regarding the Group's business, the Listing Rules and
other applicable legal and regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all the Directors namely, Mr. Lam
Ting Keung, Mr. Lam Yu, Mr. Huang Junquan, Mr. Chen Chaorong (resigned on
25 March 2022), Mr. Xu Xiaodong (appointed on 25 March 2022), Mr. Zhang
Huagiao, Mr. Tse Yat Hong and Mr. Chung Chong Sun, have complied
with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code and participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means of communications.

Pursuant to code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, the Board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four times a year.
In addition to regular Board meetings, the Directors also participate in
deliberation and approval of routine and operational matters of the Company
by way of written resolutions with supporting explanatory materials,
supplemented by additional written information from the management when
required. Additional Board meetings would be held whenever warranted.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company held four Board
meetings and one general meeting. Apart from that, the chairman also held a

meeting solely with the independent non-executive Directors.

The attendance record of each Director is set out below:
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BRESHLFECHROT
Number of meetings attended/

Number of meetings held for the year ended
31 December 2022

#E2022F12A31HLEE
HEGERY RITEERY
Name of Directors Board General meeting
EEH4 BEg BRRXE
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Lam Ting Keung MIE 58 ST 4/4 1
Mr. Lam Yu MFHRE 4/4 1/1
Mr. Huang Jinquan BEREE 4/4 11
Mr. Chen Chaorong® FREAZS 4D 0/0 0/0
Mr. Xu Xiaodong® RNZFRED 4/4 11
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIERITES
Mr. Zhang Huagiao RICE A 4/4 1/1
Mr. Tse Yat Hong HBRELE 4/4 11
Mr. Chung Chong Sun Al At 4/4 11
Notes: B 5
(1) Mr. Chen Chaorong resigned on 25 March 2022. (1) BREAEE S AR 20224325 B BT ©

(2) Mr. Xu Xiaodong was appointed on 25 March 2022.
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EXRELARS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct for the
Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company. Upon specific enquiries
of all the Directors, each of them has confirmed that he had complied with
all applicable code provisions under the Model Code for the year ended 31
December 2022.

As required by the Company, relevant officers and employees of the Company
are also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits them to deal in securities
of the Company at any time when he/she possesses inside information of the
Group. No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code by the relevant
officers and employees was noted by the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The determination to pay dividends will be made at the discretion of our
Directors, depending on our results of operations, working capital, financial
position, future prospects, and capital requirements, as well as any other
factors which our Directors may consider relevant. Dividends may be paid
only out of our distributable profits as permitted under the relevant laws.
Any final dividend distribution shall also be subject to the approval of the
Shareholders in a Shareholders’ meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating elements of good
corporate governance in the management structures and internal procedures
of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability. The Company is
committed to the view that the Board should include a balanced composition
of executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors so that there
is a strong independent element on the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgment. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company has has applied the principles of good corporate governance and
complied with the code provisions as set out in Part 2 of the CG Code except
for the deviation from CG Code provision C.2.1 for reasons set out below.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CG Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Lam Ting Keung is the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company. In view of the fact that Mr. Lam has
been taking up day-to-day responsibilities in operating and managing the
Group since its establishment, the Board believes that it is in the best interest
of the Group to have Mr. Lam Ting Keung taking up both roles for effective
management and business development. Therefore, the Directors consider
that the deviation from CG Code provision CS.2.1 is appropriate in such
circumstance.

Notwithstanding the above, the Board views that such management structure
is effective for the Group's operations and sufficient checks and balances are
in place.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees with specific written terms of
reference to oversee particular aspects of the Group's affairs. All the Board
committees are empowered by the Board under their own terms of reference
which have been posted on Stock Exchange's website and/or the Company’s
website.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee in compliance with Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules with written terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code set forth in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on 5 October 2020. The
primary duties of our Audit Committee are to assist our Board by providing
an independent view of the effectiveness of our Group's financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management system, to monitor the scope,
effectiveness and results of internal audit functions, to oversee the audit
process, to develop and review our policies and to perform other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by our Board.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chung Chong Sun (being the chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Zhang Huagiao and Mr. Tse Yat Hong.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee held two & ZE2022F12831HLELEE > BZEZEGHAA AT SHRE
meetings with the senior management and independent auditor of the IEABRBIUZEMERITMRNGH > ZEBILZEMY
Company to consider the independence and audit scope of independent I MR BIZEHBE > WEMETHAREELRANIEZTZR
auditor, and to review and discuss the risk management and internal control ~ #i~ AT RN BT INEMN B - XA TN PR EE
systems, the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function, interim M EREURBUZBANEZERRBRE  REBEOESQE
and annual financial statements of the Company and the opinion and report ¥R & Ie 22t o

of independent auditor before reporting and submitting to the Board for their

approval.
The attendance of each member is as follows: ERENHERROT
Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings held
for the year ended
31 December 2022
HZE20225F
128318 LEE
HESERY BITEERY
Name of members Audit Committee
A= 2 BRERE
Mr. Chung Chong Sun (Audit Committee Chairman) — S8Rk (BEREZE LT /E) 3/3
Mr. Zhang Huagjiao RIEBRE 3/3
Mr. Tse Yat Hong HBEREEE 3/3
Remuneration Committee NEEE

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written terms AR BF202051085H IR £ iR A 553 2516 5 1L #r Bl
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules on 5 October ZHE& > WUEHEIBEBELSE - FHNEETHNTER
2020. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include to establish ~ EEESIFI RIBFTEE RS K SIEENHINBR L2 E
and review the policy and structure of the remuneration for our Directors MUFLBREGH ZHRHEDR  Uigst Kt EFB LS
and senior management, to make recommendations on employee benefit  FREIE+HZIETFRDTEINET -

arrangement and to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes

under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, two of whom are  HMEZEGBE=Z%ME  EFMBABIIFERTESE -
independent non-executive Directors. The three members are Mr. Zhang =% EAREBLE GTMEZESER) FHEELER
Huagiao (being the chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Tse Yat ~ MF L4 ©

Hong and Mr. Lam Yu.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration Committee
held two meetings to review the remuneration structure of the Directors and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and senior management for 2022.
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The attendance of each member is as follows: ZEMENEFERHUWT
Number of meetings
attended/Number of
meetings held
for the year ended
31 December 2022
#E20225F
128318 LLFE
HEEERY ETEERY
Name of members Remuneration Committee
MEHH HNEEE
Mr. Zhang Huagiao (Remuneration Committee RIEBEE FHWEZE 8L /E) 2/2

Chairman)

Mr. Tse Yat Hong BHBESE 2/2
Mr. Lam Yu MFERL 2/2

Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on 5
October 2020. The primary duties of our Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of members of the Board.

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, two of whom are
independent non-executive Directors. The three members are Mr. Lam (being
the chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Zhang Huagiao and Mr.
Chung Chong Sun.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee held & ZE2022F12831RLEFE BREESH BT —XTH
one meeting to review the structure and composition of the Board and its MBEHEZEREZETNRERENR ; THEMESTE
committees, made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment HHRESFSIERHMEERZUARIEBIIFNTESNIEIL
of Directors and assessed the independence of independent non-executive %o

Directors.
The attendance of each member is as follows: EHMENHFERHFUWT -
Number of meetings
attended/Number of
meetings held
for the year ended
31 December 2022
HE20225
12A31HLEFE
HETERY RITEEXRH
Name of members Nomination Committee
REHH REEZEg
Mr. Lam Ting Keung MERBRSE GEHZEELE) 11
(Nomination Committee Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Huagjiao RIEBRE 11
Mr. Chung Chong Sun Al E 11
Nomination policy IRABBER

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods for identifying ERZESHEBZTEHIANSHESREA  QHEEETH
candidates for directorship, including recommendations from Board members, B -BEEBREXRBRABANEB N RBLEETH
management, and professional search firms. In addition, the Nomination ZEMRREBERHNESHEEA - RLESETHESE
Committee will consider candidates for directorship properly submitted FEAMNFEEEELRREREBRBER TELE B 1Z
by the Shareholders. The evaluation of candidates for directorship by the BREREABERETHSEE - BEETBEEZERLE
Nomination Committee may include, without limitation, review of resume EBNEBRBZTSEIETESREN HRRZEBLE
and job history, personal interviews, verification of professional and personal AT R AT EHETESE > ST EENREANEELE
references and performance of background checks. The Board will consider > MIEHEBEREHATHRAEANMICES SN E > /HE
the recommendations of the Nomination Committee and is responsible EHEYBABRBANSSRET FAEENESTHELS
for designating the candidates for directorship to be considered by the {THK " HRHFEH (HPHBPELITESNWEBERR LK
Shareholders for their election at the general meeting of the Company, or  ff) FE&R o

appointing the suitable candidate to act as Director to fill the Board vacancies

or as an additional to the Board members, subject to compliance of the

constitutional documents of the Company. All appointments of Director

should be confirmed by letter of appointment and/or service contract setting

out the key terms and conditions of the appointment of Directors.
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The Nomination Committee should consider the following qualifications as a
minimum to be required for a candidate in recommending to the Board to be
a potential new Director, or the continued service of existing Director:

- the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

- proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field and the
ability to exercise sound business judgment;

- skills that are complementary to those of the existing Board;

- the ability to assist and support management and make significant
contributions to the Company's success;

- an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is required for
a member of the Board and the commitment of time and energy
necessary to diligently carry out those responsibilities;

- independence: the candidates for independent non-executive
directorship should meet the “independence” criteria as required under
the Listing Rules and the composition of the Board is in conformity
with the provisions of the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL REPORTING SYSTEM, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Financial reporting system

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group.
The directors prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis,
International Financial Reporting Standards have been adopted and the
appropriate accounting policies have been consistently used and applied.
The Board aims to present a clear and balanced assessment of the Group's
performance in the annual and interim reports to the Shareholders, and make
appropriate disclosure and announcements in a timely manner. Pursuant
to code provision D.1.1 of the Code, management would provide such
explanation and information to the Board as will enable the Board to make
an informed assessment of the financial and other information put before the
Board for approval.

The work scope and reporting responsibilities of Ernst & Young, the
Company'’s external auditor, are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report”
on pages 92 to 98 of this report.
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Risk management and internal control system

The Board has established a comprehensive risk management and internal
control system, which consist of an organization framework, as well as
policies, procedures and risk management methods that the Board considers
to be appropriate for our business operations. The system is designed to
allow us to identify, report and address those risk and incidents that may
significantly affect our performance or otherwise expose us to significant
losses, liability or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The risk management system comprises the formulation and implantation
of a set of policies and procedures relating to relevant risk areas, including
compliance with laws and regulations, construction quality, work safety and
environmental matters. We are constantly monitoring the effectiveness of our
risk management system. The Board oversees the implementation of the risk
management and internal control measures and is responsible with reviewing
the effectiveness of such system. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. The Board is responsible for approving our business and investment
plans, adjusting the risk management plans and strategies in response to
risks identified in our business operations. The internal control system covers
various aspects of the operations, including information system control,
procurement and accounts payable control, cash management, compensation
management and financial reporting control. The Company has an internal
audit function which has also been carried out under the leadership of the
Board and the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has implemented
procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. In particular, the Group:

- has conducted its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission in June 2012;

- has established its own disclosure obligation procedures, which set
out the procedures and controls for the assessment of potential inside
information and the handling and dissemination of inside information.
The procedures have been communicated to the senior management
and staff of the Company, and their implementation was monitored by
the Company; and

- has made broad, non-exclusive disclosure of information to the public
through channels such as financial reports, public announcements and
its website.

The risk management and internal control systems are reviewed and assessed
on an on-going basis by the Audit Committee and the executive Directors,
and will be further reviewed and assessed at least once each year by the
Board. During the year ended 31 December 2022, these systems covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
were reviewed and considered effective and adequate.
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The Company also maintains strict anti-corruption policies to recognize
and deal with bribery and corruption and to handle corporate donation
and sponsorship activities of the Group, which applies to all employees and
related third parties who deal with the Group. The Company has a whistle-
blowing policy that serves the purpose of establishing whistle-blowing
procedures for employees and other relevant external parties of our Company,
in order to report and escalate any suspicious misconducts. In accordance
with the policy, we protect all whistle-blowers from any kind of retaliation. All
the information provided by the whistle-blowers will be strictly confidential.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration paid or payable to
Ernst and Young in respect of its audit services and non-audit services was
approximately RMB5.8 million and HK$68,000, respectively. The non-audit
services in 2022 consisted of taxation consulting services.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has adopted full disclosure of remunerations of Directors
with disclosure in note 8 to the financial statements. The remuneration of
the Directors is determined with reference to salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and
performance of the Group.

The remuneration of the members of senior management by bands in 2022 is
set out below:

Remuneration bands

g E
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Number of individuals
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HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,00178 75 2 3,500,00078 7T 1

COMPANY SECRETARY

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Chiu Ngam confirmed
that for the year ended 31 December 2022, he has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training. The biography of Mr. Chiu is set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Director and senior management”on page 57
of this report.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 12.3 of the Articles, one or more Shareholders holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles or the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands for Shareholders to put forward new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a new resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the procedures
set out in the above paragraph heading “Convening an extraordinary general
meeting”.

Shareholders’ communication policy

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholder is
essential to enhance investor relations and to keep investors informed of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company has established
various and a wide range of communication channels with Shareholders,
including general meeting, annual results and interim results, annual and
interim reports, announcements and circulars and performance conference.
To facilitate the communication between the Company and investors, the
Company holds meetings, briefings and roadshows with investors and
analysts from time to time. Apart from that, the Company invites investors
and business stakeholders to visit our management site every now and then,
giving them the opportunities to meet with the local management and visit
our facilities. Shareholders may make enquires with the Company through
channels mentioned above, and provide comments and recommendations
to the Directors or managements at any time. Upon receipt of written
enquiries from Shareholders, the Company will make actual responses to the
shareholders as soon as possible.

In addition, the Company updates its website from time to time to keep
the Shareholders updated of the recent development of the Company. The
Company endeavors to maintain an ongoing dialogue with shareholders.
At the annual general meeting, the Directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) will be available to meet with the Shareholders and answer their

enquiries. The Company considers the implementation of the Shareholders’

communication policy during 2022 was effective.
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Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time make enquiries to the Board in writing to the
Board or its company secretary at the principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Unit 6709, 67/F, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong or by email at irhk@radiance.com.cn or directly by raising questions at
general meetings.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year ended 31 December 2022. The latest version of the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles is available on the Company's website and the
Stock Exchange’s website.
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EEERE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in property development. An analysis of the Group's
revenue and operating results for the year ended 31 December 2022 by its
principal activities is set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group on page 106 to 126 in this report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out
in the “Chairman’s Statement” section of this report and the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the Group on
page 99 of this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

General

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion on the Group’s future
business development during the year are set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 12 to 16 and pages 19 to 50, respectively, of this report. An analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is set out in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”on pages 19
to 50 of this report. Particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2022
are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements on page 235 in
this report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties the Group faces include (i) risks related to the
performance of the economic conditions in the PRC and the PRC property
markets; (i) uncertainty as to identifying desirable locations or acquiring
land use rights for future property development on favorable terms; (iii)
uncertainty as to obtaining sufficient funding for land acquisitions and future
developments and capital resources may not be available on favorable terms;
(iv) risks related to the fluctuation of profitability of property projects; (v)
risks related to the government policies and regulations regarding the PRC
property industry; and (vi) risks related to the increasing raw materials price
and labor costs.

The Group's financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Environmental policies and performance

It is the Group's corporate and social responsibility in promoting a sustainable
and environmental friendly environment, and the Group strives to minimise
its environmental impact and comply with the applicable environmental
laws and regulations. The measures it takes to ensure its compliance with the
applicable environmental laws and regulations include: (i) strictly selecting
construction contractors and supervising the process of construction; (ii)
applying for review by the relevant government authorities in a timely manner
after the project is completed; and (iii) actively adopting environmentally
friendly equipment and designs. The Group also takes voluntary actions with
respect to environmental protection and make energy conservation and
emission reduction as primary considerations when designing its property
projects. None of the Group's properties had received any material fines or
penalties associated with the breach of any environmental laws or regulations
during the year ended 31 December 2022. The 2022 Environmental, Social
and Governance Report of the Group shall be published separately.

Relationship with Employees

The Group believes high-quality employees who value its corporate culture
are essential elements to promote its sustainable growth. The Group
intends to attract and retain skilled and talented employees from reputable
universities of PRC through various initiatives, including creative trainee
programs, competitive compensation packages and effective incentive
system. To motivate, attract and retain employees, the Company has adopted
the Share Option Scheme. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
the section headed "Director’s report — Share Option Scheme”.

For details regarding employees and staff costs and the emolument policy of
the Group, please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Employees”.

Details of the pension obligations of the Group are set out in Note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Employee Diversity

As at 31 December 2022, the Company has achieved a 57:43 ratio of females
to males in the workforce (including senior management) and the Board
considers that gender diversity across the workforce has been achieved.
The Company will continue to encourage diversity at workforce level and it
has put in place appropriate recruitment and selection practices such that
a diverse range of candidates with different age, gender and experiences
are considered. The Group has also established talent management and
training programs to provide career development guidance and promotion
opportunities to develop a broad and diverse pool of skilled and experienced
employees.

Relationship with Suppliers

The Group is dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers as
long-term business partners to ensure stability of the Group’s businesses. It
reinforces business partnerships with suppliers by ongoing communication
in a proactive and effective manner. For further details regarding the Group's
major suppliers, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report — Major
Customers and Suppliers”.
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Relationship with Customers

Customers satisfaction with services and products has a profound effect
on the profitability. The Group's dedicated sales team is in constant
communication with its customers and potential customers to uncover
and create customer needs and help customers make informed decisions.
Identification of customers’ pain points alongside grasping the market trend
are critical for the Group to timely adjust our operating strategies to fit the
market requirement. For details regarding the Group's major customers,
please refer to the sections headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and
Suppliers”.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with the Shares listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The Group's subsidiaries are
incorporated in the BVI, Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group's operations are
mainly carried out by the Group's subsidiaries in China while the Group also
has a corporate and administrative office in Hong Kong.

Its establishments and operations accordingly shall comply with relevant
laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the BVI, the PRC and Hong
Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
report, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in
the Cayman Islands, the BVI, the PRC and Hong Kong that have a significant
impact on the Group.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend payment of final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: HKO.16 dollars).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Changes to the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the Group's borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2022
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has 4,045,227,000 Shares in
issue.

SENIOR NOTES AND CORPORATE BONDS

Details of senior notes and corporate bonds of the Company during the year
are set out in note 33 and note 34 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

On 5 December 2022, Radiance Group, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has issued the First Tranche of 2022 Medium Term
Notes with a principal amount of RMB1,200 million at a coupon rate of 4.00%
and it is a three-year bond.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out on pages 211 and pages
236 to 237 of this report. In respect of Company, the amount of reserves
available for distribution under the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands as
at 31 December 2022 was RMB466.6 million.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE GROUP

2022 Notes

On 10 January 2022, an aggregate principal amount of US$142,588,000 of
the 2022 Notes purchased by Radiance Capital during the year ended 31
December 2021 have been cancelled. On 16 January 2022, Radiance Capital
redeemed the 2022 Notes in full at their outstanding principal amount of
USS$157,412,000 together with interest accrued to the maturity date. Upon
redemption of the outstanding 2022 Notes, all the redeemed 2022 Notes have
been cancelled.

2023 Notes

Between 14 January 2022 to 29 March 2022, Radiance Capital purchased the
2023 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of US$75,129,000 in the open
market.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Radiance Capital has purchased
the 2023 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of US$75,129,000 (the
"Repurchased 2023 Notes’) in the open market, representing approximately
30.05% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2023 Notes originally issued.

On 16 June 2022, put option of an aggregate principal amount of
US$107,687,000 of the 2023 Notes had been exercised. Upon the exercise of
put option, an aggregate principal amount of US$107,687,000 of the 2023
Notes have been cancelled.

As at 31 December 2022, aggregate principal amount of US$107,687,000
of the 2023 Notes has been cancelled, and the aggregate principal amount
of the 2023 Notes which remained outstanding was US$142,313,000,
representing 56.93% of the initial aggregate principal amount of the 2023
Notes.
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Save as disclosed in this report, the Company and its subsidiaries did not
purchase, sell or redeem any of the listed securities of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022
amounted to RMB28.0 million (2021: RMB14.1 million).

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the state
of the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 99 to 237 in this report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of
this annual report were:

FRAREFTINEEIN BE2022F12831HIEEE » KAT
REFHEKNBABNEEE - HERBELAEETMA LH
FHo
ti=E o

REEHE202F 12831 HIEFEFHBIERA ARK280
BB (2021F  ARM141B 8T ©

M=

AEBEBHE20NENANBILEEFENEERAEBRZH
BRI RE N A REFOERTENGEHFRE -
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HE2Q0NFNANHIEFERBEEAFHRAENESS

Name of director Position EEES BR i1

Mr. Lam Ting Keung Executive Director MERIE HITES

Mr. Lam Yu Executive Director MFHEE HITES

Mr. Huang Junquan Executive Director =mEREE HITES

Mr. Chen Chaorong Executive Director RS HITESR
(resigned on 25 March 2022) (7820224F 3525 H §F1F)

Mr. Xu Xiaodong Executive Director wmINE HITES
(appointed on 25 March 2022) (32202243525 H Z1F)

Mr. Zhang Huagjiao Independent non-executive Director RICHELE BIUIEHITES

Mr. Tse Yat Hong Independent non-executive Director HHESLE BIUERITES

Mr. Chung Chong Sun Independent non-executive Director fERIFT ST BIUIERITES

In accordance with Article 16.19 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible
for re-election.

The Company at the general meeting at which a Director retires may fill the
vacated office. Accordingly, Mr. Lam Yu, Mr. Zhang Huagiao and Mr. Tse Yat
Hong shall retire from office by rotation at the 2023 AGM and being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company and each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed
an appointment letter with the Company for a term of 3 years. None of the
Directors who are proposed for election or re-election at the 2023 AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation. There
is no arrangement under which a director has waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a
business that competed or might likely compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of Mr. Lam, being the executive Director and the Controlling
Shareholder, Ms. Lam, Radiance Group Holdings and Glowing Shine, all being
the Controlling Shareholders, has confirmed to the Company that, since the
Listing Date and up to 31 December 2022 he/she/it has complied with the
Deed of Non-competition dated 13 October 2020 (the “Undertakings”) as
disclosed in the Prospectus.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the status of
compliance and the confirmation provided by the Controlling Shareholders
as part of the annual review process. On the basis that: (i) the Company has
received the confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders regarding
the Undertakings; (ii) there was no competing business reported by the
Controlling Shareholders; and (iii) there was no particular situation rendering
the full compliance of the Undertakings being questionable, the independent
non-executive Directors are of the view that the Undertakings have been
complied with and been enforced by the Company in accordance with the
terms.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Share Option Scheme

1) Purpose
The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme established
to recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the Eligible
Participants (as defined in paragraph (2) below) had or may have
made to our Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible
Participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in our Company
with the view to achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimize their performance
efficiency for the benefit of our Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going business
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of our Group.
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2)  Participants

3)

4)

5)

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to the
following persons (collectively the “Eligible Participants”) to subscribe
for such number of new Shares as the Board may determine at an
exercise price determined in accordance with paragraph (6) below:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of
our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including independent non-executive directors) of
our Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisors, consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors and
such other persons who in the sole opinion of the Board will
contribute or have contributed to our Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

Maximum number of Shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate of the Shares in issue on
the Listing Date, and such 10% limit represents 400,000,000 Shares,
representing approximately 9.89% of the total Shares in issue as at the
date of this report.

Maximum number of options to any one individual

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of grant.

Acceptance and exercise of options

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer document
constituting acceptances of the options duly signed by the grantee,
together with a remittance in favor of the Company of HK$1.00 by way
of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the Company on
or before the relevant acceptance date.

The exercise period of any share option granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion but such period must not exceed ten years from the date
of grant of the relevant share option. There is no minimum period
specified by the Share Option Scheme, for which the option must be
held before it can be exercised.
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6)

7)

Price of Shares

The subscription price for a Share under the Share Option Scheme shall
be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, but must be at
least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must be a day
on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing
in securities;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

The duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective until 4 October
2030, i.e. for the period of ten years commencing from the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, after which no further
options shall be granted, but in all other respects the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to the
extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any options granted
prior thereto or otherwise as may be required in accordance with
the provisions of the rules of the Share Option Scheme. As at the
date of the report, the remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is
approximately 7 years and 6 months.

For further details of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the
section headed “Statutory and general information — D. Share Option
scheme”in Appendix V to the Prospectus.

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to the date
of this report, no option has been granted by the Company pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme. The number of options available for
grant under the Share Option Scheme as at 1 January 2022 and as at
31 December 2022 remained at 400,000,000 Shares.

6)

7)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO which were required to be entered in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were otherwise
required, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code, are set out below:

Interests in shares of the Company

Name of Director/

Chief Executive Nature of Interest

+
t

mp el

72022512831 B EENEAABR

SHEAEER (E

ERBHITEABRS AT RN A
B (O BE 5 ~ ARG 1D R (B HEB OB S R 3

SITBRABRAAF
RBHF MG RAIFEXVER) HIEM *ﬁ

A R 17 e (5 i ¢ EEP%&E AIRBEFRIBEHRME2EE

SERERBAEENE
HrAZ PRI kBT ¢

RARB RO ER

Number of Shares or
underlying Shares

Dﬂﬂﬂjfﬁffﬁiﬂi‘%+vﬁu%ﬂ§2&@7}i’z

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

&5 5
BEE BETHABHS EHEEE RS EE B4R B o LE
Mr. Lam Interest in controlled corporations "ot 3,400,000,000 84.05%
Mo E KR EE R m e
Notes: B5E -
(1) Pursuant to Division 7 of Part XV of the SFO, 3,400,000,000 Shares held by Mr. (1) REFSRPEROAEXVEF7 D MEERFEDN

Lam are deemed corporate interests through Radiance Group Holdings and
Glowing Shine.

Interests in shares/debentures of associated corporations of
the Company

3,400,000,000f¢ R A WA BB e BERZER KAIBRENA

B o

RARBBEEBRG M(EEENER

Number of shares/

Approximate
percentage in

Amount of relevant shares/

Name of Director Name of associated corporation Nature of interest debentures debentures

v 4= 1L1ERARRR

BEENA HEEEE TR EmEEE BiEEEEE GEESHEOEILL

Mr. Lam Radiance Group Holdings Beneficial owner 6,172,150 Shares 64.97%
Mo SIEEEER BmEAA 6,172,1508%

Lam Yu Radiance Capital Investments Limited Beneficial owner USD20,000,000 2.5%
S TIEERRERRAD BaEAA 20,000,000 75

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations, recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO or required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

So far as is known to the Company, as at 31 December 2022, as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO, the following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, had an interest of 5% or more in the Shares or underlying Shares:

Name of substantial shareholder

TERRRE
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FERREEMALREQE KRG KRAEMH
RIDHIERmRRE

72022F 128310 LA R B FRED > AR B IR IEE H KR
EEGIE336KBREENELSMAALHE UWTAL (ESH
EATRSITHRAERIN PRIRM BRI RMD P HEA 5%
DL RS

Number of Shares Approximate
directly or indirectly percentage of Shares
held in issue

HiEoEE LEET

FENKRMHE RBBHNE DL

Radiance Group Holdings
THREEER

Glowing Shine
B

Note:

(1) Radiance Group Holdings is owned as to 64.97% and 35.03% by Mr. Lam and Ms.
Lam, respectively.

) Radiance Group Holdings is the beneficial owner of all the issued shares in
Glowing Shine and, therefore, Radiance Group Holdings is deemed, or taken to
be interested in the Shares owned by Glowing Shine for the purpose of the SFO.

(3) Mr. Lam is the sole director of Radiance Group Holdings and Glowing Shine.
By virtue of their respective ownership of shares in Radiance Group Holdings,
each of Mr. Lam and Ms. Lam is deemed or taken to be interested in the Shares
owned by Glowing Shine for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company had not
been notified of any persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares that were recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.

3,400,000,000 84.05%

3,400,000,000 84.05%

(1 SEEBIZTERAMEERML D BIHEE64.97%535.03%1
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the related party transactions disclosed in Note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements and the continuing connected transactions disclosed in
the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this report, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
his connected entities had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2022.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the continuing connected transactions as disclosed in the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this report, during the
year ended 31 December 2022, there was no other contract of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries nor other contract
of significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue attributable to the five
largest customers in aggregate accounted for less than 30% of the Group's
revenue for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier amounted to approximately 8.8% of the Group’s total
purchases and the Group five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 32.8% of the Group's total purchase for the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders, which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued
Shares, had an interest in the share capital of any of the five largest suppliers
and customers.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below are the continuing connected transactions of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022, which are subject to the reporting and annual
review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

Property Management Services

On 13 October 2020, the Company entered into a property management
related services framework agreement (the “Old Property Management
Related Services Framework Agreement”) with Radiance Lifestyle Holdings
Limited ("Radiance Lifestyle Holdings"), pursuant to which we agreed to
engage Radiance Lifestyle Holdings and/or its subsidiaries to provide property
management and related services to our Group, including but not limited to
(i) management services for unsold units and unsold car parking spaces; (ii)
pre-delivery management and value-added services which primarily include
(a) planning and design consultancy; (b) inspection, cleaning and repair of
units; (c) site security; and (d) ancillary facilities management services; and (iii)
sales management services which primarily include property management of
display units, and off- and on-site sales offices (the “Property Management
Related Services”). The Property Management Related Services Framework
Agreement has a term commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December
2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total amount of service fee
payable by the Company to Radiance Lifestyle Holdings and/or its subsidiaries
for the Property Management Related Services amounted to RMB171 million,
which is within the annual cap of RMB401 million.

As the Old Property Management Related Services Framework Agreement
had expired on 31 December 2022 and the Company was expected to carry
on the transactions contemplated thereunder upon its expiry, the Company
entered into a new property management related services framework
agreement (the “New Property Management Related Services Framework
Agreement’) on 30 December 2022 with Radiance Holdings Limited,
pursuant to which we agreed to engage Radiance Lifestyle Holdings and/or
its subsidiaries to provide the Property Management Related Services to our
Group, with a term commencing from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025.

The maximum transaction amounts under the New Property Management
Related Services Framework Agreement for the three years ending 31
December 2025 shall not exceed RMB300 million, RMB350 million and
RMB400 million, respectively. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 30 December 2022.

Radiance Lifestyle Holdings is wholly owned by Radiance Group Holdings,
which is in turn owned as to 64.97% by Mr. Lam and 35.03% by Ms.
Lam. Radiance Lifestyle Holdings is therefore a connected person of our
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Old Property Management Related Services
Framework Agreement and the New Property Management Related Services
Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for our
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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As each of the applicable percentage ratios (except for the profit ratio) under
the Listing Rules in respect of the highest annual cap in relation to each of
the Old Property Management Related Services Framework Agreement and
the New Property Management Related Services Framework Agreement was
over 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions contemplated
thereunder are exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement but subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, all independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transaction has been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii)
according to the relevant agreements governing the transaction on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, Ernst and Young, the
auditor of the Company, was engaged to report on the continuing connected
transactions and has provided a letter to the Board, confirming that nothing
has come to its attention that causes it to believe that the continuing
connected transaction mentioned above (i) has not been approved by the
Board; (i) was not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing such transactions; and (iii) has exceeded the
annual cap.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements. Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transaction” above, certain of these transactions also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are not required to be disclosed in this
report under the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated, under which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

Specific Performance Obligations on the Controlling
Shareholder Under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules

The Company does not have any other disclosure obligations under Rules
13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Changes in information of Directors in details since the date of approval of
the 2022 annual report of the Company, which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51 (2) of the Listing Rules, are set out below:

Name of Director

ERNL

Details of changes in information
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Mr. Tse Yat Hong
effect on 28 November 2022.
HERELE

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Stock Exchange has granted the Company a public float waiver under
Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules to accept a lower public float percentage
of the total issued share capital of 15.95%. Details of the waiver is set out in
the section headed “Waivers from Strict Compliance with the Listing Rules —
Waiver in relation to Public Float” of the Prospectus.

As at the date of this report, based on information that was public available
to the Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company
maintained the amount of public float as required under the public float
waiver.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the opinion that the Company had adopted, applied and
complied with all applicable code provisions as set out in Part 2 of the CG
Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the year under
review. except for the deviation from CG Code provision C.2.1 as detailed
under the section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” section of this report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out in the section headed “Financial summary”on
pages 238 to 239 of this report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 are set out
in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Mr. Tse has resigned as an independent non-executive Director of Sky Light Holdings Limited (stock code: 03882.HK) with
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Articles provide that every Director is entitled to be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he may incur or
sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts,
except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or
dishonesty.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance for the
year ended 31 December 2022, which provides appropriate cover for the
Directors. The permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year
ended 31 December 2022 and remained in force as at the date of this report
for the benefit of the Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the above paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in
this section, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year and subsisted at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

2023 AGM AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

The 2023 AGM will be convened and held on Thursday, 18 May 2023. A
notice convening the 2023 AGM will be published on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website and dispatched to the Shareholders in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules in due course. For the
purposes of determining the Shareholders’ eligibility to attend, speak and
vote at the 2023 AGM, the Register of Members will be closed from Monday,
15 May 2023 to Thursday, 18 May 2023, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of the Shares will be effected. In order to determine the
identity of members who are entitled to attend and vote at the 2023 AGM,
all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company's branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 12 May 2023.
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AUDITOR

There has been no change in auditor since the Listing Date. The consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
have been audited by Ernst & Young who will retire at the 2023 AGM. Ernst &
Young, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the 2023 AGM.

By order of the Board

Lam Ting Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BILZ MRS

To the shareholders of Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Radiance Holdings
(Group) Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 99 to 237 which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the "IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

FREZEE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERBRPNMAREMBEZER

Valuation of investment properties

REYFEGE

The Group owned investment properties in Mainland China, including
completed investment properties and investment properties under
construction, which were measured at fair value and their aggregate
carrying amount was approximately RMB16,330,200,000 as at 31
December 2022.

BEERTEAMEENREY X OREBRIREMERTE
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The Group engaged Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited and Shenzhen Cushman & Wakefield Real Estate
Evaluation Co., Ltd., independent professionally qualified valuers to
perform the valuations of the aforementioned properties as at 31
December 2022. Significant judgement was required to determine
the fair valuers of the investment properties, which reflected market
conditions as at the end of the reporting period. The fair value of
completed commercial properties was determined using the income
approach by taking into account the rental income of the properties
derived from the existing leases and/or achievable in the existing
market with due allowance for the reversionary income potential of
the leases, which have been then capitalised to determine the fair
value at an appropriate capitalisation rate. The fair value of commercial
properties under construction was determined using the cost method,
which has taken into account the market value of land use right plus
the construction cost incurred so far and an appropriate gross margin.
Changes in these assumptions would have significant effects on the
valuation of the investment properties. Accordingly, the valuation of
the investment properties was identified as a key audit matter.
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The accounting policies and disclosures of the investment properties
were included in note 2.4, note 3 and note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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We have assessed and evaluated the design and operating
effectiveness of the key controls of management in the valuation of
investment properties.
EEENERTEEEETREY XL ERNRRBES 2Kt
FETR MM

We have evaluated the competency, independence and objectivity of
the external valuer. We obtained an understanding of the valuation
approach and key assumptions used by the external valuers.
EEETEINSEEMNEN - BIUIMRERE - EFEE T #RH
B EMEANEET EREERSR

We have assessed the validity of the property related data used as
inputs for the valuations and involved our internal valuation experts to
assist us in evaluating the valuation methodology and the underlying
assumptions. We have evaluated the source data used in the valuation
by benchmarking them to the relevant market information on a
sampling basis.
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We have assessed the disclosures related to the valuation of
investment properties in the consolidated financial statements with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting standards.
EEE2ERTEAENNRE TGSV BRRABHELE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

FRREZEE

FHEEZEE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERBERPNARERRERER

Provision for land appreciation tax

THIBER

The Group is a property developer in Mainland China focusing on
the development of residential properties and the development,
operation and management of commercial and mixed-use properties.
Land appreciation tax (‘LAT") in mainland China was one of the
main components of the Group's taxation charge. LAT is levied on
the sale of properties at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
based on the appreciation of land value. As at 31 December 2022,
the management of the Group estimated the provision for LAT based
on their understanding and interpretation of the relevant tax rules
and regulations, and the estimated total sales of properties less total
deductible expenditure, which included lease charges for land use
rights, property development costs, borrowing costs and development
expenditure. Provision for LAT in mainland China was significant to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and involved
significant management'’s judgement and interpretation of the
relevant tax provisions. Accordingly, provision for LAT was identified as
a key audit matter.
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The accounting policies and disclosures of the provision for land
appreciation tax were included in note 2.4, note 3 and note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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We have assessed and evaluated the design and operating
effectiveness of the key controls of management in the calculation of
the provision for LAT.
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We have involved internal tax specialists to assist us to perform a
review on the LAT position, including the review of the estimates and
assumptions used by the Group and the evaluation of tax exposure
based on communications with the relevant tax authorities by
applying our knowledge and experience. We have also recalculated
the tax computation and compared our calculations with the amounts
recorded by the Group.
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We have assessed the disclosures related to the provision for LAT in the
consolidated financial statements with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards.
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Key audit matter

FRREZEE
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERBERPNARERRERER

Provision for impairment of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale

BRANERFELHERTYENRERE

The Group had properties under development and completed
properties for sale of RMB88,551,479,000 and RMB12,472,551,000
respectively, as at 31 December 2022, which represented 55% and
8% of the Group's total assets, respectively. The carrying amounts of
properties under development and completed properties for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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Determination of net realisable value (the "“NRV") of the properties
under development and completed properties for sale involved critical
accounting estimates on the selling price, costs to make the sale and,
for properties under development, the costs to completion. Given the
significant balance of properties under development and completed
properties for sale and the involvement of critical accounting
estimates, assessment of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties for sale is considered as a key
audit matter.
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The accounting policies and disclosures of the properties under
development and completed properties for sale were included in
note 2.4, note 3, note 20 and note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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We have assessed and evaluated the design and operating
effectiveness of the key controls of management in the calculation of
the provision for impairment of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale.
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In assessing the NRV of the properties under development and
completed properties held for sale, we evaluated, on a sample basis,
the reasonableness of their forecasted selling price based on the
current market price of properties of comparable locations and
conditions, and involved our internal valuation experts to assist us
in evaluating the methodology and key assumptions adopted in the
impairment assessments.
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For construction costs to be incurred to complete properties under
development, we obtained an understanding of the management’s
process in estimating the future costs to completion for the properties
under development and assessed the reasonableness of the budgeted
construction costs, on a sample basis, by comparing to the actual
development costs of similar projects recently completed by the
Group and by checking to construction contracts and other relevant
documents.
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We have assessed the disclosures related to the provision for
impairment of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale in the consolidated financial statements with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting standards.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ho Wai Ling.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
relmkEMEERER

Year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HIEEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
MIEE AR®TFT AREFT
REVENUE PN 5 35,318,003 40,025,826
Cost of sales THEM A (30,138,519) (32,278,375)
Gross profit EF 5,179,484 7,747,451
Other income and gains H U N\ B Wz 5 60,041 183,846
Selling and distribution expenses HENRDIHES (931,729) (1,449,318)
Administrative expenses THEEX (853,707) (1,195,415)
Finance income B F5 U 91,290 183,478
Finance costs E/ R DN 7 (236,100) (349,885)
Other expenses HtpEx (191,638) (44,875)
Fair value gains on investment properties KREMENAFEW TS 14 844,574 656,986
Fair value losses on financial assets BAFEASANEGTNEREEN
at fair value through profit or loss NEEEE (14,168) (6,085)
Share of profits and losses of: FE1L AR BEA B8 ¢
Joint ventures BEhE 17 (732,632) 98,366
Associates &N E] 18 491,020 641,082
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRI AT EF 6 3,706,435 6,465,631
Income tax expense Frisfrp 10 (1,623,285) (2,771,936)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEMiEEF 2,083,150 3,693,695
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE FErRHM2EKRN, NRIRIE
YEAR, NET OF TAX = -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR N2 EUI N 4E%E 2,083,150 3,693,695
Attributable to: IR IEE,
Owners of the parent BATEE A 1,705,026 3,274,774
Non-controlling interests TR ER 378,124 418,921
2,083,150 3,693,695
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO REEBESRTE ARG
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT SREF
Basic and diluted earnings per share SRERRE 12 RMBO.42 yuan RMBO0.81 yuan
AR ¥0.427T AR #0817t
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE MERRR

31 December 2022
20225128318

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
MIEE AR®TFT AREFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y ENE TN S 13 519,023 518,174
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 15 744,232 778,769
Investment properties KEYE 14 16,330,200 13,939,800
Intangible assets ML EE 16 24,199 18,773
Investments in joint ventures NEELENKRE 17 2,421,726 3,068,915
Investments in associates RBERBNKEE 18 5,688,636 5,395,080
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss R AFEEF NIE@mPIERE E 26 105,020 105,519
Deferred tax assets IEERIEE E 19 2,650,754 2,944,990
Other non-current assets HiiemEEE 25 1,402,644 1,402,644
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 29,886,434 28,172,664
CURRENT ASSETS BB E
Properties under development FEEagesky/ES 20 88,551,479 106,108,703
Completed properties held for sale HEHENBIYE 21 12,472,551 12,246,662
Trade receivables &5 E U sha 22 50,510 53,467
Contract cost assets BHMAEEE 23 1,205,954 945,195
Due from related parties FE W BE Bt 75 =R 1B 41 6,621,121 8,639,706
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets TEMTFRIE . EAth R W R IE K E A
BE 24 9,395,145 14,683,828
Tax recoverable A BRI 1,168,535 990,244
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss AP EFt NIBHHISRE E 26 4,294 78,357
Restricted cash ZIRFIIRE 27 7,899,346 7,656,569
Pledged deposits BEIRRTER 27 10,000 850,000
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 27 4,410,184 11,221,917
Total current assets MENEELEE 131,789,119 163,474,648
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Trade payables BN IIE 28 13,106,078 13,603,572
Other payables and accruals HMEMTIBENESER 29 2,592,136 2,736,127
Contract liabilities HBHEE 30 59,397,834 72,460,294
Due to related parties FE S BE Bt 5 R IB 41 5,437,467 4,978,342
Tax payable FE(TIRIE 10 5,270,090 4,864,788
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings sHEIRIT R EMERR 31 10,937,353 9,504,033
Proceeds from asset-backed securities HEIRIPESMEIIE 32 70,696 65,705
Senior notes BREERE 33 440,607 2,650,016
Corporate bonds NEEHF 34 667,743 4,572,592
Lease liabilities within one year —FRNHNHEEASR 15 10,747 11,618
Total current liabilities MEIE(ELERE 97,930,751 115,447,087
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBRRAR

31 December 2022
20225128318

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
MIEE AR®TFT AREFT
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEFE 33,858,368 48,027,561
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEHBRTEBAEE 63,744,802 76,200,225
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings st EIRITREMER 31 15,607,467 26,659,490
Proceeds from asset-backed securities EERFESFRERIE 32 5,218,481 5,253,870
Senior notes BREERE 33 2,075,827 1,891,050
Corporate bonds NEEF 34 2,797,578 2,197,450
Lease liabilities HESE 15 3,343 5,333
Deferred tax liabilities IEERIEEE 19 2,459,068 2,621,327
Total non-current liabilities ERBEELREE 28,161,764 38,628,520
Net assets BEZEE 35,583,038 37,571,705
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BRBEE AEGED
Share capital [N 35 35,095 35,095
Reserves B 36 24,499,072 23,602,105
24,534,167 23,637,200
Non-controlling interests iz s 11,048,871 13,934,505
Total equity 1B 48En 35,583,038 37,571,705

Mr. Lam Ting Keung
MERLE
Director

EF

Mr. Xu Xiaodong
RNEEE

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ArEEmEER

Year ended 31 December 2022

HZE2022FF 12831 HIEEE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BRFERAERE
Statutory Asset Non-

Share Share Capital surplus  revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserves reserve profits Total interests equity

EERE  BEEM
ke RGEE  ESHE e e REER @it FEREE  ESRE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT AR%TR ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Note 35 Note 36@@  Note 36(b) Note 36(c) Note 36(d)

Mabss W MEln)  WEN0 M)
As at 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 122021128318 202251818 35095 1,204,964 (273227) 2,517,580 5287 20,147,501 23,637,200 13,934,505 37,571,705
Profit for the year Eniai - - - - - 1705026 1,705,026 378124 2,083,150

Other comprehensive income for the year PV E IS ERA - - - - - - - - -

Total comprehensive income for the year R 2ERNBE - - - - - 1705026 1,705,026 378124 2,083,150
Appropriations to statutory surplus reserves 5HEEE R - - - 326,638 - (326,638) - - -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests  WEBIEIR R ER = - (282,179) = = - (282179) (3,273,774)  (3,555953)
Capital contribution by the non-controlling M BABERRKEHE

shareholder of a subsidiary - - - - - - - 24,000 24,000
Dividends declared to the non-controlling M BARERRRRERKRE

shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - - - (13,984) (13,984)
Dividends and distributions BRERDK - (525880) - - - - (525,880) - (525880)
Asat 1 January 2021 0211818 35,095 2,297,175 (165,453) 2,088,725 5287 17,301,582 21,562,411 14,549,995 36,112,406
Profit for the year Friad - - - - - 3274774 3274774 418921 3,693,695
Other comprehensive income for the year  EREMLERA - - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ N2 ERNEE - - - - - 324774 3274774 418921 3,693,695
Appropriations to statutory surplus reserves st 12 4 E BERE & - - - 428,855 - (428,855) - - -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests  WiBEIE R R BR - - (107,762) - - - (107,762) (2598245 (2,706,007)
Capital contribution by the non-controlling i B AR FERREHE

shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 2225438 2025438
Capital reductions from the non-controlling M BABERRKERHE

shareholders of subsidiaries - - (12 - - - (12 (650,743) (650,755)
Dividends declared to the non-controlling BN B AR ERRRRERKRS

shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - - - (10861) (10,861)
Dividends and distributions BRERD K - (1092211) - - - - (1,09221) - (092210)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021€128318 35,095 1,204,964* (273227 2,517,580% 5287 20,147501% 23,637,200 13,934,505 37,571,705

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZERBROEGSYBRARFNEEREFARE
RMB24,499,072,000 (2021: RMB23,602,105,000) in the consolidated statement of 24,499,072,0007T (20214E © AR #23,602,105,0007T) ©

financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A e =g —1
l%l\ /| EE% /}llii
Year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HIEEE

2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARET AR#F T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEHFSRERE
Profit before tax A0 71 E A 3,706,435 6,465,631
Adjustments for: FEE
Depreciation of items of property, plant and ME.BENKREBEINE
equipment 6,13 28,406 44,136
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESENE 6,15(a) 46,921 36,408
Amortisation of intangible assets B B EEHE 6,16 3,645 3,835
Impairment losses recognised for properties B8 ) R BV R (E K 18
under development 6,20 111,632 410,425
Impairment losses recognised for completed FEHEBR TYERIEN
properties held for sale B EE 6,21 233,966 298,081
Impairment losses recognised for financial assets = BI & EERIVEERE 6,22,24 19,646 5,699
Exchange loss/(gain) EREE (Wa 292,534 (100,735)
Fair value losses from financial assets at fair value AT EF NIBEHEN SRS E
through profit or loss AT ERIE 14,168 6,085
Gain on derecognition of fair value through BIFERRAFESINEBE=mN
profit or loss Iz 5 (234) (14,327)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AN 5 - (51,615)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—EBE QAT RS 5 (28,616) -
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures MhEeErE RN NEE 17 732,632 (98,366)
Share of profits and losses of associates DEBE QB RA R EE 18 (491,020) (641,082)
Fair value gains on investment properties LEYENNFERTE 14 (844,574) (656,986)
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of items of property, HEYE MENKZHEEEN
plant and equipment % () BB (29) 116
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFAREEN KRG - (6)
Finance costs RN 7 236,100 349,885
Finance income BN (91,290) (183,478)
Decrease/(increase) in properties under HEPMELRFFHEBERT
development and completed properties held MR, (8GH0)
for sale 18,190,531 (3,120,654)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and other TE RIE & H b FE WL RIS
receivables L (HE ) 1,829,937 (1,918,150)
Increase in restricted cash 52 BRI 2R < 38 0 (558,025) (1,952,584)
Decrease in pledged deposits BRI E R - 167,842
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables B S EUERIE CRi/b (%) 3,190 (29,830)
Increase in contract cost assets BHI R AE EE (260,759) (198,400)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B S EATIE Gl) /HEm (450,884) 944,408
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from related  FEURBAEL 5 =018 (&) AL
parties (762,103) 14,811
Increase in other payables and accruals HMEMRIENRESEREM 787,806 1,503,429
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities G888 B /Em (13,293,343) 4,551,897
Increase in amounts due to related parties P AT BE Bt 75 SR IE A 0 30,809 11,568
Cash generated from operations KERBRE 9,487,481 5,848,043
Interest received BUF 2 91,290 183,478
Tax paid BRIE (1,231,955) (3,264,802)
Net cash flows from operating activities REEEFFIS RS RE R 8,346,816 2,766,719
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER
Year ended 31 December 2022
EE2022F 12831 BILEE
2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
M5 ARET AR#F T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES KREFSREBRERE
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AT - (15,325)
Purchases of items of property, plant and HEME . BRENEZHEEER
equipment (33,895) (207,610)
Purchases of intangible assets HERTEE (9,153) (4,999)
Purchases of right-of-use assets HETREEE (24,158) (654,850)
Increase in investment properties B FEE M (46,610) (79,532)
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through WX B3R A FET NEHEH
profit or loss EREE (18,838) (303,000)
Disposal of financial assets at fair value through Hj’i}"fz NS EEN=E: 1)
profit or loss TREE 79,466 271,474
Investments in joint ventures and associates REELENRBKENTNKRE - (958,120)
Advances to related parties e BE B 75 7E LH RO Bk 41 (420,003) (4,925,608)
Receipt of advances to related parties U BY 3 B B 5 E BB R 41 2,435,824 3,585,299
Disposal of intangible assets HEBEEE 82 -
Disposal of items of property, plant and equipment HEYE . BB KX EEE 407 1,158
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing RETEFRES (FrIA) RERE
activities L 1,963,122 (3,291,113)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEFEESMRBRERE
Proceeds from issue of senior notes BITEBLZIBFASRIE 33 = 1,916,339
Proceeds from issue of corporate bonds BT RNEESPIEHIE 34 1,186,991 2,196,580
Repayment of proceeds from issue of corporate BEETA TTE%FET?T)\
bonds (4,370,000) (4,733,145)
Repayment of proceeds from issue of senior notes BB BT I ZIEMIFFENIE (2,198,422) (2,579,782)
Capital contribution from non-controlling WEBABFTREREE
shareholders of the subsidiaries 24,000 1,500,166
Interest paid B (3,082,240) (3,699,378)
Advances from related parties BE S IR AR 41 1,437,701 3,464,716
Repayment of advances from related parties EERB D IRENER 41 (1,009,385) (3,102,141)
Proceeds from asset-backed securities éJX?EE?Eﬁ BHEIEEWNAEHIE = 5,300,000
Repayment of proceeds from asset-backed BEERFESEMRIE
securities (28,372) (3,461,711)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits BIRFEEIURL 7 (En) 27 840,000 (635,870)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash ZREIIRE R () 315,248 (315,248)
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank and other FRIBIT R EMERPIERIE
borrowings 5,494,300 24,548,502
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and other BEs BRITREMER
borrowings (15,045,507) (23,907,308)
Payment of lease liabilities HEaBNI®m 15 (16,542) (21,310)
Dividends paid BAFE (479,749) (1,092,211)
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries B EM B AT EEINER (207,416) (3,675,980)
Capital reductions from non-controlling FEERREHE
shareholders - (644,153)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEENFAREREREE (17,139,393) (8,941,934)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH REMREEEYMRVFE
EQUIVALENTS (6,829,455) (9,466,328)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HAERERER

Year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F 12831 HIEEFE

2022 2021

20225 20214

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

B 5 ARET AR#F T

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FNRENREEEBY 11,221,917 20,732,123
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net INEEXREHFE 17,722 (43,878)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR £ XRIRENRFEEHFEY 4,410,184 11,221,917

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

REMREEEMERNDR

Cash and bank balances R& NIRITAEER 27 12,319,530 19,728,486
Less:  Restricted cash B ZREIRE 27 7,899,346 7,656,569
Pledged deposits BIRHER 27 10,000 850,000

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the WEREBXRMIIRER
statement of cash flows B&EEY 4,410,184 11,221,917

Annual Report 2022 Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited

105



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 3R R MY 51

31 December 2022
20225128318

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange’) on 29
October 2020. The registered office address of the Company is PO. Box
309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year, the
Group was involved in development and sale of properties, property
leasing and the provision of management consulting services.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the ultimate

holding company of the Company is Radiance Group Holdings Limited,
which is incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAFKREERER @)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries BB RABNER
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows: AT FENBARNFBEHINWT !
Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FREE
BT AT iR BREH
GRS Wizt sEfREEME EfE REANE FEXH
('000)
CSD
Directly held:
ERFE
Jubilance Properties Limited British Virgin Islands 1550.003 100.00%  Investment holding
EBRUEHE 0.003% 7T RETR
Indirectly held:
BREHFE
Kam Fei Investment (Hong Kong) holding Limited Hong Kong ("HK") HK$990 100.00%  Investment holding
("Kam Fei Investment’) &% (5% 9908 TT LA

EERE &R ERAT (RERE)

Radiance Capital Investments Limited (1) British Virgin Islands USS$50 96.00%  Financing
('Radiance Capital Investments’) HBELHEE S0%7T i
ERBEAREERAT (EEEFRE))

Radiance Group Co, Ltd. (‘Radiance Group”) (1) People’s Republic of China RMB1,800,000 96.00%  Property development
cRBEERNERAT ((£EEE) ('PRC’) Mainland China A& #1,800,0007¢ EE

FEARHANE
(THREL) RE A

Beijing Ronghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB300,000 96.00%  Property development
('Beijing Ronghui Real Estate”) HE/ HERM AR #300,00075 MERE
TRMBEXERAS (HRMEEE)

Beijing Jinhui Hotel Management Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,000 96.00%  Property management
("Beijing Jinhui Hotel Management') HE/ HERM AEH100007T MEERE

TRERAEEEARAR
(REREEER)

Beijing Juye Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB3,961,408 96.00%  Property development
("Beijing Juye Real Estate’) HE/HE R AR 396140870 and leasing
TRE¥EXERLE (AREEXEE) MEREREE

Beijing Beijian Land Port International Logistics Co,, (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB124,000 96.00%  Property development
Ltd. ("Beijing Beijian Land Port International’) mE /P E N ANE124,0007T MERE

ERIEEERERMAERAR
(MERICERREARR)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAEREBRER @)

(Continued)

ERMBABTNER (8

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

AABEBHBATNHBEEIMT ()

Effective

percentage of

Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FAFER
BT AT iR BRI
ARAE Wizt FEMREEME EfE BEEAL TEEHB
('000)
(UF3h)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

BREFE (8

Shenyang Guangxing Properties Development Co,, (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB21,000 96.00%  Property development
Ltd. ("Shenyang Guangxing Properties’) /R E P AE21,0007T MERE
EEEARMERERRAT

(FEREREME)

Shijiazhuang Ronghui Properties Development Co,, (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,000 96.00%  Property development
Ltd. (‘Shijiazhuang Ronghui Properties’) HE /R E Py AR 10,0007T MERE
ERERERMEREERAE

(TRREREEME))

Fuzhou Ronghui Properties Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB216,000 96.00%  Property development
("Fuzhou Ronghui Properties’) FE/ HE R AE 21600075 MERE
BNRERMERRAS (FENRBEME)

Ronggiao (FuZhou) Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China US$30,000 5760%  Property development
("Ronggiao (Fuzhou) Real Estate’) I/ HHE Py 30,000% 7T MERE
R (@) EXBRAE (TRfE (BM) EX))

Fujian Pingtan Zhuijia Juye Architectural Decoration (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB500,000 96.00%  Construction
(o, Ltd. ("Fujian Pingtan Zhujia Juye /R E P AE#50007T decoration
Architectural’) BEEE
BEATEEEEEREEHEREELT

(RRETREERZERE)

Foshan Jinhui Properties Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,000 96.00%  Property development
("Foshan Jinhui Properties’) /R E P AE#100007T MERE
BlUhEEEHERRAS

(MplhEBERE)

Foshan Penghui Properties Co,, Ltd. (‘Foshan (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,000 96.00%  Property development
Penghui Properties’) I/ HHE Py AR #100007T I ESEE
BUTEEEHEERAT

(MBLTBERENE)

Chongging Jinhui Changjiang Properties Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB741,701 96.00%  Property development
("Chonggqing Jinhui Changjiang’) FE/ HE R AE®741,70170 MERE
ERSRRIFHMERRAT

(EE£RRI)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARKREREE @)

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) BRI B ABNER (8

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: KATETEMBATNEBEEHIWT @ (B

(Continued)

Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FAFER
BT AT iR BRI
ARAE Wizt FEMREEME EfE BEEAL TEEHB
('000)
(UF3h)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

BREFE (8

Huizhou Hengshengtai Properties Development Co, (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB120,000 96.00%  Property development
Ltd. ("Huizhou Hengshengtai Properties’) /R E P AR #120,00075 MERE
EMmERREHERZERAS (

MEMmERREME)

Wuhan Jinhui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Wuhan Jinhui Real Estate’) FE,/ R E AR¥10,0007 Lk
RESBEXERLT (HESEER))

Changsha Hongtao Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Changsha Hongtao Properties’) /R E P AR #50,0007T MERE
ROBERMERERRAT
(RDVEBSEHE)

Xi‘an Jinhui Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB746,424 96.00%  Property development
("Xi'an Jinhui Properties’) /R E P ANE 74642470 L E R
ELeBRUEREERAT
(AREEEME)

Xi'an Jinhui Juye Properties Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB392,157 96.00%  Property development
(‘Xi'an Jinhui Juye Properties’) T,/ E P AR392,1577% MERH
FAeeREERMEREERAD
(AREREERME)

Xi‘an Ronghui Properties Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
("Xian Ronghui Properties’) HE/ HE P AE#100,00075 MERE
BERERMEREFRAT
(ARMBEME)

Xi'an Qujiang Yuanshan Real Estate Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB105,260 96.00%  Property development
("Xi'an Qujiang Yuanshan Real Estate’) HE /R E P ANE#105,2607¢ MR
AL IRLEXERAR
(MEZMIRLER)

Xi'an Qujiang Hechuang Properties Development (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
Co, Ltd. ("Xi'an Qujiang Hechuang Properties’) hE/ RE Pyt AE#100,00075 MR
AEIRE R EREERAT
(AR IRREME))
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20225128318

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAEREBRER @)

(Continued)

ERMBABTNER (8

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

AABEBHBATNHBEEIMT ()

Effective

percentage of

Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FAFER
BT AT iR BRI
ARAE Wizt FEMREEME EfE BEEAL TEEHB
('000)
(UF3h)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

5 ()

Xi'an Bolang Properties Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB20,000 96.00%  Property development
("Xi'an Bolang Properties Development’) /R E P AE#200007T MERE
BLEREMEREFRAT
(AREMENERE))

Xi‘an Huiyao Properties Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB21,050 96.00%  Property development
("Xi"an Huiyao Properties’) /R E P AEH21,0507T MERE
AZEREMEREFRAT
((ARERENE)

Shaanxi Fenghong Properties Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Shaanxi Fenghong Properties’) FE/ PE P AR #50,0007T MERE
PR EREERAT
(TREEEHE)

Taicang Jinhui Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
("Taicang Jinhui Properties’) FE/ HE R AR 10000075 MERE
AEEBRHEREERAT

((KEEEEHE)

Suzhou Jinhui Xinyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB20,000 96.00%  Property development
(“Jinhui Xinyuan”) FE/ HE R AE 20,0007z MERE
BNeEEEEERAT

(rE@HmE)

Hangzhou Ronghui Mingzhu Industrial Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
("Hangzhou Ronghui Mingzhu Industrial’) hE /PR AE#100,0007T L ESEE
MRS EEEBRAT

(MMEIBHEER)

Jurong Gonghua Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB20,000 96.00%  Property development
("Jurong Gonghua Properties’) HE /R E P AR H200007T MERE
DERERUMEREBRAT

(OB REEHE)

Huaian Jinhui Real Estate Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
('Huaian Jinhui Real Estate’) FE,/ R E AE#100,0007 Lk
ELEEELERRAA

(FERERE%)

N0 &IBER &M ERAE  202FFH



CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Place of of
incorporation/
registration and

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mt F5eR R M 5E

31 December 2022
20225128318

REKREBREH (@

BB ATKNEN (8@
FAREEMBABOHERIDT : (@)

Effective

percentage of

Nominal the controlling
value of equity interest
registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FAFER
BT AT iR BRI
ARAE Wizt FEMREEME EfE BEEAL TEEHB
('000)
(UF3h)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

5 ()

Huai'an Ronghui Properties Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB200,000 9743%  Property development
("Huai'an Ronghui Properties’) /R E P AR #200,00075 MERE
EZRERMEFRAT

(TEZRBEME)

Lianyungang Ronghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
("Lianyungang Ronghui Real Estate’) /R E P AE#100,00075 MERE
ERAREEXFRAT

(MEEBREER))

Yancheng Jinhui Juye Properties Development Co., (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
Ltd. ("Yancheng Jinhui Juye Properties’) HE/ PE P AR #100,00075 MERE
BT EREEMEREERAT

(EREREEREME)

Zhenjiang Ronghui Real EstateCo,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
("Zhenjiang Ronghui Real Estate”) FE /R E P AR 10000075 MERE
RIREBEXFRAT

(MEIRIEER)

Yangzhou Rongyu Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB246,500 96.00%  Property development
("Yangzhou Rongyu Properties’) FE/ HE R AE#246,5007T MERE
ENRFRMEREERAR

(MEMRFEHE)

Huizhou Hengxingye Properties Development Co,, (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB37,500 96.00%  Property development
Ltd. ("Huizhou Hengxingye Properties’) HE/ P E P AR H37,5007T MERE
ENTIEEEEHEREERAT

(TEMHERREME))

Wuhan Yaoxing Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB1,000,000 62.40%  Property development
("Wuhan Yaoxing Properties’) T,/ E P AR #1,000,00075 LESE
NERERMAEREBRELRT

(THERERHME)

Zhenjiang Rongyu Properties Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development

("Zhenjiang Rongyu Properties Development’) FE,/RE Py AR 50,0007T MERE

HIRTRMERERRAD
(RIRFEHE)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Place of of
incorporation/
registration and

REKREBREH (@

BB ATKNEN (8@
FAREEMBABOHERIDT : (@)

Nominal
value of
registered

Effective
percentage of
the controlling
equity interest
attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FATRERS
S, iR BIRZH
GRS Wik sEMREEME f= REED FEEH
('000)
AT )

Indirectly held: (Continued)

HREFE  (B)

Chongging Jinyonghe Real Estate Development Co,  (3)  PRC/ Mainland China RMB200,000 4896%  Property development
Ltd.("Chongqing Jinyonghe Real Estate”) FE,/RE Py AR 2000007t MERE
BB KABHERERRAA
(EBESKREHE))

Anhui Jinhui Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Anhui Jinhui Real Estate’) I/ HE Py AE150,0007T MERE
ZHEEREMAERERRAT
(ZBEEEHE)

Fujian Xinlianhui Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,000 8160%  Property development
("Fujian Xinlianhui Properties’) HE/ R E N AR 1000078 L ESE
BEERERMEREERAS
(EEEHBREME)

Wuhan Sanjianghui Logistics Investment Co,, Ltd. (2)  PRC/ Mainland China RMB500,000 3840%  Property development
(‘Wuhan Sanjianghui’) FE/ HE Py AR #500,0007¢ MERE
HE= IR AREERAT
(TRE=IIE)

Shaoxing Qihui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(Shaoxing Qihui Real Estate’) HE/ HE P AR #50,0007C MERE
BEMEEXERAE
(MREREE))

Xi'an Yaowei Real Estate Limited (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB550,000 96.00%  Property development
("Xi'an Yaowei Real Estate’) HE/HEl P AR #550,00075 MERE
BERHEXERAT
(ERRREZ])

Zhengzhou Jinhui Hechuang Properties (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB612,245 96.00%  Property development
Development Co,, Ltd. ]/ E P ANE#612,24570 MERE
("Zhengzhou Jinhui Hechuang’)

BHEESRIEHERERRAS
(MBHEESEIREME)

Huizhou Shengjie Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB260,000 96.00%  Property development

("Huizhou Shengjie Properties’) FE/ HE P AR #260,0007T MERE

BNBAEEHEREAERAR
(MEMTHAEENE)

N2 21EER (Em) BRAE  202FFH



CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Place of of
incorporation/
registration and

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mt F5eR R M 5E

31 December 2022
20225128318

REKREBREH (@

BB ATKNEN (8@
FAREEMBABOHERIDT : (@)

Effective

percentage of

Nominal the controlling
value of equity interest
registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FAFER
BT AT iR BRI
NGELE Wizt FEMREEME EfE BEEAL TEEHB
('000)
(UF3h)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

BREFFE  (B)

Zhangjiagang Ronghui Properties Development Co, (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 67.20%  Property development
Ltd. ("Zhangjiagang Ronghui Properties’) /R E P AR #50,0007T MERE
RRBREEMEREBRAT

(MRRBREEME)

Huai'an Huiyao Properties Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB69,497 96.00%  Property development
("Huai'an Huiyao Properties’) /R E P ANE#869,4977T MIER S
ELEREHAERRAT

(FEREREHE)

Lianyungang Jinhui Properties Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Lianyungang Jinhui Properties’) FE/HRE Py AR #50,0007T MERE
EEECBRUMEREERAT

((EEAEBREME)

Fuging Jinchen Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (3)  PRC/ Mainland China RMB200,000 4896%  Property development
("Fuqing Jinchen Properties’) /R E P AR #200,00075 MERE
REETRBHERERRAT

((RRERENE)

Fuging Jinghai Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (3)  PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000 4896%  Property development
(‘Fuqing Jinghai Properties’) FE /R E A #200,0007T Lk
RERBRHMERERRAA

(MREREBEME)

Chongging Yuhui Yaocheng Properties Development (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB30,000 96.00%  Property development
Co, Ltd. (‘Chongqing Yuhui Yaocheng’) FE,/HRE Py AR 30,0007 MERE
ERABRARHEREERETLT

(EEREERE)

Wuxi Yunhui Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (3)  PRC/ Mainland China RMB200,000 4896%  Property development

("Wuxi Yunhui Properties’) /R E P AR #200,00075 MERE

ERZRRMERLERRARD
(MBHZEEME))
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAEREBRER @)

(Continued)

BB ATKNEN (8@
FAREEMBABOHERIDT : (@)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

Effective

percentage of

Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FAFER
BT AT iR BRI
ARAE Wizt FEMREEME EfE BEEAL TEEHB
('000)
(UF3h)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

BREFFE  (B)

Fuging Jinhai Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB500,000 67.20%  Property development
("Fuqing Jinhai Properties’) T/ E P AR #500,00075 LES R
BETERMEREERRAA

((RAEBEHE)

Foshan Chanhui Properties Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,000 96.00%  Property development
("Foshan Chanhui Properties’) HE/ PEPH AEH100007T MERE
BT EBEMEFRAS
(MBLTEBENE)

Quanzhou Qihui Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Quanzhou Qihui Properties’) HE/ R E N AR #50,0007T L ESE
FMNMERHERERRAT

(TRMEBENE))

Chongqing Qihui Yaocheng Properties Development (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB30,000 96.00%  Property development
Co, Ltd. ("Chongging Qihui Yaocheng’) FE/RE Py AR 30,0007 MERE
EENBRARHEREERAT

(TEBEREREEME))

Yangzhou Jinghui Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China US$193,705 64.32%  Property development
("Yangzhou Jinghui Properties’) FE/ PE P 193,705% 7T MERE
ENRERMERERRAT

(MENRBEME)

Huai'an Xianghui Properties Co., Ltd. (‘Huai'an (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
Xianghui Properties’)  Z# EE M EFRAF HE/ P E N AR #50,0007T L EE
(FEREFEEME)

Huai'an Xinyao Properties Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Huai'an Xinyao Properties’) FE/ HE P AR #50,0007T MERE
EZEREHMERRAT

(TEREREME)

Xuzhou Rongyu Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (2)  PRC/ Mainland China RMB371,910 48.00%  Property development
("Xuzhou Rongyu Real Estate”) /R E P ANE3719107T MERE

FINRTERHERERRAD
(MEMEFEHER)
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Place of of
incorporation/
registration and

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

REKREBREH (@

BB ATKNEN (8@
FAREEMBABOHERIDT : (@)

Effective

percentage of

Nominal the controlling
value of equity interest
registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
AT LG
BT AT iR BRI
NGELE Wizt FEMREEME EfE BEEAL TEEHB
('000)
(UF3h)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

5 ()

Lianyungang Huiyao Real Estate Development Co., (2)  PRC/ Mainland China RMB313,200 48.00%  Property development
Ltd. ("Lianyungang Huiyao Real Estate’) /R E P AR #313,2007c MERE
EZAEREMEREARAT

(MEZRBREENE)

Huai'an Jiajing Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB180,000 5760%  Property development
("Huai'an Jiajing Real Estate’) /R E P AR #180,00075 MERE
EZEREHERRAT

(TEREREME)

Beijing Jinhui Beiwang Business Management Co,, (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Business management
Ltd. ("Beijing Jinhui Beiwang’) HE/ PE P AR #50,0007T EHBER
TREELEHLEERRAT

(MEREEILE)

Tianjin Huiyao Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
('Tianjin Huiyao Real Estate’) FE/ HE R AR #50,0007T MERE
REBREUMEREFRAT

(X2WRENE)

Shijiazhuang Qiyang Real Estate Development Co,, (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 76.80%  Property development
Ltd. ("Shijiazhuang Qiyang Real Estate’) FE/ HE P AR #50,0007T MERE
EREGRHEREERAR

((AXERBERENE)

Xi'an Yongting Real Estate Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB16,800 96.00%  Property development
("Xi'an Yongting Real Estate’) FE,/HRE Py AE®16,8007T MERE
BLKEEXERAT

(MARXEEX)

Nantong Jinghui Real Estate Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB51,000 96.00%  Property development
("Nantong Jinghui Real Estate’) FE/ P E P AR H51,0007T MERE
ERRBEXERAT

(HBREEX)

Xi'an Jiapan Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development

(‘Xi'an Jiapan Real Estate’) HE /R E Py AR #50,0007 MERY

AZREEXERAT
(AREEEX)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022

20225128318

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAEREBRER @)

(Continued)

BB ATKNEN (8@
FAREEMBABOHERIDT : (@)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Effective

percentage of

Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FAFER
BT AT EEUEE BRI
ARAE Wizt FEMREEME EfE BEEAL TEEHB
('000)
(MF3h

Indirectly held: (Continued)

BR5FE  (8)

Ningbo Lanhui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Ningbo Lanhui Real Estate’) /R E P AR #850,0007T MERE
ERBEEEXERAT

(MEREREE)

Huai'an Yunhui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB750,000 5808%  Property development
('Huai'an Yunhui Real Estate’) FE,/ R E AE#750,0007T Lk
ELEERMAERRAT

(FEZZEEME)

Yancheng Zhaorui Real Estate Development Co, Ltd. ~ (3)  PRC/ Mainland China RMB46,000 4896%  Property development
("Yancheng Zhaorui Real Estate’) FE/ HE R AR #46,0007T MERE
BEKEEMEREFRAT

(B ENE)

Chengdu Ruihua Enterprise (Group) Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB25,000 96.00%  Property development
("Chengdu Ruihua Enterprise”) /R E P AR 25,0007T MERE
MERECE (EF) ARETRE

(REHERE)

Xiaogan Quanzhou Hongbo Real Estate Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
("Xiaogan Quanzhou Honghbo') mE /R E N AR #100,0007T Lok
ZR2MNERELERAA

(FZR2NBEER)

Hubei Chijing Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB133,333 7200%  Property development
(‘Hubei Chijing Real Estate”) FE/ HE P AR#1333337 MERE
MM E R AERRAR

(LR =EHE)

Huai'an Chijing Real Estate Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB17,973 96.00%  Property development
("Huai'an Chijing Real Estate”) FE/ HE P ANE179737C MERE
EZHREHERRAT

(e EEHE)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARKREREE @)

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) BRI B ABNER (8

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: KATETEMBATNEBEEHIWT @ (B

(Continued)

Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FAFER
BT AT iR BRI
ARAE Wizt FEMREEME EfE BEEAL TEEHB
('000)
(UF3h)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

BREFFE  (B)

Zhengzhou Jinhui Rongyu Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Zhengzhou Jinhui Rongyu’) /R E P AR #50,0007T MERE
BNeERFEYEREERAT
(MBHEBRFEHE)

Zhengzhou Huiyao Real Estate Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB30,000 96.00%  Property development
(Zhengzhou Huiyao Real Estate’) FE/HhE Py AR #30,0007T MERE
BNEREHEREERAT
(TBMIEREE))

Fuging Jinghui Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Fuqing Jinghui Real Estate’) I/ E P AE#850,0007T MERE
BERERMEREERAG
((RAREREHE)

Changsha Rongyu Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB103,000 96.00%  Property development
("Changsha Rongyu Real Estate”) FE/ HE Py AR 1103,0007T MERE
ROMFEHERRAT
(ROBFEHE)

Changsha Ronghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB103,000 96.00%  Property development
("Changsha Ronghui Real Estate’) /R E P AE#103,00075 MERE
RIOBERMERRAT
((RDBEEME)

Chongging Yuhui Jiajing Real Estate Development (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB30,000 96.00%  Property development
(o, Ltd. ("Chongqing Yuhui Jiajing Real Estate’) FE/ HE P AE#300007T MERE
ERABERREHEREERAD
(EERBRREME)

Anhui Lanhui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
('Anhui Lanhui Real Estate’) FE /Tl Py AR 50,0007 MERY
ZHEEELERRAA
(ZHBEREX)

Annual Report 2022 Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited 17



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A F5 R R P 5F

31 December 2022
20225128318

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Place of of
incorporation/
registration and

REKREBREH (@

BB ATKNEN (8@
FAREEMBABOHERIDT : (@)

Nominal
value of
registered

Effective
percentage of
the controlling
equity interest
attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FATRERS
S, iR BIRZH
GRS Wik sEMREEME f= REED FEEH
('000)
AT #)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

B#RE  (8)

Anhui Gaoyue Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Anhui Gaoyue Real Estate’) /R E AR 50,0007z b ESoE
ZHERELERRAE

(MZHEREEX)

Chongqing Huiderui Real Estate Development Co,, (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB750,000 5760%  Property development
Ltd. ("Chongqing Huiderui Real Estate”) FE/ HE P AR #750,00075 MERE
EEREERMEREARRLA

(EEEEERME)

Ningbo Qihui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB500,000 5760%  Property development
(‘Ningbo Qihui Real Estate’) FE/ HE P AR #500,0007 MERE
ERMEEXERRAT

(rEREIBE))

Taicang Ronghui Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB512,500 96.00%  Property development
(‘Taicang Ronghui Real Estate’) FE/ P E P ANE#512,5007¢ MERE
AEMBREUMEREERAT

((REREEHE)

Yangzhou Rongyu Youbu Real Estate Development (2)  PRC/ Mainland China RMB15,500 47.04%  Property development
Co, Ltd. ("Yangzhou Rongyu Youbu Real Estate’) /R E P ANEM155007T MERE
ENRFESEHERERRAR

(EHRFESRHE)

Huai'an Qihui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB250,000 5760%  Property development
("Huai'an Qihui Real Estate") /R E P AR #250,00075 MERE
EZRERMERRAT

(FEZEERME))

Shanghai Ronggang Real Estate Development Co,, (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development

Ltd. ("Shanghai Ronggang Real Estate’) FE/ HRE P AR 10000075 MERE

LEMAEEZERAR
((LBRBEX)

N8 2R (M) BRAE  202FER



CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Place of of
incorporation/
registration and

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mt F5eR R M 5E

31 December 2022
20225128318

REKREBREH (@

BB ATKNEN (8@
FAREEMBABOHERIDT : (@)

Effective

percentage of

Nominal the controlling
value of equity interest
registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FAFER
BT AT iR BRI
ARAE Wizt FEMREEME EfE BEEAL TEEHB
('000)
(UF3h)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

BREFFE  (B)

Suzhou Yunhui Real Estate Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
(Suzhou Yunhui Real Estate”) /R E P AE#100,00075 MERE
BNEBEXERRAT

(MBMERBER)

Ningbo Jinghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
('Ningbo Jinghui Real Estate”) HE /R E Py AR 50,0007 MERE
ERREEXERAT

(MERRBEZ)

Ningbo Yunjing Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
('Ningbo Yunjing Real Estate’) FE/RE Py AR 50,0007 MERYE
ERERELERAA

(MZREREX)

Shaoxing Yuehui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Shaoxing Yuehui Real Estate’) FE/ HE Py AR 150,0007T MERE
BEBBEERRAT

(MREHEE))

Shaoxing Ronghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Shaoxing Ronghui Real Estate’) /R E P AR #50,0007T MERE
BERMEEXERRAT

(MREREE))

Shaoxing Jinghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Shaoxing Jinghui Real Estate’) FE/ HE R AR #50,0007T MERE
BEREEXERAE

(MRERBEX))

Ningbo Yunhui Real Estate Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development

('Ningbo Yunhui Real Estate’) HE /R E Py AR 50,0007 MERYE

EREEEXERAR
(EREREX)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAEREBRER @)

(Continued)

ERMBABTNER (8

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

AABEBHBATNHBEEIMT ()

Effective

percentage of

Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
AT LG
BT AT iR BRI
NGELE Wizt FEMREEME EfE BEEAL TEEHB
('000)
XF )

Indirectly held: (Continued)

BREFFE  (B)

Shaoxing Xianghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(“Shaoxing Xianghui’) /R E P AR #50,0007T MERE
BEKEELERAT

(MRE#E)

Huizhou Runyang Real Estate Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB30,000 96.00%  Property development
(*Huizhou Runyang Real Estate”) HE /R E Py AR #30,0007T MERE
EMmErEHEREARAT

(FEMNTEERENE)

Huizhou Chijing Investment Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Investment holding
(‘Huizhou Chijing Investment’) HE /R E Py AR 50,0007 BEER
ENTHRREERRE

(FEMmERRE)

Foshan Xianghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,000 96.00%  Property development
("Foshan Xianghui Real Estate’) AE#100007T L e
LT H#EEHERRAS

(MplLHHEENE)

Beijing Juye Real Estate Consultation Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB6,000 96.00%  Consulting
("Beijing Juye Real Estate’) /R E P AE#6,0007T i
TREXRMEZAERAT

((FREEEME)

Tianjin Qihui Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Tianjin Qihui Real Estate”) FE,/HRE Py AR 50,0007 i ESEE
REMERMEREFRAT

((REREEHE)

Tianjin Xianghui Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB190,000 96.00%  Property development

(‘Tianjin Xianghui Real Estate”) HE /R E Py AR 1190,0007 MERYE

REFERHERLEERAR
((REHEEHE)
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Place of of
incorporation/
registration and

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mt F5eR R M 5E

31 December 2022
20225128318

REKREBREH (@

BB ATKNEN (8@
FAREEMBABOHERIDT : (@)

Effective

percentage of

Nominal the controlling
value of equity interest
registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
AT LG
BT AT iR BB
NGELE Wizt FEMREEME EfE BEEAL TEEHB
('000)
(UF3h)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

B#IE (B

Shenyang Huiyao Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB20,000 96.00%  Property development
("Shenyang Huiyao Real Estate’) HE/ P E P AR #20,0007T MERE
BREREEREBRAT
(FEREREHE)

Tianjin Shenghui Real Estate Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Tianjin Shenghui Real Estate’) FE/RE Py AR 50,0007 MERE
FRERBRUEREBRAT
((REBEEME)

Tianjin Lanhui Real Estate Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Tianjin Lanhui Real Estate”) FE/RE Py AR H50,0007 B
FREBBRUEREBRAT
((R2EEEME)

Beijing Jinhuichuangling Technology Co., Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Management
(‘Beijing Jinhuichuangling’) FE,/RE Py AR 50,0007z consulting
TREEAERKERAR BB
(MErEkEaIE)

Huaian Huisheng Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 52.80%  Property development
("Huaian Huisheng Real Estate’) HE/ R EN AR 85000078 L ESE
ELRERMAERRAT
(FERBEREHE))

Shijiazhuang Wanyue Real Estate Development Co,, (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
Ltd. ("Shijiazhuang Wanyue Real Estate’) HE/ P E N AR 85000078 LESE
BREBNEHEREERAS
((EREERERE)

Shijiazhuang Chijing Real Estate Development Co., (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
Ltd. (‘Shijiazhuang Chijing Real Estate’) HE/ HE P AR #850,0007T MERE
BREHSEHEREERAS
(EREHSEEME)

Shijiazhuang Gaoyue Real Estate Development Co., (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
Ltd. ("Shijiazhuang Gaoyue Real Estate’) /R E P AR #50,0007T MERE

EREEREHEREARAR
(MBExREERELE)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAEREBRER @)

(Continued)

BB ATKNEN (8@
FAREEMBABOHERIDT : (@)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Effective

percentage of

Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FAFER
BT AT iR BRI
ARAE Wizt FEMREEME EfE BEEAL TEEHB
('000)
XF )

Indirectly held: (Continued)

BREFFE  (B)

Langfang Qihui Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Langfang Qihui Real Estate’) /R E P AR #50,0007T MERE
B EE R EREERAS

(BHHRBEME)

Shijiazhuang Jinhui Real Estate Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB750,000 5280%  Property development
(‘Shijiazhuang Jinhui Real Estate’) FE/ P E R AR #750,0007 MERE
BRECERMEREERAT

((AREEBEME)

Fuzhou Jinghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
(Fuzhou Jinghui Real Estate’) I/ E P AE 1000007t MERE
BNRERMERRAT

(BN RERHE)

Fuzhou Lanhui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Fuzhou Lanhui Real Estate’) HE/ P E N AR #50,0007T L ESE
BNEREMERRRAR

(MEMEBENE))

Quanzhou Gaoyue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB140,000 81.60%  Property development
("Quanzhou Gaoyue Real Estate’) /R E P AR #140,00075 MERE
FNEREHEREFRAT

(RMEREHE)

Quanzhou Ruiyao Real Estate Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB150,000 81.60%  Property development
("Quanzhou Ruiyao Real Estate’) FE/ HE R AR #150,00075 MERE
FMNEREHEREFRAT

(TRMIREHE))

Quanzhou Zhaoming Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (3)  PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000 4896%  Property development
("Quanzhou Zhaoming’) /R E P AR 20000075 LESE
RMKBELERRA

(TRMBHER)
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mt F5eR R M 5E

31 December 2022
20225128318

REKREBREH (@

BB ATKNEN (8@
FAREEMBABOHERIDT : (@)

(Continued)

Place of of
incorporation/
registration and

Effective

percentage of

Nominal the controlling
value of equity interest
registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
AT LG
BT AT iR BB
NGELE Wizt FEMREEME EfE BEEAL TEEHB
('000)
(UF3h)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

BREFFE  (B)

Quanzhou Huiyao Real Estate Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB200,000 86.40%  Property development
("Quanzhou Huiyao Real Estate’) /R E P AR #200,00075 MERE
FMNBREHEREFRAT

(TRMEREME)

Lianyungang Jinghui Real Estate Development Co,, (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB729,730 96.00%  Property development
Ltd. ("Lianyungang Jinghui Real Estate’) FE/ P E R AE#7297307T MERE
EZARBERMEREARAT

(MEERREEME))

Lianyungang Lianhui Real Estate Development Co, (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB310,000 96.00%  Property development
Ltd. ('Lianyungang Lianhui Real Estate’) HE /R E Py AR 3100007t MERE
ERAEEEMEREARAT

((EEAEBREME)

Chongging Jinhuixingyao Real Estate (3)  PRC/ Mainland China RMB390,800 48.10%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. FE/ HE P AR 390,8007T MERE
("Chonggqing Jinhuixingyao Real Estate’)

ERTEEREHEREERAT
((EEESBEREME)

Xuzhou Jinhui Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB155,000 96.00%  Property development
('Xuzhou Jinhui Real Estate’) FE,/ R E AR #155,0007C MK E
ENEEEMEREERAR

(MEMEBENE)

Tianjin Juye New Material Technology Development (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB520,000 96.00%  Trading
Co, Ltd. (‘Tianjin Juye”) e/ R E Py AR 15200007 g5
REREMVRBERERERAT

(IRZERB#)

Huizhou Chuangfa Real Estate Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,000 96.00%  Property development

("Huizhou Chuangfa Real Estate’) HE/ P E N AE#100007T L ESE

ENHRHE BHEREARAT
(TEMNTRHEEHE)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAEREBRER @)

(Continued)

BB ATKNEN (8@
FAREEMBABOHERIDT : (@)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

Effective

percentage of

Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FAFER
BT AT iR BRI
ARAE Wizt FEMREEME EfE BEEAL TEEHB
('000)
XF )

Indirectly held: (Continued)

5 ()

Chongging Jinhui Jinjiang Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB596,120 96.00%  Property development
("Chonggqing Jinhui Jinjiang Real Estate’) I/ E P AR #59,12078 LESE
EETERIEHERRAT
(EESBHIEME)

Chongqing Ronghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB177,250 96.00%  Property development
("Chongqing Ronghui Real Estate’) FE/ HE R ANE#177,25078 MERE
EERERHMEERAR
(EBREBEME)

Suzhou Jinhui Juye Co,, Ltd. (“Suzhou Jinhui Juye”) (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
FMNEBEXERAR FE/ FE AE#100,00078 ESEE
(TEMEEREE)

Suzhou Xinbaoyuan Enterprise Management (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB20,000 96.00%  Management
Consulting Co, Ltd. ("Suzhou Xinbaoyuan") FE/ HE R AE#20,0007T Consulting
FMNEERCZEEZAERAT FEHE
(TBMEER)

Hangzhou Ronghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Hangzhou Ronghui’) FE/ HE P AR #850,0007T MERE
RNREELERAT
(MAMmEEER)

Jiaxing Yaoan Investment Management Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB1,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Jiaxing Yaoan') e/ R E Py AR 10007 L ESEE
ERRTREEEARAA
(ZRBZR))

Nanjing Ronghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Nanjing Ronghui) FE/ HE P AR #50,0007T MERE
ERREEEERAT
(TAmAE))

Caente Industrial Development (Lianyungang) Co,, (1) PRC/ Mainland China US$100,000 96.00%  Property development
Ltd. (‘Caente Industrial) FE/ R E 100,000 7T ELE

FERELUE (BER) ARAT
((EBREE)
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Place of of
incorporation/
registration and

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE
31 December 2022

2022412831H

REKREBREH (@

ERMBABNEN (8@
FAREEMBABOHERIDT : (@)

Nominal
value of
registered

Effective
percentage of
the controlling
equity interest
attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
AT LG
BT AT iR BB
NGELE Wizt FEMREEME EfE BEEAL TEEHB
('000)
(UF3h)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

BREFFE  (B)

Shangrao Tongluowan Commercial Operation (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB100,000 52.80%  Property management
Management Co, Ltd. ("Shangrao Tongluowan") /R E P AE#100,00075 MEERE
LEDHEZHEEEEERRAT
(TEEmREE)

Fuging Jinhui Real Estate Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB150,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Fuging Jinhui Real Estate’) T,/ E P AR H150,0007T MERH
RETERMEREERAR
((RREEEME)

Wuhan Jinhui Rongyu Real Estate Development Co, (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB102,041 96.00%  Property development
Ltd. ('Wuhan Jinhui Rongyu Real Estate’) HE/ HPE P AR 1020417 L ESEE
NECBRFREHEREERAT
(THEEERFEME)

Shanghai Ronghui Juye Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/ Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
("Shanghai Ronghui Juye Real Estate”) FE/ HE P AR #100,00075 MERE

LEREEXEHERRRAR
((LBREEXEHE)

The English names of all group companies registered in the PRC
represent the best efforts made by the management of the Company
to translate their Chinese names as they do not have an official English
name. The legal form of all the principal subsidiaries disclosed above is

limited liability company.

FIERPBEMZEMARZAXRBREERE
BEEREBAPXLBENPEHREAEL H
WEEHAENER - ULRBEZFRERB AR 2%

BRI RBREERR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Notes:

(1) These entities are subsidiaries of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of
the Company's control over them.

(2) Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has been entitled with
voting right to control and operate these entities. Thus, these entities
are accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group despite of the Group
holding less than 50% of equity interests in them.

(3) These entities are accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group despite of
the Group holding less than 50% of equity interests in them because the
non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company hold more than 50%
equity interests in these entities to control and operate them.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs”) (which include
all standards and interpretations, International Accounting Standards
("IASs") and Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations)
approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (‘/RMB”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an
entity, directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e,, existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

126 1R (EE) BRAT 202658

2.1

AR KREEEH (@

BB ARNER (@)
G

BAERBNER2ENBRR REARTY

m  ZEFR
HEEAEbI#E  ARIEREBAR -

2 REASEREMI ZEEZTATENREEUE
FIkEEZEER At BEAEARKAEDLR
50%MEHE ZEERRARIFEERANNER
5o

B BEXEERFAZFERETLON09NKE ZEE
BRARINGAEENWB AR  AA28HER
EWBADRABS NN RENEFNREEZEE

B8 o

ERINHEERAEFNEEREATLEIABME
EREEFREERBINEIRTNMBELAT EF
B BHAMKBLARDNFBERERRRBEIRT
«EO

AR EAE

ZEMBHREDBEERSGAEREZE (BHRE
STEEREES ) HENBERMBRESEL (TERM
BREER > BEMAEIKEE BERE5HER
(TEREEN) RERERREZETNERE)
UREBREEANRBERERE - FREVER
BATESAABRaNESREER QA TENBIN &
EMBREDBREEERFEIRE - ZFEMHR
KUARE TARKE) 29 B AREREIN S
FRIASRRHINEER BN TAH-

aHE®E
REMBREREELA LD RANBAR (B K~E
B)BE_Z__F+_B=+—HLFENUH
BR-MBLABREAADEERNEREFNNER -2
AEE S RIRE N RER MRS 205 E R
SEVHERENUREZEHREHRITEES
BIRENITERERAENTEREHRMERME
BBIRER) FEZF ORE > BESIZERI# -



2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it
has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time for
the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts —

Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Annual Improvements to IFRS ~ Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
Standard 2018-2020 [llustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 41

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are applicable to
the Group are described below:

(a) Amendments to IFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting (the "Conceptual Framework”) issued in
June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition
principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would
be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination,
an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify
for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group has applied
the amendments prospectively to business combinations that
occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As there were no business
combinations during the year, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead,
an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items,
and the cost of those items as determined by IAS 2 Inventories,
in profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment
made available for use on or after 1 January 2021. Since there
was no sale of items produced prior to the property, plant and
equipment being available for use, the amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the
contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour
and materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly
to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not
relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to contracts
for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January
2022 and no onerous contracts were identified. Therefore, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standard 2018-2020 sets
out amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the amendments
that are applicable to the Group are as follows:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. The Group has applied the amendment prospectively
from 1 January 2022. As there was no modification or
exchange of the Group’s financial liabilities during the year, the
amendment did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS 23 BREMBERKRENNVERMFRSE
il

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that REEBANZEMBRREBUTEEMAEBEK

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements. EBITE] RAEFT R PR B3R S 2E R o

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between lﬁﬁﬁﬂ"’zﬁﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁ‘ KREEZHRBE 2 55

IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or and F10XKEEE G5 BEELEZBAEE
Joint Venture? R 55285k ((BFT ) HE R FE
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’ BB F5 R S 2 R ERHLONHEEE
F165% (BFTA)
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’ Bl B 75 3R S 2 R REE S A KB FIEET
B179%
Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts"* Bl B 75 3R 5 2 A R ESAR B REET
F175% (BETZ)
Amendment to IFRS 17 Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 Bl R B F5 3R 5 2 R B X EHREE B & 2R
— Comparative Information® F179% (BETA) B/ R ERE
BRI FoF— LR E R
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current BRE st 2ERI 5% BES 5B 3 IETE)
or Non-current (the 2020 (BETZ) ((ZEZFEFEMEFTE))
Amendments’)’*
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants BREERE S (B WEZENHE B EE
(the 2022 Amendments’)? aTZIK) (&= -ﬁ-" 1E5725) ?
Amendments to IAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies’ ERR Gt ERESRNE B HERE
IFRS Practice Statement 2 R BHREERNET
HEFE29 (BETA)
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’ B gt 2RISR (1B B5 B E&E
HIE:N)
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Bt 2ERR 2% (B E—XGELNEEREE
Liabilities arising from a Single ) TERGE AR IE
Transaction’

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 ! RIZE=F—FB—HHAZEMRENFEREER

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 ? RIZ2ZMFE—B—HR 2 EBRGENFERBER

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption : 15 SR TE s 1 42 2 B HA o 1 BT R AR

E As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the ¢ HRZEZZFEBIAZHER ZS2 22 FEFIR
2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after MWEMHPERE S _NF—B—Hx 2B MK
1 January 2024 HNEERHE -

5 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in October 5 HRZE2ZZH+BEANERT R EERE 1758
2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that (BETA) 2R BRI R & 2RI S 458 BT I
permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods EEATFRBABNR - ZE_=F—F—HAIMREN
beginning before 1 January 2023 FEHARERE R ER S s 2RI 55395k M IFE PR B B IR

LHEAFORME R R

6 An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the o BEERARANETAMBNBEE ZAMNEEE
classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial ERNERBENEXREABRBRYBREENF 75
application of IFRS 17 REFE B

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be FEHREARNAERNZERRYBREERWNE

applicable to the Group is described below — S ERI T XE
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS

(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by
the IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now.

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-lessee
uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback
transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount
of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback
transactions entered into after the date of initial application of IFRS 16
(i.e, 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to |IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current, in particular the determination over whether an entity
has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by
the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement
of the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the IASB issued the 2022
Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of a liability
arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity must
comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification of that
liability as current or non-current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments
require additional disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities
arising from loan arrangements as non-current when it has a right
to defer settlement of those liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months after the reporting
period. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments
early is required to apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments,
and vice versa. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
amendments and whether existing loan agreements may require
revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS

(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is
material if, when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application
is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments to
IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for
these amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting
the accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the
amendments.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also
clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates
that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in |AS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions that
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such
as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient
taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or other
component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other
than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which
it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group's share of the
post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or
joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group's investments in the associates or joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group's investments in
associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit
or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified as
held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRGHBEREHRE (@)

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative financial
instruments and equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than properties under
development, completed properties held for sale, deferred tax assets,
financial assets, investment properties and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of
the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building)
is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest
group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit
or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset.
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20225128318

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(if) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(if) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,

provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal estimated useful lives and the
annual depreciation rates are as follows:

2.25-9.50%

11.25-31.67%

18.00-32.33%

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and benefit period

Buildings

Motor vehicles

Office equipment and electronic devices
Leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRGHBEREHRE (@)

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement or
disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties
or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes
an investment property, the Group accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under "Right-of-
use assets’ for property held as a right-of-use asset up to the date of
change in use, and any difference at that date between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from inventories
to investment properties, any difference between the fair value of the
property at that date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss.

Transfers to or from investment property
Transfers to or from investment property shall be made when and only
when there is a change in use evidenced by:

(a) commencement of owner-occupation, for a transfer from
investment property to owner-occupied property;

(b) commencement of development with a view to sale, for a
transfer from investment property to inventories;

(0 end of owner-occupation, for a transfer from owner-occupied
property to investment property; or

(d)  commencement of an operating lease to another party, for a
transfer from inventories to investment property.

Properties under development
Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
comprising land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs, professional
fees and other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred
during the development period and net realisable value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
those will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On completion,
the properties are transferred to completed properties held for sale.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRGHBEREHRE (@)

POLICIES (Continued)

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated in the statement of
financial position at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises development costs attributable to the unsold properties.
Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale proceeds
of properties sold in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses, or by management estimates based on
prevailing marketing conditions.

Allocation of property development cost

Land costs are allocated to each unit according to their respective
saleable gross floor area (“GFA”) to the total saleable GFA. Construction
costs relating to units were identified and allocated specifically.
Common construction costs have been allocated according to the
saleable GFA similar to land costs.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is amortised on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 2 to 10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Land use rights
Office buildings

40 to 50 years
1 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold
land held as inventories, they are subsequently measured at the
lower of cost and net realisable value in accordance with the
Group's policy for “properties under development” or “‘completed
properties held for sale”. When a right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property, it is included in investment
properties. The corresponding right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, and subsequently measured at fair value, in
accordance with the Group's policy for “investment properties”.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment and electronic devices that
are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in profit or loss due to its operating nature.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they
are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRGHBEREHRE (@)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All reqular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are also recognised as other income in profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRGHBEREHRE (@)

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

In certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has evaluated the expected loss rate that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component
and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to
adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRGHBEREHRE (@)

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, corporate bonds and senior notes (collectively
called “loans and borrowings”), lease liabilities, trade payables, other
payables, and amounts due to related parties.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the
ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are
not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from
the passage of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mt F5eR R M 5E

31 December 2022
20225128318

EXRESBRME (@

RIEERIEMER
SRS MRS RETERR  BUY N2 AR

580

HERETHAGRHR-—EMARTHEREEEX
WHEMEERA HIRFEENEREEXREET 8
LHESERETRERLEIREEERERTE
R BEEREENERNIBmES -

HHTMITA
ERRFEER LRGN ITORA  FTRHEHE
REE BARUFBREEARAKEREEERER
BE AEMEEAREREE]DAEEHE > WM
RREER P

REKRFEEZEY

muGERERERF RERREEEYEREF
BIREROEIMER AR ERERSENEEER
RS EEESRERAS B-—RBEFES=
BERIMNERSRBMERE  BATAEER
R EEREHAERRSEREMRBONRITE
%o

mMEEMBRRERE RERREFEVEETFT
BRIRITRE (BEERFEN  URERS M EHE
NWARTZREINEE-

]

HEAEERBTEHAREREERE CAEIE
B MBETZEEANEEBRKERMAL  BZE
5 R 2RAES P Se (il 5t BUMESD B

HEMRZEER IRIA/EFRNSERARSE
AAREMABFRITEENRRMASZNIRE B
BRI MAEENIFRREL RS AGERIEREM
EEREROPFHZRER -

Annual Report 2022 Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited

149



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released to profit
or loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one year,
revenue recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest method.
For a contract where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

a. Sale of properties
Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effect of a financing
component if it is significant.

For a property development and sales contract for which
the control of the property is transferred at a point in time,
revenue is recognised when the customer obtains the physical
possession, or the legal title of the completed property and the
Group has present right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

b. Management consulting services
Consulting services income derived from the provision of
support services in connection with development of property
projects is recognised when the relevant services are rendered,
and the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the entity’s performance as the entity
performs.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument of
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Contract cost assets
Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil
a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(a) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract cost assets are amortised and charged to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the asset related. Other
contract costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRGHBEREHRE (@)

POLICIES (Continued)

Employee retirement benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Company and its subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain proportion of these payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The only obligation of the Company
with respect to the central pension scheme is to make the required
contributions. No forfeited contribution under the central pension
scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable in future years.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme under the rules and
regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
("MPF Scheme") for all employees in Hong Kong, which is a defined
contribution retirement scheme. The contributions to the MPF
Scheme are based on minimum statutory contribution requirement
of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income. No forfeited
contribution under the MPF Scheme is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years. The assets of this pension
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,, assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges and
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to
the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.
The exchange gains and losses that are adjustments to interest costs
include the interest rate differences between borrowing costs that
would be incurred if the entity had borrowed funds in its functional
currency, and the borrowing costs actually incurred on foreign currency
borrowings. Such amounts are estimated based on forward currency
rates at the inception of the borrowings.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes more than one
accounting period, the amount of foreign exchange differences eligible
for capitalisation is determined for each annual period and is limited
to the difference between the hypothetical interest amount for the
functional currency borrowings and the actual interest incurred for
foreign currency borrowings. Foreign exchange differences that did
not meet the criteria for capitalisation in previous years should not be
capitalised in subsequent years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

Items included in the financial information of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Company’s functional currency because the Group's principal
operations are carried out in the PRC. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of each reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e, translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such
as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life
of the commercial property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments not amounting to substantially all of the fair value of
the commercial property, that it retains substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of this property and accounts for the
contracts as operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or
leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property
basis to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Classification of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
The classification of an investment as a subsidiary, a joint venture or
an associate is based on whether the Group is determined to have
control, joint control or significant influence over the investee, which
involves judgements through the analysis of various factors, including
the Group's representation on the chief decision-making authorities of
an investee, such as the board of directors’ meetings and shareholders’
meetings, as well as other facts and circumstances.

Subsidiaries are consolidated, which means each of their assets,
liabilities and transactions are included line-by-line in the Group's
consolidated financial statements, whereas the interests in joint
ventures and associates are equity accounted for as investments in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. Further details are included in note 19 to the
financial statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effects of the time value of money if
the timing of payments agreed by the parties to the contract provides
the Group with a significant benefit of financing.

Certain advance payments received from customers provide a
significant financing benefit to the Group. Although the Group
is required by the government to place all deposits and periodic
payments received from the pre-completion sales in a stakeholder
account, the Group is able to benefit from those advance payments
as it can withdraw money from that account to pay for expended
construction costs on the project. The advance payments received in
effect reduce the Group’s need to rely on other sources of financing.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Significant financing component (Continued)

The amount of the financing component is estimated at the inception
of the contract. After contract inception, the discount rate is not
updated for changes in interest rates or other circumstances, such as
a change in credit risk. The period of financing is from the time that
the payment is received until the transfer of goods to the customers is
completed.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
and prepayments, other receivables and other assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and prepayments, other receivables and other assets. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by product
type, customer type rating and counter party)

The expected loss rate is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the
historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product)
are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the properties sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables and
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is disclosed in note 22
and note 24 to the financial statements, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for properties under development and
completed properties held for sale

The Group's properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Based on the Group’s historical experience and the nature of the
subject properties, the Group makes estimates of the selling prices, the
costs of completion of properties under development, and the costs
to be incurred in selling the properties based on prevailing market
conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net sales
value, the net realisable value will decrease and this may result in a
provision for properties under development and completed properties
held for sale. Such provision requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
the carrying value and provision for properties in the periods in which
such estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each year. Other non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use.

The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC. As a result
of the fact that certain matters relating to the income taxes have
not been confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimate and
judgement based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other
related policies are required in determining the provision for income
taxes to be made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts originally recorded, the differences will
impact on the income tax and tax provisions in the period in which the
differences realise.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3. EXE ARGt (@

ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued) fh st REABRA R (&)

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”) e + IS E R (T A1 (E 7R )

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT is based AEBEBHMPE T HIZER - T HIBEREET
on management's best estimates according to the understanding of R EIEE LR P EBRERERE R ERENIE
the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. % WMEHBN R EGBETEHE - BRN T HIRERE
The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax B ANYEHZEESREERNBERET A&
authorities upon the completion of the property development projects. . HAMEETYEREERERFERREETE
The Group has not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with the THIBERNFE RN -RAERAERETLT A
tax authorities for certain of its property development projects. The RNEEAMAR MEMEEZEMEENER™
final outcome could be different from the amounts that were initially HIMIBERAI RMEEBEEETE-

recorded, and any differences will impact on the LAT expenses and the

related provision in the period in which the differences realise.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties REYERI L FEGE

Investment properties carried at fair value were revalued at each BAFEIRNEENDENRZRSESHBREBIE
reporting date based on the appraised market value provided by EEEMREENTIEMEENGE ZSHEDLE
independent professional valuers. Such valuations were based on REFBRJEH FEABREN AERBRERT
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might ABERER - ETHEHR AEBETREEMS LS
materially differ from the actual results. In making the estimation, the LENFEBRERES  IERAFEENSERDN
Group considers information from current prices in an active market mREE R E TS

for similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on

market conditions existing at the end of each year.

Deferred tax assets BEREEE

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent MR RE A B RRAMRFBIREEE MG AXS:HAR
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the IEE?TEEE* RERIBEEE BIEEBEEET I T UE
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required = E?Lkﬁlﬁﬁéﬁéaﬁ ) ARBARRERRAH
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, AEHIRMI R Rk FERE R RIS 5B KK EH
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together Eﬁi‘] i o

with future tax planning strategies.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEHEER

Management monitors the operating results of the Group's business
which includes property development, property leasing, and the
provision of management consulting services. Property leasing and
the provision of management consulting services are not significant

EEEREAERXEY (BEMERE WEHEER
RHEEEARY NEEXE - YEHERREMRE
BHEARBUEREMBEBRARA WY ERESEE
R —-TREEENS BU B2 HMEE D

in revenue contribution. Thus, property development is the only B A o
reportable operating segment of the Group, and no further operating

segment analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information & &kt

No geographical information is presented as the Group's revenue from
the external customers is derived solely from its operation in Mainland

BN AEEREINEEE R AEB H R P E P
NSRS ERER T EIFRBEEUN FREAM

China and no non-current assets of the Group are located outside LSt & » 5t B 2 51 & B o
Mainland China.
Information about major customers BERXrERFNER

No revenue from sales to a single customer or a group of customers
under common control accounted for 10% or more of the Group's
revenue at the end of the reporting period.
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5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mt F5eR R M 5E

31 December 2022
20225128318

T A~ ELfth A B Uk ai
BB :

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARBEF T
Revenue from contracts with customers ZERP AN 34,927,593 39,628,765
Revenue from other sources HhsREUWN
Property lease income MERERAN 390,410 397,061
35,318,003 40,025,826
Revenue from contracts with customers S E= Y SIPN
(a) Disaggregated revenue information @) DA EH

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET AREFT

Types of goods or services: EmEiREESE :
Sale of properties Y EIHE 34,906,704 39,521,551
Management consulting services BIRE MRS 20,889 107,214
Total revenue from contracts with customers & &4 U\ 4258 34,927,593 39,628,765

Timing of revenue recognition: ON 14151

Properties transferred at a point in time PR KRR Y2 34,906,704 39,521,551
Services transferred over time PN — RSB P B EA AR TS 20,889 107,214
Total revenue from contracts with customers & & &I UK N\ 4E %8 34,927,593 39,628,765
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised
in the current reporting period that were included in the
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and
recognised from performance obligations satisfied in previous
periods:

9]

WA~ EAth U A R iz ()

ERAEHWA (@
(@) DIBRAEH (#)

NREFIAREHEDHRAEEE (HRRS
WUt A AGNEERBABEETHNENS
EMHESD) :

Revenue recognised that was included in
contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

LE SRS

Sale of properties

BEMPSACTHEBNEREBIA !

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBT T
30,420,969 34,496,982

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
properties and the Group has already received the payment or
has the right to receive the payment probably.

Management consulting services

For management consulting services, the Group recognises
revenue in the amount that equals to the right to invoice
which corresponds directly with the value to the customer of
the Group's performance to date. The Group has elected the
practical expedient not to disclose the remaining performance
obligations for these types of contracts. The majority of the
management consulting service contracts do not have a fixed
term. The term of the contracts for pre-delivery and consulting
services is generally set to expire when the counterparties notify
the Group that the services are no longer required.
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(b)
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E A5 RS
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(b)  Performance obligations (Continued)
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining

performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as
at 31 December are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

5. WA~HMUA R (@)

BEREGHBA (8

(b) BHEE ()
Rt-B=+—BHRENHRBAEE RE
TRHHRET) WX BEESENT

2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT

Amounts expected to be recognised as ~ TEHARER AN RIS EE

revenue:
Within one year —FRN 35,725,545 40,981,213
After one year —F% 18,551,031 30,428,590
54,276,576 71,409,803
An analysis of other income and gains is as follows: HMBA R @2 2mmT .

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT
Other income and gains H AN R Wz
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMWB AT MR = 51,615
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—MBE AN E 28,616 -
Subsidy income LN 7,311 21,309
Deposit forfeiture B E 19,017 8,668
Investment income from financial assets at R AFETNIEZNERMEEN
fair value through profit or loss BEWAN 234 14,327
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant ~ HEYE . BE MK EEE K E
and equipment 29 -
Exchange gain PE @ U - 83,432
Others Hth 4,834 4,495
60,041 183,846
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 8 R Pd =E
31 December 2022
20225128318

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. FRMAIEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): NEBMZBFERAGEF BEMNR, GEA) THEIEBEE
FER -
2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARET AREF T
Cost of inventories sold (excluding BEFEMAX FEEMRES
impairment losses recognised for MERTFEHE
properties under development and HERRRIEE18)
properties held for sale) 21 29,777,817 31,537,705
Cost of services provided FhEIRMARFE A 15,104 32,164
Impairment losses recognised for properties 5t B8 25 ¥ £ MR HYRER 18
under development 20 111,632 410,425
Impairment losses recognised for properties 5 F H & ¥ £ 3V RE R 18
held for sale 21 233,966 298,081
Impairment of financial assets ERIEERE 22,24 19,646 5,699
Depreciation of items of property, plantand #)3% . BENMREEBEEITE
equipment 13 28,406 44,136
Amortisation of intangible assets I E EHE 16 3,645 3,835
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FERHESERE 15(a) 46,921 36,408
Rental expenses HERX 15(c 4,969 3,496
Auditors' remuneration 1Z B M E EM 9,353 10,100
Employee benefit expense (including EERAM: (BEESERES
directors’ and chief executive’s TEABFH) :
remuneration):
Wages and salaries TERTE 375,672 511,078
Pension scheme contributions and BAREFEHA LT EEA
social welfare 59,385 94,566
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BABAAE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: R AN DTN T -
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETx AREBTT
Interest on loans and borrowings BERNEFHE 2,754,540 3,578,125
Interest expense arising from revenue contracts BHMNEENN S 230,883 819,879
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEME 1,297 1,552
Total interest expense on financial liabilities not at ~ W IFR A FEFT ANBZHN SR EEM
fair value through profit or loss FMERZERE 2,986,720 4,399,556
Less: Interest capitalised B BREAE (2,750,620) (4,049,671)
236,100 349,885
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EFERESITHAEHMN
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed EERESTHRAERUTEENFHRE EmR
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of A~ FERBFRBGIZE383(1)@) ~ (b) ~ (@ ROBUAKRLAE
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (REBEEEFDER) RO L2 WENT ¢
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as

follows:

2022 2021

20225 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTFT AREBTT

Fees W 774 738

Other emoluments: EthEron

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e 2 NEYER 4,145 4,138

Performance related bonus BEWRE = 2,500

Pension scheme contributions and social welfare BAREEIHER R EEF 159 278

4,304 6,916

5,078 7,654

(@) Independent non-executive directors (a) BWIUIFRITES

Mr. Tse Yat Hong, Mr. Chung Chong Sun and Mr. Zhang Huagjiao HEREAE BRI E KRB E 2021
were appointed as independent non-executive directors of the FI0RASHEZEAKRRABINEIULIFNITES-

Company on 5 October 2020.

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the FRSZMNFEUFNITESHNESNOT !
year were as follows:

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFT
Mr. Tse Yat Hong WERELE 258 246
Mr. Chung Chong Sun BAIF A 258 246
Mr. Zhang Huagjiao RIEBRE 258 246
774 738

There was no other emolument payable to the independent FRNEEMEMBIIIENITESNE (2021

non-executive directors during the year (2021: Nil). FIE)o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EEXERESITHAEHM @

REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and the chief executive (b) MITESEAREITHRAER
Mr. Lam Ting Keung is the chairman and an executive director of MERBRLEERBBABEERHITESZT -MF L
the Company. Mr. Lam Yu was appointed as an executive director ER2019F 1081 7HEZEARNITEEFRAT
and executive president on 17 October 2019. Mr. Chen Chaorong YBE o BREAEE L 2019FE 1081 7HESES
was appointed as an executive director on 17 October 2019. Mr. HITESE - FRRLENR2019F10817HESE
Huang Junquan was appointed as an executive director and the ABRITESREMRENEH-

senior vice president on 17 October 2019.

Pension
Salaries, scheme
EEN Performance contributions
and benefits related and social Total
in kind bonus welfare remuneration
BikEEHE
FE B R 5
BENET BHRE HEERH FhifaazE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AE¥TT AE¥TT ARETT
2022 2022
Executive directors: HOEZE !
— Mr. Lam Ting Keung -MEBKE 360 = 12 372
- Mr. Lam Yu —MFEE 360 - 12 372
- Mr. Chen Chaorong —BERRE
(resigned on:25 March 2022) (F202238250
BHE) 275 - 15 290
- Mr. Xu Xiaodong —HINE
(appointed since 25 March 2022) (720224318
25HE) 1,400 - 60 1,460
~ Mr. Huang Junquan -ERRRE 1,750 - 60 1,810
4,145 - 159 4,304
2021 20214
Executive directors: HOEE:
- Mr. Lam Ting Keung —-MEBKE 360 - 64 424
- Mr. Lam Yu —MFELE 360 1,100 64 1524
- Mr. Chen Chaorong —BEEEE 1,667 700 75 2442
~ Mr. Huang Junquan —BRRKE 1,751 700 75 2526
4,138 2,500 278 6916
Mr. Chen Chaorong resigned on 25 March 2022, and Mr. Xu FREFES LA FR2022F3 25 H T » MR/ NE
Xiaodong was designated as an executive director on the same SREHEZEANITES-
day.
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FRAUTREEREIDEZRETAFHFMNZR
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. o
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9.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two directors
(2021: two directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note
8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the three (2021:
three) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

IsxEEmES

FRNLLERSHEECEMLES (2021F : WRE
F) > HiFBNF B E N EXEEse =4 (20216 1 =
2) BEERBEFTIFERSTHRAENRSHES
REABFMFIBNT ¢

2022 2021

20225 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTFT AREBTT

Salaries, allowances, bonus and benefits in kind e R TEAREYRER 2,958 3,660
Performance related bonus BEWRE = 1,600
Pension scheme contributions and social welfare BARETEHR LTS EF 142 222
3,100 5,482

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

HMNF TIERENIFEFTIFRSTRARNER
SR EEABNT

Number of employees

L4

2021
20214

Nil to HK$2,000,000 £ Z),000,000%8 75 3 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 78 75 & 2,500,0007 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 75 2 3,000,0007 75 = 1
3 3

Annual Report 2022 Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited

167



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

10. INCOME TAX 10. FRiGiR

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising AEEBRAERRE A FEMEEEFRERK A
in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of the Group AREEELIREBENF B RERBEEGMME
are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the HoREREFENRAKRMN XAB RAEER
Cayman Islands, the Group's subsidiaries incorporated in the Cayman HENEMRABRELBEESHMARIINMBE AR ®EE
Islands and British Virgin Islands are not subject to any income tax. The BRERER AEBREBTMRINMEL
Group's subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong were not liable for BIEABMMER AAZSERARARBES
income tax as they did not have any assessable profits currently arising FE+_RA=Z+—BHLEETEREBEEL T MESR
in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2022. TRFHE

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China were subject to BRI E A BN AR E B KBRS B S
PRC corporate income tax with a tax rate of 25% for the year except for REINFREZ25%N IR E M PR BZEFER

the following subsidiary:

Corporate

income

Company name tax rate

NEILTE REFRFRE

Chongging Jinhui Changjiang Properties Co., Ltd. EESBRIBHERRAR (EEEERI 15%
("Chonggqing Jinhui Changjiang”) *

* According to the Announcement on Further Implementation of * RIBE KRB RBHBEG BRI RA BRI AME
Corporate Income Tax Policy for the development of the Western HIEESHCEMSRBENRE) (CTE—ZF%12
Regions (2012 No.12) issued by the State Taxation Administration and 5%) U R BB EIRRHARE KR ERE RN
the extension of the Corporate Income Tax Policy for the development LA EMNBIRNICERBAMELEMS
of the Western Regions (2020 No.23) jointly issued by the Ministry of MBENAE) (CTTZEFEFE3H) BT ——F
Finance, State Taxation Administration and National Development and EIZ=RE REEANRBREIEESBERIIGE
Reform Commission, Chongging Jinhui Changjiang, subsidiaries of the BREB 1SN A E PERINEEREK
Group, is qualified to enjoy the preferential tax policy of western regions
enterprise income tax of 15% from 2011 to 2030.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the THIEER TR B F30%E60%H) RER T EH L i

appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sales of properties EERERUW O T IR ERE A EHEEMERIERA

less deductible expenditures including land costs, borrowing costs and RS (BT A B A e Eth ) 258 88

other property development expenditures. The Group has estimated, FX) cAEERBEEATPERNMRBEEEERN

made and included in taxation a provision for LAT according to the REATHIZERMGE  FHAEHEREBER H

requirements set forth in the relevant Mainland China tax laws and BEREEEHEMRBEEAETREAEZRME.

regulations. The LAT provision is subject to the final review and

approval by the local tax bureau.

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT

Current tax: BUHERFR IS :
Corporate income tax TEMER 1,185,375 1,340,171
LAT THIBER 305,933 1,410,572
Deferred tax (note 19) EEFRIE (F5E19) 131,977 21,193
Total tax charge for the year FNRIES HAEEE 1,623,285 2,771,936
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10.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. FRISH (@)
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before tax KABRARBOWEAD T MAEEE BT
at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the ERZABENRRANGFERNMEMRBASZ UK
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax expense at EAME AVEERE) HERRENHERAOT !
the effective income tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate
(i.e, the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate are as follows:
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARHEFTT
Profit before tax FRAR BT A 3,706,435 6,465,631
At the statutory income tax rate BATEMSMESE 926,609 1,616,408
Lower tax rates for specific provinces FFER /DS EMEETIENEEIRE
or enacted by local authority (7,677) (24,833)
Expenses not deductible for tax ENEIEE A 15,902 29,963
Profits and losses attributable to EEPENRBEABEGRNREE
joint ventures and associates 60,403 (187,212)
Deductible temporary differences and tax losses ARESEEENRBEFENEA
utilised from previous years 2 IEE18 (54,155) (70,390)
Unrecognised deductible temporary differences and REER A IR E M ERE MRIEEIE
tax losses 473,236 436,340
Adjustment of current tax for previous years B FEERERR BT (20,483) (86,269)
Provision for LAT T IR (E R B 305,933 1,410,572
Tax effect on LAT THIEERNIR B TR (76,483) (352,643)
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BAREBEERREHENRIELH 1,623,285 2,771,936

The share of tax attributable to associates and joint ventures amounting
to RMB163,673,000 (2021: RMB213,694,000) and RMB244,211,000 (2021:
RMB32,789,000), respectively, is included in “Share of profits and losses
of joint ventures and associates” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

RAFEDEHERDRGELERERES S
AR 1163,673,00070 (20214F © AR 1§213,694,0007T)
B AR #8244,211,0007% (20214 @ AR #32,789,000
7o) HEEtAGEEEREMEERBRAERAMDEEE
PERBE ARG REERIET -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. FRiS1R (@
Tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial position AR RNRANEMREZINT
represents:

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTFT
Tax payables: FEfF#R 1A
Corporate income tax EFRER 1,162,538 959,405
LAT IR ETR 4,107,552 3,905,383
Total tax payable e IR IE 48 2R 5,270,090 4,864,788
11. DIVIDENDS 1. B2
The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 of AEBRER-Z__FRAZ+HRTHRRE
HK$0.16 (equivalent to RMBO.13 yuan) per ordinary share, amounting EAgEMAERSEEE S —F+-8=+—H
to a total of approximately RMB525,879,510, was approved by the FEFEZRBRESREERKI6ET HERAR
Group's shareholders at the annual general meeting on 20 May 2022. #0.137T) A HABANRKES258795107c L EE
The above-mentioned declared dividend was paid before 31 December EKREER ZE__F+"A=+—HAaiIX%fd-
2022.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, no dividends have been PRRERRE IEEEMEE_S-"F+2A
proposed by the directors for the year ended 31 December 2022. —+—BUEFERERS -
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12.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. BAREBEEFAEARGERER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the EREABAEBENLNBESLARATERERIFTEA
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, REFRNENRERNEZETEBRMETLHH
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 4,045,227,000 4,045,227,0008% (ZF ——4%F : 4,045,227,000f%) st & o
(2021: 4,045,227,000) in issue during the year.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate AUSHEBRE S __r_ZE”-Z—F+ZA
the basic earnings per share amounts for the years ended 31 —t+—BLEFESREABANZERINEFISH
December 2022 and 2021 was based on 1 share of the Company as DBIRER_SE—hAE+B+EtHEAQT M
at 17 October 2019, 1 share of the Company issued on 6 March 2020, NZEZZEF=ABARRABETIREN KBE
and 3,399,999,998 ordinary shares of the Company issued under A TETEFTRA A REENERCETME
the capitalisation issue occurred on 29 October 2020, as if these THIAS /A B)3,399,999,9988% I 48 A% (MR E AL
additional shares issued under the capitalisation issue had been in BIIMBTHNZZEINRDERBEEZ I 2FR
issue throughout the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. On 29 T2 F+ZA=+—BLEFEZFSET) 5
October 2020, the Company issued 600,000,000 new ordinary shares. HEEH RIEZEFE+B-+HhH > AAFEST
On 25 November 2020, the over-allotment option has been partially 600,000,000 E@EE - N S _EF+—AZ+H
exercised and the Company allotted and issued 45,227,000 additional H BREEREERDTHEEALBRE RET
shares. 45,227,0008% EBIMZ A7 ©
No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amounts HE S FR-_F—F+ZHA=+—HIHF
presented for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 in respect EriuEmpiEaHwigNeREARAECEFELA
of a dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in BoDHRAEERBEE SRS —F
issue during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. +ZA=t+—HUIEFEUEZTEABTEHELS
f% o
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share amounts EREAREERM BN TEEHFE -
are based on:
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT AREBTFT
Earnings gl
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the AT E@ETIFE AEEEF
parent 1,705,026 3,274,774
Number of shares
i 15 B
2021
20214
Shares [i:3v
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in FNEE 1B I FE 3 EX
issue during the year 4,045,227,000 4,045,227,000
Earnings per share SRET
Basic and diluted BEARREE RMBO.42 yuan RMBO0.81 yuan
AR¥o0.427T AR #B0.817T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 8 R Pd =E
31 December 2022
20225128318

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2022

At 31 December 2021 and

2022%12H31H

B2021FE 2R3 K

13. ME -BERRE

Buildings

BF
RMB'000
AEBTFR

Office
equipment

Motor and electronic

vehicles

e
RMB'000
ARBF7

devices
MARER
BEFRE
RMB'000
AREBTR

Leasehold
improvements
HEMZ
%18
RMB'000
AEBTT

Total

Hit
RMB'000
AEBTR

1 January 2022: 2002F1818 ¢

Cost A 622,512 141,551 88,177 72,218 924,458

Accumulated depreciation REtiE (150,744) (126,612) (63,551) (65,377) (406,284)
Net carrying amount REZE 471,768 14,939 24,626 6,841 518,174
At 1 January 2022, net of accumulated $820228181H,

depreciation NBRENE 471,768 14,939 24,626 6,841 518,174

Additions RE 26,097 = 1,688 1,848 29,633

Disposals HE - (161) (217) = (378)

Depreciation provided during the  ENEEEITE (ko)

year (note 6) (13,825) (2,199) (7,214) (5,168) (28,406)

At 31 December 2022, net of 120225128318,

accumulated depreciation MERHTE 484,040 12,579 18,883 3,521 519,023
At 31 December 2022: 120225128318 ¢

Cost D% 648,609 138,546 87,090 74,066 948,311

Accumulated depreciation REIE (164,569) (125,967) (68,207) (70,545) (429,288)
Net carrying amount REZE 484,040 12,579 18,883 3,521 519,023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13. ¥ -BERRZE &)

Office
equipment
Motor and electronic Leasehold
Buildings vehicles devices improvements Total
MARER HEME
15 bt BETHE gi& st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR AREBTR ARETxR
31 December 2021 20215128318
At 31 December 2020 and 12020128318 RK
1 January 2021 22151818 ¢
Cost A 429,909 143,640 77478 73,564 724,591
Accumulated depreciation REtiE (125,027) (128,620) (58,280) (58,132) (370,059)
Net carrying amount REZE 304,882 15,020 19,198 15,432 354,532
At 1 January 2021, net of R2021%1818,
accumulated depreciation NBRENE 304,882 15,020 19,198 15,432 354,532
Additions wE 192,603 3,576 13,371 2,559 212,109
Disposals HE - (1,004) (270) - (1,274)
Disposal of subsidiaries KRB AT - (64) (216) 2,777) (3,057)
Depreciation provided during ENBRENE (ko)
the year (note 6) (25,717) (2,589) (7,457) (8,373) (44,136)
At 31 December 2021, net of K021 128318,
accumulated depreciation MERTE 471,768 14,939 24,626 6,841 518,174
At 31 December 2021: 20215128318 ¢
Cost 3% 622,512 141,551 88,177 72218 924,458
Accumulated depreciation REITE (150,744) (126,612) (63,551) (65,377) (406,284)
Net carrying amount REFE 471,768 14,939 24,626 6,841 518,174
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

13.

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)  13. ¥J¥ - BE KRR HE @
As at 31 December 2022, there were no items of Group’s property, plant 2022 12831H ZEBRNYE - BE AR ETE
and equipment which have been pledged to secure bank and other EEHIER A AERERAVIRIT R EMMERFITHE
borrowings granted to the Group (note 31) (2021: RMB8,406,000). (MF5E31) (20214F © AR #8,406,0007T) ©
As at 31 December 2022, the Group's property, plant and equipment R2022F 1283 1B AEBEEEEHEAARE
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB22,263,000 (2021: 22,263,00070 (20214F © AR #22,865,0007T) BRI 2
RMB22,865,000) have been pledged to secure asset-backed securities BERZBEER AXEENEEIRFE SRR
granted to the Group (note 32). (FF5E32) ©
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYE
Under
construction Completed Total
T2 BigT Mt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFTT AREFT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 20211 B ENEREE 664,100 10,288,500 10,952,600
Additions B 190,198 - 190,198
Transfer from properties under ERaRE P (isk20)
development (note 20) 2,140,016 - 2,140,016
Transferred S22 (2,330,214) 2,330,214 -
Net gain from a fair value adjustment ‘A {EFHEEFT S UL T F 48 11,600 645,386 656,986
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 22021 12831H &
and 1 January 2022 2022F 1 A1 BEREE 675,700 13,264,100 13,939,800
Transfer from properties under EEAREEPYE (WeE20)
development (note 20) 1,572,326 - 1,572,326
Transferred B - (26,500) (26,500)
Net gain from a fair value adjustment ‘A F{EFAEEFR BN G FEE 713,674 130,900 844,574
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 522022412831 HEREE 2,961,700 13,368,500 16,330,200

The Group's investment properties are situated in Mainland China.
The Group's investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2022 based on valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited and Shenzhen Cushman & Wakefield
Real Estate Evaluation Co., Ltd. independent professionally qualified
valuers, at RMB16,330,200,000 (2021: RMB13,939,800,000). The Group's
senior finance manager and the Group'’s financial controller decide,
after approval from the board of directors of the Company, to appoint
which external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of
the Group's properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group's senior finance manager has discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the
valuations are performed for financial reporting.
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's investment properties with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB4,290,100,000 (2021:
RMB4,475,500,000) were pledged to secure bank and other borrowings
granted to the Group (note 31).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's investment properties with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB8,396,000,000 (2021:
RMB8,351,000,000) were pledged to asset-backed securities granted to
the Group (note 32).

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of
the Group's investment properties:

14.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

REME @

R2022F 1283 1H AEBBRKREEANARE
4,290,100,0007T (20214F : AR #4,475,500,0007T) A%
BYEBER AREREZNIETREMMERE
AR (MF5E31) ©

R2022F 1283 1B AEERREEAARE
8,396,000,0007 (20214 © AR #§8,351,000,0007T) AI#&
EMECER AXEBRNEEIRIFESFRE (F
£132) ©

AFERR
TRAPFEBMRENENATEHEER

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2022 using
12022512831 HERAU T RN A FEFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

RiER EXARRE EAFAER

TiRNERE BABE BARE

(F—#) (BE=H) (F=H) 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBFT ARBTT ARBTT

Recurring fair value measurement for: U TEEETH
ERURTESE:
Commercial properties [BESUES
under construction i - - 2,961,700 2,961,700
completed B®T - - 13,368,500 13,368,500
- - 16,330,200 16,330,200
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. IREYE @
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NEEER (&)

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2021 using

P02 DB BERUATRANATFEHE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
KB EXAHRE ERTAIBRE
TIENRE AR BAHE
E—H) (EZ#R) (B=%H) 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Recurring fair value measurement for: MU TEEETH
KEURTEHE:
Commercial properties mENE
under construction nE - - 675,700 675,700
completed EBT - - 13,264,100 13,264,100
- - 13,939,800 13,939,800
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements RAFE F—REAE_RzEALEAFETEN
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 EEO NESBASBEHE=R Q021F 1 F) e
(2021: Nil).
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key MM AEEMELEMANGERMTREZEGAK
inputs to the valuation of investment properties: BE .
Range or weighted average
31 December
BHEFMETH
12A31H
Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs 2021
hER EARABRRBARE 20215
Completed commercial properties Income approach Expected rental value (per square metre RMBO0.6-16.3 RMBO0.1-19.3
BB TIEENE s and per day) AR#0.6TE AEWBOITE
BHAEEE AE¥#1637 ARE1937T
(BTHRRER)
Capitalisation rate 3%-6% 3%-6%
BARLE 3%ZE6% 3%Z6%
Commercial properties under Asset based approach Expected selling price (per square metre) RMB2,290-8,900 RMB9,559-9,852
construction BEERME FRHHEEBR (BTHXR) AE#22900E AE#95598E
TEBENE 8,9007T AER9,8527T
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value of completed commercial properties is determined
using the income approach by taking into account the rental income
of the properties derived from the existing leases and/or achievable
in the existing market with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the leases, which have been then capitalised to determine
the fair value at an appropriate capitalisation rate. Where appropriate,
reference to the comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market has also been considered.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated rental value
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties. A significant increase/decrease in the
capitalisation rate would result in a significant decrease/increase in the
fair value of the investment properties.

The fair value of commercial properties under construction which are
at the initial construction stage is determined using the asset-based
method. The asset-based method is to use the market comparison
method to evaluate the fair value of the land use right and consider the
book value of the construction and installation costs incurred to obtain
the fair value of the project under construction.

A higher expected value would result in a higher fair value of these
investment properties under construction at the initial construction
stage.

14.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mt F5eR R M 5E

31 December 2022
20225128318

REME @

DT ERER (B
BRIEEMENAFENEARREEE HE
REB}HAURBHEEN SR, XEREWH LY
WE B =B WA - BEBENERWAE
FREGME LERBENEACRETEARLN
EEATE - EBEEBRT TEETESEHEMTES
AIELEBRIHESRRS

HEtESEAABEN RO RERREYENA
TEKREBIEIM, R EARICERIBIE M H R E
BIREMEN R TFEREBRLD G-

TEHENEN LA TENERVNBERAEELRE
HEE - EERER AR EA TS L BUA RS LM (E
RAENATE TEEZER KA ZEEERANER
EENESEREENATE

ZETEREMENERVAKBRNRREES
AlRATEES-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

15. LEASES 15. &

The Group as a lessee TEBEAEBEA

The Group has lease contracts for office buildings. Lump sum payments AEBERRLAERFHESN -BIRAMEE —X %
were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with IHFUAEFWERE > HEAB40E505F > MR
lease periods of 40 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be BzELTMBEENKRIO BT SEEZMEAMRIE
made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of office buildings MAEEFNRPABERIE3IF - MAERENEA
generally have lease terms between 1 and 3 years. Office equipment BEEANBEARUT R/ HENEBERENRE—
generally has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is individually fEmE > AEBFIRAERUMANTEERDHE
of low value. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and HEEE-

subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EFEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the AEMFAFEAREENRDERESHNT -
movements during the year are as follows:
Land use Office
rights buildings Total
T ER R YN RS et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBFT ARBFT AREBTT
As at 1 January 2021 20211818 97,209 23,976 121,185
Additions wnE 680,351 17,375 697,726
Disposals HE - (2,290) (2,290)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRB AT - (1,444) (1,444)
Depreciation charge (note 6) EEA (Mste) (14,781) (21,627) (36,408)
As at 31 December 2021 and 20215128318 X
1 January 2022 2022%F1H1H 762,779 15,990 778,769
Additions wNE - 12,384 12,384
Depreciation charge (note 6) TEER (MsE6) (31,162) (15,759) (46,921)
As at 31 December 2022 72022512A831H 731,617 12,615 744,232
As at 31 December 2022, the Group's land use rights with an FR2022F 1283 1H  AERBEEEANAR
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB636,345,000 #636,345,0007T (20214 : AR #676,666,0007T)
(2021: RMB676,666,000) were pledged to secure bank and other NI EREEER  AAERERNIETR
borrowings granted to the Group (note 31). HERIEIRR (EE31) ©
As at 31 December 2022, the Group's land use rights with an BR2022F 128310 AEEBEEEEAARKE
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB19,197,000 19,197,0007% (20214F © AR #19,703,0007T) 89+
(2021: RMB19,703,000) were pledged to asset-backed securities MWERAECER  ARERNEERTESE
granted to the Group (note 32). IR (M95E32) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. LEASES (Continued) 15. fHE

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

(c)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

(&

FEBERBEEAN (@
(b) HMEARRE
ERRAEEENREEREBNT

FAF5 SRR Y 5

31 December 2022
20225128318

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARHEFTT
Carrying amount at 1 January P1ATENEREE 16,951 23,039
New leases WmHEE 12,384 17,375
Disposal HE = (2,296)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWRB AT — (1,409)
Accretion of interest recognised FNERF S IE 0
during the year (note 7) (FFx7) 1,297 1,552
Payments (NN (16,542) (21,310)
Carrying amount at 31 December PR12B3 1 BRREE 14,090 16,951
Analysed into: PaXiIw I
Current portion BRER SR 5 10,747 11,618
Non-current portion ERNERER 9> 3,343 5333

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 44 to
the financial statements.

to leases are as follows:

HE SRR D TIRER M BEREM 5544

it IES BRI T -

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation (c) BEEHEKE

2022 2021

20224 20216

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AR®BF T

Interest on lease liabilities (note 7) HEaEME (EE7) 1,297 1,552
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FRAREENERS (f15e)

(note 6) 46,921 36,408
Expense relating to short-term leases (note 6) £245EAFE EHRAMIRA X (Mi5E6) 5317 2,155
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets ﬁf&ﬁfﬁﬁ%*ﬂfﬁﬁa IBAZ

(note 6) (MF5E6) 1,652 1,341
Total amount recognised in profit or loss PRI TN IE R IB 4B EE 53,187 41,456
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

15.

LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(d)  The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows
relating to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in
notes 37(c) and 44, respectively, to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

15. 8 @)

KEBEAEBAAN @

(d) HERESMELHEKRAHRBENHEESRDN
FRBERE DA BER M FRRWEF37(0 K
440

FEBEALHBEA

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) under operating AEBREBELEHEZHHABERLEYE (W
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the 14) - FHERR—RERBLZVIRHREZSTRER
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent IR MER A EEEETEHRAE AEEER
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental HERBESIA A AEBE390,410,0007T (20215 © A
income recognised by the Group during the year was RMB390,410,000 E1397,061,0007T) > EEE BN M P IRFRMIFH5 ©
(2021: RMB397,061,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the

financial statements.

1220228128310 AEER BRABRBRAER
ZAP R EHENRRCRASIREERIENT ¢

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenants are as follows:

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFx AREBTT

Within one year —FR 525,827 469,583
After one year but within two years —F L EEMEURN 477,505 410,551
After two years but within three years MEL EEB=F UK 472,495 404,250
After three years but within four years ZEL EBHELRN 350,727 354,867
After four years but within five years OE EBRERFELN 341,894 223,366
After five years EFELE 456,141 418,584
2,624,589 2,281,201
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAF5 SRR Y 5

31 December 2022
20225128318

16. E.EE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREF T
Software ]

At 1 January ®1A1H
Cost AR A 41,569 36,582
Accumulated amortisation Rty (22,796) (18,973)
Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated amortisation 71 B 1HBIALAS, IR R st 4 18,773 17,609
Additions AE 9,153 4,999
Disposals HeE (82) -
Amortisation provided during the year (note 6) ENEEEEH#E (F5t6) (3,645) (3,835)
At 31 December ®128318 24,199 18,773
Cost AR A 50,631 41,569
Accumulated amortisation Rty (26,432) (22,796)
Net carrying amount BREFE 24,199 18,773

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. REETENRKE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREF T
Share of net assets MEEEFE 2,421,726 3,068,915

The Group's receivable and payable balances with joint ventures are
disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements.

AEBREGELENRBRENRIBEREENT
PIR&RMIEE41 0

Annual Report 2022 Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited 181



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(@) Particulars of the Group’s material joint ventures are as follows:

Place and year of

17. REETENKRE @

@@ A&

Nominal
value of
registered

FHETECEREMFBNT

Statutory
percentage of
ownership
interest
attributable  Principal

Name of companies registration share capital to the Group  activity
FEREMN
TN PR IR
REATE EEEY S0 HEE EEBSL  FEEH
(RMB’000)
(ANEBTT)

Fuging Jinhui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. Fuging, PRC 2014 50,000 50.00% Property development
("Fuqing Jinhui’) PEIfEE20144F Mm%
BECBEXERAS (BEEE)

Jingzhou JinhuiRongyu Real Estate Jingzhou, PRC 2018 220,000 54.55%  Property development
Development Co,, Ltd. HR I M20185F YRR
("Jingzhou Jinhui Rongyu’)

FiMeEmTREMERZEERAF
(TFI M £ HERF )

Chongging Jinjiahe Properties Development  Chongging, PRC 2017 50,000 49.00%  Property development
Co, Ltd. ("Chonggqing Jinjiahe”) PEIEE20174F MR
ERSERRHMERERRAT
(TEBEE)

Chongging Jinbi Yaju Properties Development  Chongging, PRC 2017 450,000 34.00% Property development
Co, Ltd. ("Chonggqing Jinbi Yaju") PEIEE20174 E e
EETERERMERERRATS
(TEESERE)

o Pursuant to the articles of association, another shareholder of o RIFABERMA AMNSEBRFNS — 4

Jingzhou Jinhui Rongyu has been entitled to 50% of the voting
power by holding 45.45% of equity interests in it, which was
negotiated and agreed by all shareholders. The finance and
operation of Jingzhou Jinhui Rongyu must be decided by all
investors together, and shareholders have common control
over Jingzhou jinhui Rongyu. Thus, Jingzhou Jinhui Rongyu
is accounted for as a joint venture by the Group through its
holding of 54.55% of equity interests in it.

B Pursuant to the articles of association, another shareholder
of Chongqging Jinjiahe has been entitled to 50% of the voting
power by holding 51% of equity interests in it, which was
negotiated and agreed by all shareholders. The finance and
operation of Chongqing Jinjiahe must be decided by each
investor together, and shareholders have common control over
Chongging Jinjiahe. Thus Chongging Jinjiahe is accounted for as
a joint venture by the Group through its holding of 49% of equity
interests in it.

- Pursuant to the articles of association, the other shareholders
of Chongqing Jinbi Yaju have been entitled to 50% of the
voting power by holding 66% of equity interests in it, which
was negotiated and agreed by all shareholders. The finance and
operation of Chongging Jinbi Yaju must be decided by each
investor together, and shareholders have common control over
Chongging Jinbi Yaju. Thus Chongqing Jinbi Yaju is accounted
for as a joint venture by the Group through its holding of 34% of
equity interests in it.
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17.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(b)

Chongging Jinjiahe is considered as a material joint venture of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021, which co-
develops a property development project with another joint
venture partner in Mainland China and the it is accounted for
using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of Chongging Jinjiahe:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

17. REETENKRE @

(b) EE2021FE1N2B3HLEEE EESERER
AREENSESE LY BEPERMMNS—
MegErEaBpHPRE—BYEREEE
BLERZEAR.

TRIITEESERNYBERIE

2021
20214
RMB'000
AREF T
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEBY 11,039
Other current assets HMREh&EE 4,965,920
Current assets MBEE 4,976,959
Non-current assets EREEE 73,506
Current liabilities V=R (2,559,780)
Non-current financial liabilities, excluding trade and other FrRBEmasE, TeEEES R
payables and provisions HitE B R EE (958)
Net assets BEFE 2,489,727
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the joint venture: MAEBNAELENEREIR
Proportion of the Group's ownership KEBBFRB LA 49%
Group's share of net assets of the joint venture KEEBDMEEETEEEFE 1,219,966
Revenue Y 2 750,390
Expenses sz (753,495)
Tax R (101,917)
Loss for the year FENEE (105,022)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FENLHEEIELERE (105,022)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(c)  The directors of the Group consider that none of the joint
ventures as at 31 December 2022 were significant to the Group
and thus the individual financial information of the joint ventures
is not disclosed (31 December 2021: one). The following table
illustrates the aggregate financial information of the Group's joint
ventures that are not individually material:

(@

17. REETENKRE @

R2022F 1283 1B AEERAUBEEAGE
TEHAERBEAN HEECENERMG
BRI RIRE (2021F128318 | —/) o F&
RAEBELIEFERHBEANEGELENEGH
I ER

2022 2021
2022%F 20216
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR#FTT
Share of the joint ventures’ profits and DMEEEREEN G REBE
losses for the year (732,632) 149,827
Share of the joint ventures' total DMEEEhELE BB IRNLEEE
comprehensive (loss)/income (732,632) 149,827
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AEERGE XL ENEREE
investments in the joint ventures 2,421,726 1,848,949

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that impairment
of RMB750,278,000 for investments in joint ventures is necessary
as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). The joint ventures have
been accounted for using the equity method in these financial
statements.

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

2022 12B31H A AR EERAEBLE
REERELETIRE ARE750,278,0007T
(2021 1 F) - B PERZEMBHRENGE
AR EAR.

18. MBEQRNIKE

2022 2021
20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AREF T

Share of net assets DMEBEEZFE 5,688,636 5,395,080

The Group's receivable and payable balances with associates are
disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements.
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18.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a)

Particulars of the Group’s material associates are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAF5 SRR Y 5

31 December 2022
20225128318

18. REEATNIRE (@)

FEBMERBEATMNFBMOT :

Nominal Statutory
value of percentage of
registered ownership interest
Place and year of share attributable  Principal
Name of companies registration capital to the Group  activity
FEBMERS
AR FiEREER
GRS St RER HEE EEESL TEEY
(RMB'000)
NS )
Hangzhou Xinjianhui Industrial Co,, Ltd. ("Hangzhou Xinjianhui")  Hangzhou, PRC 2017 2,500,000 51.00%  Investment management
MHEREZEERAT (AMNBERE) " FEHIN20174 REERE
Chengdu Ronghui Qiaoyu Real Estate Co,, Ltd. Chengdu, PRC 2017 900,000 50.00%  Property development
(‘Chengdu Ronghui Qiaoyu’) IR E820174 ES K
RARBEFELERA (HBREFETF))
Nanjing Hongrun Properties Development Co,, Ltd. Nanjing, PRC 2019 750,000 49.00%  Property development
(‘Nanjing Hongrun Properties’) HEFR019E b
BRAERHEREERAR (ARMEEHE)
Fuzhou Changle Ronghaihui Properties Co,, Ltd. Fuzhou, PRC 2019 100,000 33.00%  Property development
(‘Fuzhou Changle’) B 2019 L ESE
BNTREBREEELERAD (RNTRE)
Fuging Maohui Real Estate Co, Ltd. ('Fuging Maohui’) Fuging, PRC 2018 30,000 49.00%  Property development
BAREEEXERAR (RERE) FEI&A2018F MERE
Lianyungang Qihui Properties Development Co,, Ltd. Lianyungang, PRC 2019 413,000 50.00%  Property development
(‘Lianyungang Qihui’) FEEZE019E MERH
EZERERMAEREERAD MEEHRE)
Fuging Maojin Properties Development Co,, Ltd. Fuging, PRC 2018 200,000 49.00%  Property development
(‘Fuging Maojin Properties’) FEIRE18E MERE

BEXERMEREARAD (BRAXERERE)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 R R MY 5E

31 December 2022

20224128318

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(@) Particulars of the Group's material associates are as follows:
(Continued)

Pursuant to the articles of association, another shareholder of
Hangzhou Xinjianhui has been entitled to 51% of the voting
power by holding 49% of equity interests in it, which was
negotiated and agreed by all shareholders. The Group only has
significant influence on this entity as the other shareholder of
Hangzhou Xinjianhui has enough voting power to control and
operate this entity. Thus, Hangzhou Xinjianhui is accounted for as
an associate by the Group through its holding of 51% of equity
interests in it.

Pursuant to the articles of association, another shareholder
of Chengdu Ronghui Qiaoyu has been entitled to 51% of the
voting power by holding 50% of equity interests in it, which was
negotiated and agreed by all shareholders. The Group only has
significant influence on this entity as the other shareholder of
Chengdu Ronghui Qiaoyu has enough voting power to control
and operate this entity. Thus, Chengdu Ronghui Qiaoyu is
accounted for as an associate by the Group through its holding
of 50% of equity interests in it.

Pursuant to the articles of association, another shareholder of
Lianyungang Qihui has been entitled to 60% of the voting power
by holding 50% of equity interests in it, which was negotiated
and agreed by all shareholders. The Group only has significant
influence on this entity as the other shareholder of Lianyungang
Qihui has enough voting power to control and operate this
entity. Thus, Lianyungang Qihui is accounted for as an associate
by the Group through its holding of 50% of equity interests in it.
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18. REELQATINKE @

(a)

FEMERBEATNFBEOT : (B

REABSZMER IMNBERENS —RR
REAS1%IR R A HA49%0I % > Th
HeRREErDE AEEEHZERE
BEARE ANMNEZEBNEMBRRE
BERANRZEITNREEZHEE AL 7
IR B ARSI B A E B R A Ho %R BB

RFBAMSZMER BEEBTHS -4
REZHS 1%L HER Hs0%R R # -
TPHERRREABE AEEENZER
BEEATE REHEERFHEAMEK
RHEARHNRERENIREEZER R
It PR ER BB B T ABRT B A E MR A H50%
RN BE AT -

RIFABERER BERBENEMRE
ZH0NHIRERLHES H50%0 R ThH
EREREEHE FEBMENZSRES
BAREN REESRBENEMKRRES
BHMBRERESREEZER EIL BE
BEEARRY A AN EERFA H50%R S
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18.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)

Hangzhou Xinjianhui is considered as a material associate of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021, which co-develops
a property development project with other associate partners in
Mainland China and Hangzhou Xinjianhui is accounted for using
the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of Hangzhou Xinjianhui:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

18. REELATINKE (@

(b) WMMNEBEEBREE2021F128318 L FEEHE
AREENEAHEAT  HEFERMEM
MEBHERME—EYWEMEER  ZMM
EEBLUEREAR

TRITAIMNZZENYBERTE

2021
20214
RMB'000
ARBTFT
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEBY 247,734
Other current assets HMREh&EE 2,089,426
Current assets MENE E 2,337,160
Non-current assets FERBEE 61
Current liabilities mEaE (150,039)
Non-current financial liabilities, excluding trade and other FrRBEmaE, ~1aEE5 KEM
payables and provisions PEAS FRIB A 43 4 -
Net asset HEFE 2,187,182
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the associate: MAEBNHE N NEREIR
Proportion of the Group'’s ownership REB PTG EES LG 51%
Group's share of net assets of the associate REEDEHENTDEERE 1,115,463
Revenue W as 3,751,141
Expenses X (3,531,059)
Tax RI1g _
Profit for the year FENEA 220,082
Total comprehensive income for the year FENEEWNGREE 220,082
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REERXTNKRE (@)

() Fuging Maohui Properties is considered as a material associate (© @AXEBEERMENREZE2021F12831HIEFE
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021, which co- WERKTEENBREE QT HEERM
develops a property development project with other associate HMMERHEERRE—EMEREES  Z
partners in Mainland China and the associate is accounted for BE AR U R IAALR

using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRIIT@ERIEEMENTHERBIE .
information of Fuging Maohui Properties:

2021
20214
RMB'000
AREF T
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEBY 91,044
Other current assets HMREh&EE 909,805
Current assets MBEE 1,000,849
Non-current assets EREEE 58
Current liabilities V=R (488,834)
Non-current financial liabilities, excluding trade and other FrRBEmasE, TeEEES R
payables and provisions H b (S TR IB R -
Net assets BEFE 512,073
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the associate: HMALEBNHE N NERER
Proportion of the Group's ownership KEBEMEHEBELL G 49%
Group's share of net assets of the associate REEDEHENDEERE 250,916
Carrying amount of the investment KRENRBE
Revenue & 2,767,320
Expenses (353 (1,992,605)
Tax 18 (262,641)
Profit for the year F s Fl 512,074
Total comprehensive income for the year ENeEmBNELE 512,074
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18.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(@

The directors of the Group consider that none of the associates
as at 31 December 2022 were significant to the Group and
thus the individual financial information of the associates is
not disclosed (31 December 2021: two). The following table
illustrates the aggregate financial information of the Group's
associates that are not individually material:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mt F5eR R M 5E

31 December 2022
20225128318

18. REEATNIRE (@)

(€ FR202F 1B H  AEBRALETMEHE
NEIHAEBBE A B E QB NER RME
BERIGARIE (2021F128318 WA o F&
FIRAEBELIEERBEANKE ABNE G
I ER

Share of the associates’ profits and losses for
the year

Share of the associates’ total comprehensive
income

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
investments in the associates

DIEHE RBFE A R EE
DIGBERNB 2E R NRER

FEBRBEQNTDRENBEREE

2022 2021
20224F 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFx ARB#F T
491,020 277,924
491,020 277,924
5,688,636 4,028,701

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that impairment
of RMB14,590,000 for investments in associates is necessary
as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). The associates have been
accounted for using the equity method in these financial
statements.

R2022F12831H ARBEEIRABEMER
B A BB R E AR #14,590,0007T
(2021 1 F) B RBENZEMBHRENGE
AR EAR.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 8 R Pd =E
31 December 2022
20225128318

19. DEFERRED TAX 19. IEIEFRIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are RERRERBE EREBENESHMT -
as follows:
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEE &
Fair value
Losses  adjustments
available  arising from Expenses Unrealised
for offsetting financial ~ for offsetting revenue in
against future assets  against future Impairment contract Accrued Lease
taxable profits at FVTPL taxable profits of assets liabilities LAT liabilities Total
BRATERA
AfiEE  BRNER HHRE
ARERR BEELH  ERREH RNBEN ezt L3t
HANEGE  ATERE HIE% BERME AERKE 1R HEAR it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREBTR ARETn ARETR AR®Tz ARBTn ARETR ARETR
At T January 2021 Ra0141818 202,531 - 237,981 121,861 2,065,049 616966 5,759 3,250,147
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAH - - - - (86,034) - - (86,034)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) P35t N/ (B3 A) B&H
to profit or loss during the year JEXEARIE (Fi5E10)
(note 10) (28324) 785 (21,023) 10,969 (53,419) 184,764 (947) 92,805
At31 December2021and  FR2021E 128318 K
1 January 2022 174,207 785 216,958 132,830 1,925,596 801,730 4,812 3,256,918
Deferred tax credited/(charged) M5t N,/ (1B E) BHEHN
to profit or loss during the year EXERRTE (Fi5E10)
(note 10) 197,392 (785) 28,516 59,579 (477,870) 17,725 (1,289) (176,732)
At 31 December 2022 R2022%128318 371,599 - 245,474 192,409 1,447,726 819,455 3,523 3,080,186
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 19. IRIEMIA (48)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are RERRERBE EREBNESHMT | (@
as follows: (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEER
Fair value
adjustments
Fair value arising from
adjustments Fair value business
arising from  adjustments combinations
Accrued financial ~ arising from and costs Depreciation
financial assetsat  investment to obtain of investment Right-of-
income FVTPL properties contracts properties use assets Total
RATE EBaf
FAREMN EEH
SRIEE REWE ATESRE
EEH EEW  REREH
EsuBRA ATERE ATERE MEE REVERE FHAEEE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTRn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETET
At 1 January 2021 RaongE1A18 44,351 736 1609310 1075965 93,833 5978 2830173
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT - - - (10916) - - (10916)
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to R (5t \) /IR BBREN
profit or loss during the year BIERIE (fEE0)
(note 10) 101,344 (736) 162,186 (187,801) 40413 (1,408) 113,998
At 31 December 2021 and R2021512831BR202E181H
1 January 2022 145,695 - 1,771,496 877,248 134,246 4,570 2,933,255
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to 873 (GF ) /HBREIBEM
profit or loss during the year ERERIE (HiEE10)
(note 10) 187,563 786 211,124 (471,114) 28,302 (1,416) (44,755)
At 31 December 2022 120225128318 333,258 786 1,982,620 406,134 162,548 3,154 2,888,500
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 19.

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position
amounting to RMB429,432,000 (2021: RMB311,928,000). The following is
an analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

EFER IR (18)

MENMES > £EEA AR K429432,0007T (20214 @ A

FE#311,928,0007t) WA TREREEEREBEER

%?éﬁﬁ“#ﬁﬁ%zm&ﬁ MUTAMMBREFEEND
IEIERRIBLEBR DA ¢

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT AREFT

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the R E MBI R NS
consolidated statement of financial position @Lﬁfﬁiﬁ&@@ 2,650,754 2,944,990

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the A ??éﬂ??#ﬂ%%?ﬂﬁ

consolidated statement of financial position RERIBEBEEFRE (2,459,068) (2,621,327)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2022, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group's fund will be retained in Mainland China for the
expansion of the Group's operation, so it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB2,165,284,000 (2021: RMB1,495,505,000).
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RIB(REARSEMEACEMERE) EHEAMK
TR ERECERBINEEET RN BB
T10%RTEI0IR - B E H2008E 1 B 1 HEEER T EA
72007512831 BE EE N o 8 o B A9 it 8 5% 5
B EEME AR BERIIHBE  TRARK
BIRE - AEENBEARER10% FIL > XEEH
Bk 5% 5 1E P B P AR 3L B B A B Bt B 200851 B 1
HEEEENRBRA 2K IR SMAMTEIOR o

20225 1283 1H TEMRARAD RAERNFE
P AR 3L BB B A B BB TBIN R B R B E B A FE
THEINRERTARIEREB AR ESRRE
FEENESRMITERAEBRNEEMNTER
HAREE  MZEH B AT N E B RKT A BED K
BRABAF o B30 5 e s E IR IE & & 19 B A9 3 B
BAEMKREHBENEREEBRESENARE
2,165,284,0007C (20214 : AR #1,495,505,0007T) ©



19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

20.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mt F5eR R M 5E

31 December 2022
20225128318

19. IRIEMIA (48)
WA T EERDEERESE :

2022 2021
20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET AREF T

Tax losses MIEE1E 4,518,043 2,907,463
Deductible temporary differences EERbEAIESF- 510,203 526,391
5,028,246 3,433,854

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the
extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits through future
taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not
recognise deferred tax assets of approximately RMB1,129,511,000 (2021:
RMB726,866,000) in respect of losses amounting to approximately
RMB4,518,043,000 (2021: RMB2,907,463,000), that can be carried
forward to offset against future taxable income. These tax losses will
expire up to and including years 2023, 2024, 2025, 2026 and 2027.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

M EERERIEF R ESEBRKRERREN IR
A E R A SR IER BRI IEE E ° 122022
F12831H  ZEBITERLY ARBES518,043,00070
(20214 : AR ¥§2,907,463,0007T) MBS I8 FE SRR A
MEEENARBE,129,511,0007T (20214F © AR
726,866,00070) > 52 E 1B 0] F 45 B LUE IH R R FE AR
MUWA - ZERIEHER DR EE20235F 2024
20254 ~ 20265 K 2027F (M BIEZEEE) Eim o

20. FRAEhYE

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARSTT AREF T

At the beginning of the year RER] 106,108,703 103,990,664

Additions wNE 14,364,406 38,650,262

Disposal of subsidiaries HEME AR - (2,350,200)

Transferred to investment properties (note 14) EEE L EYIE (sE14) (1,572,326) (2,140,016)

Transferred to completed properties held for sale R EFIEHEMNIR TY

(note 21) (ff5E21) (30,575,620) (31,764,839)

Impairment losses (note 6) REEE (Mfste) (111,632) (410,425)
Impairment losses transferred to completed EEREEHEHENRIYERE

properties held for sale (note 21) #518 (FE21) 337,948 133,257

At the end of the year REXR 88,551,479 106,108,703
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Continued)  20. BZ % (&)

The movements in provision for impairment of properties under HEPYERERENESHUWT !
development are as follows:

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ANEEFT
At the beginning of the year REF) (499,956) (222,788)
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) EEREERBE (o) (111,632) (410,425)
Impairment losses transferred to completed ERERHEFHENRIYE
properties held for sale (note 21) HEEBE (HEE21) 337,948 133,257
At the end of the year RER (273,640) (499,956)
The Group's properties under development are situated on leasehold AERPBEERY VAR PEAMPNEAE i1 Lo
lands in Mainland China.
At 31 December 2022, the Group's properties under development with R2022F 1283 1H AEBEEEDEOARE
an aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB40,677,640,000 40,677,640,00077 (20214 @ AR #55,611,076,00070) BY
(2021: RMB55,611,076,000) were pledged to secure bank and other ETHZEIYEREGH AXREEEREMNRTRE
borrowings granted to the Group (note 31). MERIEIER (MI5E31) -
21. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 21. FEHEBERTYE
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT AEREF T
At the beginning of the year REH) 12,246,662 12,450,866
Transferred from properties under development EIEEREPYE (sF20)

(note 20) 30,575,620 31,764,839
Transferred to cost of inventories sold (note 6) HBEREEFER K (Mste) (29,777,817) (31,537,705)
Impairment losses transferred from properties EHERREPYENREEE

under development (note 20) (BfzE20) (337,948) (133,257)
Impairment losses (note 6) BERBE (E6) (233,966) (298,081)
At the end of the year REXR 12,472,551 12,246,662
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21.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of completed properties
held for sale are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

1. HIEHEBETYE @)

FEHEERTIY R RMERFNESUT !

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET AREF T

At the beginning of the year REF) (805,486) (546,357)

Impairment losses transferred to cost of sales IR EHEMANRERE 465,283 172,209
Impairment losses transferred from properties under #2413 B B35 ) Z R E KB

development (note 20) (4 5E20) (337,948) (133,257)

Impairment losses recognised BHERBEEE (233,966) (298,081)

At the end of the year REX (912,117) (805,486)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's completed properties held
for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,902,643,000 (2021: RMB706,730,000) were pledged to secure bank
and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 31).

The value of completed properties held for sale was assessed at the end
of each reporting period. An impairment exists when the carrying value
exceeds its net realisable value. The net realisable value is determined
by reference to the selling price based on the prevailing market price
less applicable selling expenses.

FR2022F 1283 1H AEBEBREEDNNARE
1,902,643,0007T (20214E © AR #706,730,0007T) FUFF1E
HEBRTYXBEER AAEERERNRTRE
HEREIEIR (F5E31) ©

FELEER TYENEBAENSREARTMH M
REEBEHEFISFEFE MRAERE JERF
BEESEENERTENHEERAERNEER
MHEE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. BEEWKWHIE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREBEFT
Trade receivables B e EIE 51,530 54,720
Impairment BE (1,020) (1,253)
50,510 53,467

The Group's trade receivables primarily consist of receivables from its
property sales and property lease. Proceeds from property sales and
property lease are generally received in accordance with the terms
stipulated in the sale and purchase agreements. Trade receivables are
settled based on the progress payment schedule stipulated in the
contract. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is
no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,
is as follows:

FEENEZRRRETEZESREAAYEHER
MEBERKIR - REMEHERYERENMR
BRIEE B R EE B 173 R E R IR R ULE © 8 WK
BRBEANTHNEESNRBRES AEER
NEBREERIRUE 2 BURRIER R B 5 B8
RHEERERERME 5 HREEANSE PR
MhER e BN EX PRt B AR KB E F RUGRIES K
REFRAER UBEEREPNEERR AEHT
BREBRRBEEHFSAEARMRIAEAMEHR
FHETE - & Z EWPCRIEL A 518 o

RESHRERERARRINRGEREFRNEZE
WRRIERVEREC D ATTN T ©

2022 2021
20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AREFT

Within 1 year —FMUR 31,132 40,279
1to 3 years —F= 18,944 9,214
Over 3 years =FUE 434 3,974
50,510 53,467
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mt F5eR R M 5E

31 December 2022
20225128318

8 5 BRI (&)
H B RESRER SRR RESNT

2022 2021

20225 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET AREF T

At the beginning of the year REH] 1,253 699
Impairment losses (note 6) BERBE (F6) (233) 554
At the end of the year RER 1,020 1,253

An impairment analysis is performed at the end of each reporting
period using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on ageing for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2022:

RERENAFRAEBEBETRED I Ut E
FHSEE B EEL RN AR EUGRETN
SEEFHHENNEREE - ZH ERBERAR
MR ERBERRESDRTENENAE
EE ENRRRAREE RTINS BRI
Hito

TREI A EEERBBEERSTENE S BWRIE
NEERBEER

RZIEZZH&+=ZB=+—8":

Less than

1 year

—FERA
Expected credit loss rate FEHEEBEX 0.9% 3.2% 19.9% 2.0%
Gross carrying amount IREARE 31,416 19,572 542 51,530
Expected credit losses TEEAEERIE 284 628 108 1,020

As at 31 December 2021:

RIZ2Z—F+ZH=+—8":

Ageing
BREL

Less than Tto3 Over
1 year years 3 years Total
—E MR —E=4 =FM wast
Expected credit loss rate FEHAEEBREX 0.6% 2.7% 15.9% 2.3%
Gross carrying amount IRmEAEE 40,525 9,470 4,725 54,720
Expected credit losses TEEAEERE 246 256 751 1,253
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

23. CONTRACT COST ASSETS

23. BT EE

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREBTT ANEREFT

Contract costs arising from the sale of properties MEBEEENESNMA 1,205,954 945,195
Management expected that the contract acquisition costs, which EEEEHIZEUNESYEHEHECONHEERESSE

represented primarily sales commission for obtaining property sale
contracts, are recoverable. The Group has deferred the amounts paid
and will charge them to profit or loss when the related revenue is
recognised. As at 31 December 2022, the amounts charged to profit or
loss were RMB524,749,000 (2021: RMB581,204,000), and there was no
impairment loss in relation to the remaining balance.

24. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS

TN EHNRBERABZTIREIEE AEBSIREIES
I&%8 AR EAN R R 2 A o 120224
12831H st ABRENEE DA AREES524,749,000
70 (20214F : AR 8581,204,0007T) » {84 7k 45 65 E R

BB

24, FANRIE Ht1EWRIEREMEE

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREBFT
Prepayments for acquisition of land use rights EE T MERENTENFIE 286,000 1,361,750
Deposits for land auction THIIRERE 10,000 421,608
Deposits related to land use rights to be jointly HME=FHERE T HERE
acquired with third parties BEANZE 470,759 735,796
Prepaid taxes and other tax recoverables TR R IE M B AT Uk [E]#3 18 2,196,893 3,101,712
Other deposits Hithiz & 625,405 744,621
Prepayments for construction cost B A A TR R IE 331,416 347,449
Due from non-controlling shareholders of the PEULIS B A B IET B AR BB T IE
subsidiaries 5,067,146 7,486,528
Other receivables Hfh e RIE 435,636 492,595
9,423,255 14,692,059
Impairment A (28,110) (8,231)
9,395,145 14,683,828
Other receivables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have no HthEWHRBEAERE Tt EEEBCEDRER

fixed terms of repayment.
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24.

25.

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS (Continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of receivables are as
follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

24. FAARIE- HttBIWRIEREMEZE

(&)
FEWCR IR E B RV B EIN T ¢

2022 2021

20225 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFx ARB#F T

At the beginning of the year KA 8,231 3,086
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) ERERIREEE (fste) 19,879 5,145
At the end of the year REX 28,110 8,231

The internal credit ratings of amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, amounts due from third parties and other
deposits were regarded as the grade of performing. The Group has
assessed that the credit risk of these receivables has not increased
significantly since initial recognition. The expected loss rate of
these receivables is assessed to be 0.41%. The Group has evaluated
the expected loss rate and gross carrying amount, measured the
impairment based on the 12-month expected credit losses, and
assessed that the expected credit losses were RMB28,110,000 as at 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB8,231,000).

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

25.

WK E AR 2 EZERERNRIE - BRE=A®
BEREMZENANIEATBRERARAER K
ERCTEZEERTE EERR BB REIEU
TR ANEIE N e ZE W FIENTA AR I8 X T8
Z041% AREBBTEHBEABEBEERRKREME I
B12E B B EER BT 2RE UK ER 202245
12B3 1 HNFERE BB A ARE28,110,0007T (2021
£ AR %£8,231,0007T) ©

HithWEREBEE

Prepayments for equity investments

RERBERYNIE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT
1,402,644 1,402,644

Fuzhou Jinhui Real Estate Co., Ltd. signed an agreement with &
M EREXRZFEABMRAS (‘“Quanzhou Yimin Construction
Development Co., Ltd., “Quanzhou Yimin") on 25 February 2016
with the purpose of acquiring land parcels through the purchase of
the equity interest in project companies. The total agreed purchase
price was RMB2,295,000,000. According to the agreement, the Group
has already partly made the payments to bring the balance to
RMB940,000,000 as at 31 December 2022. The equity transaction has
not been completed as at 31 December 2022.

Xi‘an Jinhui Properties signed an property development cooperation
agreement with PRAHLEXEMEEFRAE (‘Shaanxi Shiji
Chuntian Real Estate Co., Ltd.") on 25 January 2017 with the purpose
of acquiring land parcels through the purchase of the equity interest
in a project company, namely Xi'an Zhencui Properties Co., Ltd. ("Xi'an
Zhencui Properties’). The total transfer price was RMB966,944,000.
According to the agreement, the Group has already partly paid the
payments to bring the balance to RMB462,643,500 as at 31 December
2022. The equity transaction has not been completed as at 31
December 2022.

EBNEEEXERADEFNTERERERER
NE (TRMNER)) R2016F28258F 5T — M3
MERABEERATNRERBIE - RENES
BEA ANR1E2,295000,0007C  IRIBZWE  AEE
EX M E D RIE 1R2022F 12831 HREA AR

940,000,000z © j220225 12831 H IRTER 5 14 R 5EAK ©

AZSIERMENMRALtLEREMERRAS

(BBt L EREMERRATY) H2017F1825H
BIMERESIERE UERESEBEE AT A
ZHEEMERBRAD (ARBREEME)) HKRE
Uit B th 158 o BRER 4B (B A A R 1£966,944,0007T © IR B 5%
HE AEBBE LI E D RIE > 122022612831 HER
A ANR462,643,50070 © 12022812831 H IR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

26.

27.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

26. MAFEFABEENEMEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREF T
Listed equity investments, at fair value BN EYRZ EHRERE 2,725 22,457
Other unlisted investments, at fair value BNTEY R AMIELTRE 106,589 161,419
109,314 183,876

Analysed into PaRips
Current portion BOERER 5> 4,294 78,357
Non-current portion AERNERER > 105,020 105,519

The above equity investments at the end of the reporting period were
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as they
were held for trading.

The above unlisted investments at the end of the reporting period
were wealth management products issued by financial institutions in
Mainland China. They were mandatorily classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not
solely payments of principal and interest.

FHREBEARNREREDRERS R A TESA
BoWERMEE DAREAFEES-

EFRRBEARNNIE EHRERPE MR
BETHNEVER REAAEGHRERTIER
R EF B RIAMAR D ER LA TESA
Bl TREE-

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 27. iﬁﬁ&iﬁﬁ%%% “ZRERERE
CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS ERER

2022 2021

20224F 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥FT AREFT

Cash and bank balances V& MIR1T4HE R 12,319,530 19,728,486

Less: Restricted cash B ZREIIRE 7,899,346 7,656,569

Pledged deposits BIRIRER 10,000 850,000

Cash and cash equivalents BHeaMhIE2EEY 4,410,184 11,221,917

Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place certain
amounts of cash in designated bank accounts for specified use. As at 31
December 2022, such restricted cash amounted to RMB7,400,578,000
(2021: RMB6,857,996,000).

200 &R (Em) BRAE  202FFR

BRESEPERLIR AEENETEMERZE QAR
BARETHERBEBEENRECRTESAERER
EoM2022F 1283 1B ZEZRFIIBREAARE
7,400,578,0007C (20214F : AR #6,857,996,0007T) ©



27.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 27. RERFAEEEY ZRIFERE
CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued) RIMER (@)
As at 31 December 2022, the restricted cash amounting to 720228128310 » AR #658,542,00078 (20215 AR
RMB58,542,000 (2021: RMB99,034,000) was frozen by the People’s #599,034,0007T) HY5 PR &I IR & K #r 54 M 4R A R A B8R
Court due to lawsuits, and other restricted cash was mainly restricted EoMEHEMZREBESFTFERNRAELEEEIRE
as unpledged security for purchasers’ mortgage loans, construction of EM-EERIFBITRAMERNIEHRDEER
projects or bank and other borrowings. i3
As at 31 December 2022, pledged deposits of RMB10,000,000 (2021: 720228128310 » AR #10,000,00078 (20215 : AR
RMB850,000,000) were pledged as security for bank and other #850,000,00070) N EIRIREREIEIFIEARITRE
borrowings (note 31). MERAVIER R (fF5E31) ©
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT
Cash and cash equivalents: HeERREEEY !
Denominated in RMB MARBEE 4,374,858 10,873,329
Denominated in US$ MUETsHE 33,834 250,876
Denominated in HK$ UABTEHE 1,492 97,712
4,410,184 11,221,917

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and
cash equivalents approximate to their fair values.

As at 31 December 2022, the internal credit rating of restricted cash,
pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents were regarded as the
grade of performing. The Group has assessed that the credit risk of
the restricted cash, pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents
has not increased significantly since initial recognition and measured
the impairment based on 12-month expected credit losses, and has
assessed that the expected credit losses are immaterial.

ARBRFTEHRRASEMER  BREDE MM
GrEEEKA) R(EE -EERMEEERTE)
FEEBEBERBETIEZFNRTRARE
RMAHMER-

o

RTREREBESHRTERRNETRIPHNXRGTR -
RITEFERBOIMENCTHRNEENERNRTT
RERREEEYHNRIERALQATERE-

2022128310 ZRFIBRES - BEFEEARRES
ERSEEBYHNANTEHATIRBERAREE R K
EEEFEZRIRES BEBEIRRERRS
LEYNEE R B Y6 R R LR & A8 0 »
Wiz 28 B MNTBHREERIEsT2RE BB ETERS
EEBEITAEKC
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

28. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

28. BHBEAREREMGRE

RREMER BN EZARNTERE ZEIRE
BUBREL DATINT

2022 2021
20225 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREFT

Within 1 year —F R 12,445,774 12,919,312
Over 1 year —EM E 660,304 684,260
13,106,078 13,603,572

There were no trade payables as at 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: RMB675,492,000) due to suppliers that have signed up to a supply
chain financing program.

Trade payables are unsecured and are normally settled based on the
progress of construction.

The fair values of trade payables as at the end of the reporting period

approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts due to their
relatively short maturity terms.

202 &IBER &) BRAT  202EF8

R2022F 12831 B WEC EEMEERETE 2
HHERNE ZEMRIE (2021F128318 © AR
675,492,0007T) °

BERMRELMERIT -2 BERREIEES
%D

REREHER > BN EZREARIAENERAREHER
oo HaTEEAEARKREERES-



29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

30.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAF5 SRR Y 5

31 December 2022
20225128318

29. HithEIRIERESEHR

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREF T

Outstanding payables arising from the acquisition WX BERE 35 2 4 AV 18 R ST FE (S 1B
of equity interests 29,743 58,162
Due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries  F&{J i 8 X B JE4% AR AR BR 7R 18 642,091 1,048,111
Deposits b 434,818 501,570
Payroll and welfare payable et T & K @R 78,046 210,309
Retention deposits related to construction HEXBRNEES 417,930 230,119
Other tax and surcharges Hig B &M mE& 670,252 379,559
Accrued expenses FESTRESZ 185,848 179,435
Others Hith 133,408 128,862
2,592,136 2,736,127

Other payables and due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand. The fair
values of other payables as at the end of year approximated to their
corresponding carrying amounts.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

ELAFE AT TRIA T FE AT B /8 A B) SR AR AR SRR TR 7%
B RERAREREE -NER HMENRIE

AT EEEARREBERS-

30. BNEaE
A EENEENT

2022
20224

RMB’000
ARETT

Contract liabilities BHEE

59,397,834

2021
20214
RMB'000
ARETT

72,460,294

The Group receives payments from customers based on billing
schedules as established in the property sales. Payments are usually
received in advance of the performance under the contracts which are
mainly from property development.

AERMRBEMEHEFRBHRRBERRZT P UEY
FoAEEBERBREBESN (TEREVERE BY

A1 12 A1 AR A R o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 8 R Pd =E
31 December 2022
20225128318

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. st ERITRHEMMER
BORROWINGS
2022 2021
20224 20214
Effective Effective
IEE interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BIEFIE (%) 38 ARETR BELEGELD 8 ARETR
Current ENEA
Bank loans - secured RITER-BHKA - - - Hibor+1.7% 2022 126,875
Other loans - secured HttEH—BRE 9.20-13.50 2023 1,190,000 8.80-9.20 2022 747,000
Current portion of long term  REFIRTTERNEHEH 2 4.10-8.08 2023 8,520,513 435-808 2022 7,730,586
bank loans - secured —BIRH
Current portion of long term ~ RAFEtEFMENEAE H 8.90-11.50 2023 1,226,840 8.80-9.80 2022 899,572
other loans - secured —-BiRF
10,937,353 9,504,033
Non-current JEENEA
Bank loans - secured ROIEM—BRE 3.90-8.08 2023-35 14,718,167 405-8.08 202335 24,789,490
Bank loans - unsecured RITED—EBIH 3.90 2025 50,000 - - -
Other loans - secured HER-BRA 8.53-10.00 2024 839,300 8.53-12.00 2023-24 1,870,000
15,607,467 26,659,490
26,544,820 36,163,523
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT
Analysed into: PakiIv= I
Bank loans repayable FEZIRITIERR
Within one year — &N 8,520,513 7,857,461
In the second year £ 12,584,529 12,280,310
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FEELT (BEEEMSE) 1,629,823 12,007,940
Over five year hF#%E 553,815 501,240
23,288,680 32,646,951
Other borrowings repayable HibEZEER
Within one year —FN 2,416,840 1,646,572
In the second year EHF 839,300 900,000
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FS=FEELT (BHEEEMSE) = 970,000
3,256,140 3,516,572
26,544,820 36,163,523

The Group's borrowings are denominated in RMB as at 31 December

2022.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. FRIBITREMMER (@)
BORROWINGS (Continued)

Certain of the Group's bank and other borrowings are secured by the AEBBTRITEREMERUTIEEFIRTR Z
pledges of the following assets with carrying values at the end of the SEERREHRVEREWT !

reporting period as follows:

2022 2021

20225 20214

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTFT

Property, plant and equipment (note 13) M. BB R E (PEE13) = 8,406

Land use rights (note 15) T fEE R (BFEE15) 636,345 676,666

Investment properties (note 14) S &Y (isti4) 4,290,100 4,475,500

Properties under development (note 20) B hYEE (M5E20) 40,677,640 55,611,076

Completed properties held for sale (note 21) BIEEEMNBER T (HsE21) 1,902,643 706,730

Pledged deposits (note 27) BiETEHR (EE27) 10,000 850,000
The management of the Company has assessed that the fair values AR BEBRTGRS FRBRTREMMERDN
of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to their ANTFEAERABERSE RARELRHNZERE
carrying amounts largely due to the fact that such borrowings were RBEAEEEEE=HFemMEEZIRITHISER

made between the Group and independent third party financial T

institutions based on prevailing market interest rates.

Certain of the bank and other borrowings of up to RMB1,260,857,500 R2022F 128315 ARBIEERBRERBIE=7
were guaranteed by the Company’s non-controlling shareholders BHERZ AE11,260,857,5007T 98 FiR1T R M ER
and independent third parties as at 31 December 2022 (2021: MR (20214 ¢ AR#1,307,770,0007T) °

RMB1,307,770,000).

PROCEEDS FROM ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES 32. REEIRPES (TEEIRIFESE)) &

(“ABS”) FHFRERRIE
31 December
Contractual 2022
interest rate Closing
Name of ABSs Principal per annum Maturity balance
20226
) 12A31H
BERNESAE ’&  ANEREX & HARAEER
RMB'000 (%) RMB’000
AE®TT ARETTT
Radiance Commercial Properties A dAE2YES 1,693,952 6.00/6.5 2021-2039 1,711,367
Beijing Radiance Plaza SEAE 3,571,871 4.75/5.8 2021-2039 3,577,810
5,289,177
Less: Current portion B BNERE 70,696
Non-current portion FERHE S 5,218,481
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

32. PROCEEDS FROM ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES 32. REEIRNES ((EEKTPES)) &

(“ABS”) (Continued)

SHIFRISRIE (@)

31 December

Contractual 2021

interest rate Closing

Name of ABSs Principal per annum Maturity balance
20216

128318

EERFESLE AE  AAFFEE & B AR
RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFTT (%) ARETFT

Radiance Commercial Properties SRBHEYE 1,700,000 6.00/6.5 2021-2039 1,711,243
Beijing Radiance Plaza ERKE 3,594,195 475/58 2021-2039 3,608,332
5,319,575

Less: Current portion W BNEREE 65,705
Non-current portion RS 5,253,870

The balance represented proceeds received from special purpose
entities ("SPE") set up by financial institutions in the PRC for issuance of
asset-backed securities, to which the Group has collateralised certain
future trade receivables for the remaining receipts from the provision of
property lease income. Under an assignment arrangement between the
Group and the SPE, as and when the Group receives the sales proceeds
from customers, the Group would remit any cash flows it collects on
behalf of the SPE.

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group's asset-backed securities
are secured by the pledges of property, plant and equipment of
RMB22,263,000 (2021: RMB22,865,000) (note 13), right-of-use assets
of RMB19,197,000 (2021: RMB19,703,000) (note 15), and investment
properties of RMB8,396,000,000 (2021: RMB8,351,000,000) (note 14).

206 &MEER EE) BRAT  202F5K

BHEHPETHEBEINEHRENERE (M55
BNER) SETEERMBFWEBFRGRIE T
REBRIEHYEREWRAG NRENETRKE
ZEURIEFERR - RELAEBE KT HENEEN
DEELH AEBBE P WEHEMSIAR » A&
ERELHARSHRENERMEEEMERESR

=
==

20221283 1H AEBEF AR®E22,263,0007
(20214 : AR #822,865,0007T) MM %« B K &
# (MsE13) ~ AR #19,197,00070 (20214 © AR
#19,703,00070) IEAEEE MzF15) R AR
8,396,000,0007T (20214 : AEE#8,351,000,0007T) Y%
EWE f14) AAEENE TEEIRFESER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

33. SENIOR NOTES 33. BEER

1 January The effect 31 December

2022 of foreign 2022

Opening Issued Interest currency Closing

Name of senior notes balance in 2022 expense exchange Payment balance
1420225 1420225

1A1B# 120226 SMEE= 1283188

BERELHE &R B3 Gilk=Y b2 e (BE HR%EER

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
AEBTR ARETR ARRTR ARRTR ARBTR AE%TR

2022 Notes NFEE 1,082,597 - 9,822 13,905 (1,106,324) -
2023 Notes 023FEHE 1,525,977 - 66,974 117,553 (1,315,167) 395,337
2024 Notes 2064FEE 1,932,492 - 167,927 178,798 (158,120) 2,121,097
2,516,434

Analysed into: LRI
Non-current portion ERFHBH 2,075,827
Current portion mENE D 440,607
1 January The effect 31 December
2021 of foreign 2021
Opening Issued Interest currency Closing
Name of senior notes balance in 2021 expense exchange Payment balance
20215 1202145
16188 20214 SMEER 1283188
BERBELHE e &1 FEH% M2 (NN HRAEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTR AREBTn ARETR AREBTn ARET:

2021 Notes W1EEE 1,645,957 - 174,659 (30,932) (1,789,684) -
2022 Notes WNEE 2,030,005 - 204,392 (36,708) (1,115,092) 1,082,597
2023 Notes WBEEE 1,619,655 - 156,191 (40,538) (209,331) 1,525,977
2024 Notes 204FEEE - 1,935,810 44372 (47,690) - 1,932,492
4,541,066

Analysed into: g R
Non-current portion FERBED 1,891,050
Current portion REZD 2,650,016
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

34. CORPORATE BONDS 34. REIMEF

1 January 31 December

2022 2022

Opening Issued in Interest Closing

Name of bonds balance 2022 expense Payment balance
1?2022 #20225

1A18H #20225 12A3181

B354 B &ER B17 Gill=Y: b3 1% HARGRR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT ARBTT ARETRT ARETT ARETR®

19 Jinhui 01 19&: 1801 2,082,772 - 53,228 (2,136,000) -
20 Jinhui 01 2010 673,613 - 21,562 (695,175) -
20 Jinhui 02 20% 1802 513,664 - 21,336 (535,000) -
20 Jinhui 03 20% 1803 1,227,135 - 77,655 (1,304,790) -
21 Jinhui 01 21101 1,397,751 - 95,537 (93,825) 1,399,463
21 Jinhui 02 2181802 875,107 - 59,075 (59,075) 875,107
22 Mediur-Term Notes (note 1) 227 HAZR 4 (HYEE1) - 1,186,991 3,760 - 1,190,751
6,770,042 1,186,991 332,153 (4,823,865) 3,465,321

1 January 31 December

2021 2021

Opening Issued in Interest Closing

Name of bonds balance 2021 expense Payment balance
720215 120215

15181 1202145 1283188

BHLE B B FEREXZ (N HRAEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT  ARETn

16 Jinhui 01 1651801 500,394 - 853 (501,247) -
16 Jinhui 02 16521802 1,511,192 - 23198 (1,534,390) -
16 Jinhui 03 161803 262,521 - 5729 (268,250) -
18 Jinhui 01 181801 739,042 - 13,458 (752,500) -
18 Jinhui 02 181802 768,971 - 52,716 (821,687) -
19 Jinhui 01 191801 2,089,398 - 143,374 (150,000) 2,082,772
19 Jinhui 03 1951803 1,134,410 - 80,340 (1,214,750) -
20 Jinhui 01 205 1E01 671,567 - 47,221 (45,175) 673613
20 Jinhui 02 205 1802 511,676 - 36,988 (35,000) 513,664
20 Jinhui 03 205 1803 1,225,397 - 86,528 (84,790 1,227,135
21 Jinhui 01 21 1801 - 1,346,580 51171 - 1,397,751
21 Jinhui 02 A& 180 - 850,000 25,107 - 875,107

9,414,568 2,196,580 566,683 (5,407,789) 6,770,042
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34. CORPORATE BONDS (Continued) 34. AEIMEFHF @)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's corporate bonds were RIREHFR  AEBRBESWEERRAOT :
repayable as follows:

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT AREBTFT
Repayable within one year BR—FERNERE 667,743 4,572,592
Repayable within two to five years BR_ERFERNEE 2,797,578 2,197,450
3,465,321 6,770,042
Note 1: On 5 December 2022, Radiance Group, a subsidiary of the Group MIsE1 © BR2022F 12A5H £ BEE  AXEBBNNE R
completed to issue 3-year medium-term notes with a principal R ARET=FHYHER BTRES
amount of RMB1,200,000,000 (22 Medium-Term Notes"), which were AR 11,200,000,0007¢ (M 2022 FHAZERR)) > ER
publicly listed on the Inter-bank Bond Market on 1 December 2022. 2022F N2 ATHRIRITHEBESmH LM -T2
22 Medium-Term Notes is denominated in RMB and bears interest at a FEFHEEUAREBE > LREF Z400%5T
rate of 4.00% per annum. Be
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. A&7
Shares B15
2021
20214
HKS
BT
Issued and fully paid: ERTRERE:
4,045,227,000 (2021: 4,045,227,000) ordinary 4,045,227,0008%
shares of HK$0.01 each (2021: HK$0.01 each) (20214 © 4,045,227,0008%)
SREEOIETT
(20214 : SR E(E0.01787T) BY
ZiRAg 40,452,270 40,452,270
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SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 35. &7 (@)
Shares (Continued) BR1n (@)

A summary of movements in the Company'’s share capital is as follows:

AT RARDHHEMT :

Number of
shares in issue Share capital
ERTRAHEE g7
RMB'000
AREFT
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, 202181810, 2021512831H,
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 202251 B1H&%20225F12831H 4,045,227,000 35,095

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability on 17 October 2019 with authorised share capital of
HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each at par value.

On the date of incorporation, 1 ordinary share of HK$0.01 was allotted
by the Company to a subscriber, and was transferred to Glowing Shine
Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Lam Ting Keung and Ms. Lam
Fung Ying, on 17 October 2019.

On 6 March 2020, the Company acquired the entire issued shares of
Jubilance Properties from Radiance Group Holdings at a consideration
of US$3.00, which was settled by the Company by allotting and issuing
1 ordinary share to Glowing Shine, being the direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Radiance Group Holdings, on 5 March 2020.

On 5 October 2020, the Company increased its authorised share capital
to HK$100,000,000 by the creation of 9,962,000,000 additional shares of
nominal value of HK$0.01 each.

On 29 October 2020, upon its listing on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the Company issued 600,000,000 new ordinary shares
with par value of HK$0.01 each at HK$4.30 per share for a total cash
consideration of HK$2,580,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB2,238,872,000).

On 29 October 2020, 3,399,999,998 shares were issued by way of
capitalisation with par value of HK$0.01 each, and the respective share
capital amount was approximately RMB29,504,000.
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KABFR2019F 10817 EHREBETMMIL EE
% 75 %380,00078 75 » 43 %538,000,0008% & A& EI1E0.0178
TTHIRRAR ©

ReEMmRiZHE A B —4RBARE—RKS
f%0.01B T @R > WH2019F 10817 H EE T M
ERAERMBELZTEFINABBERRAR -

F220208386H ) A ABM300ETHREESEE
EZE IR U BB )ubilance PropertiesfI 2 EBEEITRD B
FRBEHARATNR2020FE3IB5H UM EE (A& 8
EEZERNEEZ2ERBAR) BB RBT—RRG
BAREEB

F2202051085H » A2 B) 18 18 18 58%9,962,000,0008% &
BREE0.01 B THENRG  BEZAERAIEME
100,000,0007 75, ©

2020108290 REEMSFF Fhg  AATE
S 84.308 7T 847600,000,000 8 & A% E E0.01 B 7T
HEER 8RN E%2580,0000008 7T FRERL
AR #52,238,872,0007T) ©

720205108298 ©3,399,999,998R% fR 1A TH 2 S IR E
BB TEAREARZET HEREASHENAABART
29,504,0007C °



35.

36.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

On 25 November 2020, upon its listing on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the over-allotment option has been partially exercised
and the Company allotted and issued 45,227,000 additional shares at
HK$4.30 per share for a total cash consideration of HK$194,476,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB164,955,000).

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the year ended 31 December 2022 are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the year ended 31 December 2022 are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(@) Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par
value of the shares issued and the consideration received.

(b) Capital reserve
The capital reserve represents any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid for acquisition of non-
controlling interests in subsidiaries. Details of the movements in
the capital reserve are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

(c) Statutory surplus reserve
In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles
of association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, the
Group is required to appropriate 10% of its net profits after
tax, as determined under PRC GAAP, to the statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant
PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the Group,
the statutory surplus reserve may be used either to offset
losses, or to be converted to increase share capital provided
that the balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of
the registered capital of the Group. The reserve cannot be used
for purposes other than those for which it is created and is not
distributable as cash dividends.

(d) Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve arises from change in use from an
owner-occupied property to an investment property.

35.

36.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mt F5eR R M 5E

31 December 2022
20225128318

iR 7 (@)

fg{n (4&)
FR20205F11B25H  REABB AT L& 8RR
BEBDTHEEARABILERIZ0B TS RET
45,227,00008 28I 15 > 4B IR S (E45194,476,00078 7T
(FEERH AR H164,955,0007T) ©

BENF1NANBLEE  AEENREBESRAH
BYPRioRaEHREN -

f#f
BE00FENANBLEE ARENHBELERE
SHREERERH R

(a) BRniEE
R EEHEDETRO AR EZ B
EHo

(b) BEAHE
BERRFEIEIFE RS AR S 5 B
BRABNIFEREDAIRENRATEZBN
EREE BEXRFENEDFBHNGERT
K‘iﬁl%o

(0 ZEBRBRFHRE

R A5 B A B A R it P B Y AL A BT B A B B9 A
HERMA AEBAZREBTFEENI0%
REVEZEBERFERF I RE P E S5 2RI
o EERBHREEINHEIMEANS %R
HEAREER A EEARSEMAFRERET
IRHIBIRIR A ERERFEE R BIMEHERR
BanENRA ESRRERERREAR/LIRN
REETMEARN2%  EEFSHNERL
BRLUNYEMAR TR EERRERED
i

(d) BESERH#E
BEEGEHERREARNENBRERS
LEME -
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37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

37. &8

RERERWE

CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions @ FEFRERS
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right- FR AEERPLREEF2HERHNMS
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB12,384,000 (2021: AREEAESGENIFREAEAARTE
RMB17,375,000) in respect of lease arrangements for office 12,384,0007T (20214F : AR #&17,375,0007T) ©
buildings.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were no non- HE2022F12831BIEFE > BEIEERKER
controlling shareholders injected capital to certain subsidiaries MAEERETHE AR EEUEMENKRIE
of the Group, which was settled with the current account of FESRIENKSERPAES (20215 ¢ AR
other payables and accruals (2021: RMB744,252,000). 744,252,0007T) ©
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group offset HE202F12B31BIEEE > REBMMUENIE
the amounts due from non-controlling interests with the PERGRE R RV A R #53,348,537,0007T (20214F :
amounts due to non-controlling interests for an amount of L) {EEH FE U IR R R 2 TR TE ©
RMB3,348,537,000 (2021:Nil).
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) MEEHELENEEEH
activities
Total
Proceeds Interest- Senior liabilities
from  bearing bank notes and Due to from
asset-based and other corporate related Lease financing
securities borrowings bonds parties liabilities activities
BERA
BHH HEROTR  BAEER FEfS RMEEHH
FifgsE HthEm ARFEE  HEADE Hgaf BREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFRT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2021 202151818 3461371 35,602,436 14,710,185 4915813 23,039 58,712,844
Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities REZEBIFTE,/ (FTfE) BEHE 1,600,537 (1611463) (4,408977) 362,575 (21,310) (4,078,638)
New operating leases nEEnRsg - - - - 17375 17375
Interest expense SR 257,667 2,174,161 1,146,297 - 1552 3579677
The effect of foreign currency exchange NEFE - (1,611) (136,397) - - (138,008)
Cash flows used in non-financing activities  FREZBFIGRETE - - - - (3,705) (3,705)
At 31 December 2021 120215128318 5,319,575 36,163,523 11,311,108 5,278,388 16,951 58,089,545
Cash flows used in financing activities HEEHMARENAE (299,036)  (11,627,729) (6,216,485) (425,053) (16,542)  (18,584,845)
New operating leases mcEHE - - - - 12,384 12,384
Interest expense Hlems 268,638 1,909,026 576,876 - 1,297 2,755,837
The effect of foreign currency exchange  JMES 2 - - 310,256 - - 310,256
At 31 December 2022 120225128318 5,289,177 26,444,820 5,981,755 4,853,335 14,090 42,583,177
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31 December 2022
20225128318

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37. &8 IRE&HERME @
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c THEMIRERHLIEZE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of B RSXRMEMNEENIRSRHBLEENT :
cash flows is as follows:
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFx AREBTT
Within operating activities KETRENRN 6,266 5,048
Within financing activities BRI 16,542 21,627
22,808 26,675
38. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 38.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests were set out below:

3

BREAFEZERENIFZENER

FEBREFEAFEREDNNEB AT FIBEEIIM
T

Percentage of Profit for
equity interest the year Accumulated
held by allocated to balances of

non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling

interests interests interests
JEE R SDEFIFER
PR R EEMER E| g 5
AL gl EH R
% RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFTT ARE®ETFT
31 December 2022 20228128318
Ronggiao (Fuzhou) Real Estate* RufE (@) Bz 40 (22,480) 1242311
Radiance Group TIEERE 4 132,572 1,024,589
Chongqing Huiderui Real Estate* BEERERME 58 242,968 447816
Fuging Jinchen Properties* BAEREREHE 49 101,311 184,048
31 December 2021 20215128318
Ronggjao (Fuzhou) Real Estate* BB (BM) BEX 40 123,399 1,264,791
Radiance Group TEEE 4 136,105 906,000
Yangzhou Wanjing Real Estate* BNBRER 67 96,759 463,455
Anhui Wanhui Real Estate* ZHREE 2 30 101,789 126,312
* Ronggiao (Fuzhou) Real Estate, Chongging Huiderui Real Estate, Fuging * BB EMN BEX - BNESEERTHREEXEE

Jinchen Properties, Yangzhou Wanjing Real Estate and Anhui Wanhui
Real Estate are subsidiaries of Radiance Group, and the financial
information set out below only reflects the direct non-controlling
interests in these entities, and the indirect non-controlling interests have
not been included.

BREERME RBEEREHE -THEEERNKNE
NE TXABMBEERMNZEERNER
FEVERR A T > LR 85 3R JR I AR A i o
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38. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 38. B EAEEREZNIEZEWEL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) a) (&)

The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: P BB B AR INBRE A A B R HEEH

Ronggiao (Fuzhou) Real Estate

RS (M) B

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTFT AREFTT

Revenue U & 273,720 992,730

Total expenses Mz 48R (329,920) (684,233)

(Loss)/profit for the year FN (B8 T (56,200) 308,497

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year FENerE BHE) WANLEZE (56,200) 308,497

Current assets MENE E 2,943,233 6,016,367

Non-current assets ERBEE 219,869 228,933

Current liabilities piE=NE (277,435) (3,061,705)

Non-current liabilities ErRsas - (21,617)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) KREEEME/ FRA) REnE

operating activities FRE 22,391 (61,301)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) KREZBME FTA) RERE

investing activities HEE 99 (937)

Net cash flows used in financing activities REEHFAREREFEE (644) (65,294)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and B MIB2EEWIEM L)

cash equivalents HEE 21,846 (127,532)
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38. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 38. B EAEEREZNIEZEWEL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) g (&)
Radiance Group EEEE

2022 2021

20225 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AREF T

Revenue W # 35,437,801 40,207,014
Total expenses Bz 48 %8 (32,870,197) (36,549,750)
Profit for the year FE @A 2,567,604 3,657,264
Total comprehensive income for the year FENEEMNGEEE 2,567,604 3,657,264

Attributable to: U&7 e

Owners of the parent BREEE A 3,191,394 3,402,645
Non-controlling interests RS (623,790) 254,619
2,567,604 3,657,264

Current assets MBNE E 131,781,738 169,449,722
Non-current assets ERBEE 29,882,330 28,167,495
Current liabilities mEaE (97,891,717) (121,461,291)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (26,083,662) (36,736,745)
37,688,689 39,419,181

Attributable to: U&7 e

Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZ= DN 24,819,649 23,519,372
Non-controlling interests R m 12,869,040 15,899,809
37,688,689 39,419,181

Net cash flows generated from operating activities #& & EEBNEERESREFE 8,720,280 2,055,359

Net cash flows generated from/(used in)

RETHE FIR) REREFE

investing activities 893,434 (4,224,888)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEHFAREREFE (16,326,188) (7,598,977)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents B NREEBY R/ 35 (6,712,474) (9,768,506)
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38. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 38. B EAEEREZNIEZEWEL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) & (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE2022F12831HIEEFEE

Chongqing Fuging
Huiderui Jinchen
Real Estate Properties
EEEEE BAEER
BihE B E
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT AREF T
Revenue Uz 1,339,974 648,274
Total expenses B 4B %8 (918,155) (441,516)
Profit for the year FEPiEF] 421,819 206,758
Total comprehensive income for the year FERNLEWNLERE 421,819 206,758
Current assets MENE E 2,280,130 1,092,833
Non-current assets FERBMEE 630,968 8,678
Current liabilities mENa A (1,782,593) (742,825)

Net cash flows generated from/(used in) REFEFME/ FrA) REnE
operating activities 82,334 (14,966)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEETEFTREIREE N2 55 (461,580) (35,124)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BENBESEBY R/ F2E (379,246) (50,090)
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38. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 38. B EAEEREZNIEZEWEL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) g (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE2021F12831HIEEE
Yangzhou Anhui
Wanjing Wanhui
Real Estate Real Estate
EHNESEX THIREE ¥
RMB'000 RMB'000
AEB®FT AREF T
Revenue W 1,320,090 2,659,935
Total expenses Iz 4R%R (1,175,674) (2,320,638)
Profit for the year FEpiEA] 144,416 339,297
Total comprehensive income for the year FERNLEWNLEZE 144,416 339,297
Current assets MENEE 834,610 756,013
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,124 27,506
Current liabilities mENaE (139,449) (362,479)
Non-current liabilities FErRHas (6,562) -
Net cash flows (used in)/generated REES PR /BRSNS F4E
from operating activities (114,739) 185,118
Net cash flows (used in)/generated KREES FrA) FrSREREFE
from investing activities (49) 49
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEBFAREREERE - (144,396)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and B NIB£EEY GRL) 12358
cash equivalents (114,788) 40,771
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39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 39.

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided
for in the financial statements were as follows:

ARG R
RIS H O R SRR SRR B R E

mE :

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREF T

Guarantees given to banks in connection BIRITIEHN BRI TAER
with facilities granted to purchasers MEBHRENER

of the Group's properties (1) 35,685,795 40,093,535
Guarantees given to banks and other BIRTTREMEBELNER

institutions in connection with facilities EFEBABRMENER

granted to related companies (2) 1,044,126 1,426,508

M The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted
by certain banks to the purchasers of the Group’s completed properties
held for sale. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements,
in the case of default on mortgage payments by the purchasers, the
Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage principals
together with any accrued interest and penalties owed by the defaulted
purchasers to those banks.

Under the above arrangement, the related properties were pledged
to the banks as collateral for the mortgage loans, upon default on
mortgage repayments by these purchasers, the banks are entitled to
take over the legal titles and will realise the pledged properties through
open auction.

The Group's guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance and registration
of property ownership certificates to the purchasers, which will
generally be available within one to two years after the purchasers take
possession of the relevant properties.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the year in respect
of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities granted to purchasers
of the Group's completed properties held for sale. The directors of the
Company considered that in the case of default on payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties would be sufficient to repay
the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and
penalty, and therefore no provision has been made in connection with
the guarantees.

218 @R (W) BRAT  202F5K

FEERETROODAERRFHENEINES
FRONIZBRMERMER - REERZHOER
MEREREBOR cEEAEEAZFRITER
REERBEAERENEFARNERESF SR

= En
SR

B LR R ECER T RS RITEAR
BERHERS; WESEHBRERER RER
AR E A AR R 15 A R E RIER
ETEC

FEENERABRBEUEMRBERDAREEZEES
EEYMEMAEERMESCL  ARER-—RE
REAZREEBYMERN —EMENIG -

ERAEERRAFAERBIEHENRTIYEES
RUNEBEREEHNERIRELEEMNEKRIE
K- ARBDEERHMERENN R BBYEN
BIRFEE UEREREEIZIBERER T M EF
BREM R EEE R IR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued) 39. ARG @
) The Group provided guarantees to banks and other institutions in ) AEEE T B QABDNERARIT REMEER
connection with financial facilities granted to the related companies. HER - ARAEER A BEEMRBERELES
The directors of the Company consider that no provision is needed in BAFEMLAEK E—FFBFHNMEE41 0

respect of the guarantees since the fair value is not significant. Further
details are included in note 41.

Except as disclosed above, during the year and up to the end of the R EXPIIEEEN RERKRBEERFER K~NEE
year, neither the Group nor the Company were involved in any litigation, BRARQBMEESFAEANEBMNY B R TREE
arbitration or administrative proceedings, claims or disputes which had EBAEANFEENHFR FHBITHEER PR
a material adverse effect on the Group's financial condition or results of ;AU ©
operation.
40. COMMITMENTS 40. &I
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the AEBRREHAREUTERKIE !

reporting period:

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARHEFTT
Contracted, but no provided for: [ERHESEES T
— Properties under development —FAE Y 22,202,655 19,309,596
— Acquisition of land use right — WK B £ st feF R 287,374 1,434,600
- Capital contribution for acquisition of equity —RAUEREmMEIE
interests 2,274,644 2,274,644
24,764,673 23,018,840
In addition, the Group had the following commitments provided o ExtRBEAEERGERERBE QT
to joint ventures and associates (including the Group's share of BEUTRE (BEAEERGEEMSE EERR
commitments made jointly with other joint venturers), which are not {EH 2 &HE)

included in the above:

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT AR#EF T
Contracted, but no provided for: B BRERE -
— Capital contributions —FE 128,571 128,671
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41. BB 5

EXMBAERS
WUT A5 4R & B P BRI 5 (TIOR3

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(1) Significant related party transactions (1)

The following transactions were carried out with related parties

220

during the reporting period:

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT
Advances from related companies: R A BB ¢
Joint ventures BEDRE 361,697 1,373,304
Associates /N 1,076,004 2,091,412
Repayment of advances from related BERBATEBENR
companies:
Joint ventures BERE 755,265 1,770,137
Associates =N 254,120 1,332,004
Management consulting services AT ARENEEEZARE
provided to:
Joint ventures aEhE 16,463 57,132
Associates BE AT 4,021 50,363
Sales of properties to family members BETESR/ HERRKREN
of certain directors and/or RIEHEHEY =
a controlling shareholder - 19,630
Advances to related parties: FIRA G 75 2R
Joint ventures aEhE 418,043 2,000,279
Associates = NS 1,960 2,925,329
Receipt of advances to related parties: B 1) R Bt 75 B AR
Joint ventures e 1,893,785 1,381,211
Associates = NS 542,039 2,204,088
Property management services provided B AR PR B RG BRI AN
by companies controlled by the ultimate REVRENYEEIRIRT
controlling shareholders 152,798 264,411
Property lease income from a company B AR PR IR BG BRI I RN
controlled by the ultimate controlling NEIFEMEREHRA
shareholders 1,410 1,508

These transactions were carried out in accordance with the
terms and conditions mutually agreed by the parties involved.

SIBER (EE) BRAF  2002FF8
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mt F5eR R M 5E

31 December 2022
20225128318

4. BABAERE @

(2) Other transactions with related parties: (2) HREBMANEMRKS !
2022 2021
20225 20216
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREBEFT
Guarantees provided to related parties: BB A R ERER
Joint ventures HERE 191,493 883,000
Associates A =—l/NCT| 852,633 543,508
(3) Outstanding balances with related parties (3) HABANKRBEGERR
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTT AREBEFT
Due from related parties: FE s B Bt 5 =RIE
Trade-related: B 5 a6
Joint ventures AETE 10,011 5,000
Associates =N = 7,775
Due from related parties: FE R BE B 5 FRIE -
Non-trade-related: B4R :
Joint ventures HETE 4,767,185 6,242,927
Associates HENE] 1,843,925 2,384,004
Due to related parties: P& BB 5 w018
Trade-related: B 5180
Companies controlled by the HERARREFNAR
ultimate shareholders 50,676 19,867
Due to related parties: FEAT RA R 5 =IE
Non-trade-related: EE SRR -
Joint ventures HERE 2,305,307 2,698,875
Associates = lNE| 3,081,484 2,259,600

Balances with the above related parties were unsecured and

repayable on demand.

S AR S RS RR I A IR IR B RRERE
iéo
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 4. FRBAB RS @)
(4) Compensation of key management personnel of (4) AEBTEEERE ASHMN
the Group
2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT
Short-term employee benefits miiEE AT 7,877 12,638
Pension scheme contributions BAREFTEIHR 301 500
Total compensation paid to key AEFEBEEAEZ NG
management personnel 8,178 13,138
42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42, BEHESNEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments RIRSHR > FEEmMTANEEEWNT !

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 December 2022 2022512H31H
Financial assets ETHEE
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
amortised cost FVTPL
BAFEHA
b1l
EREE st
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREETT ARETT ARETT
Trade receivables (note 22) B 5 I ERIE (MfsE22) 50,510 = 50,510
Financial assets included in FENTE IE. A RIS
prepayments, other receivables REMEENSMEE
and other assets (note 24) (M 5E24) 5,692,551 - 5,692,551
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFFNIEmNEREE
profit or loss (note 26) (MFzk26) - 109,314 109,314
Due from related parties (note 41) FEUR BB 5 70 IB (Fd5E41) 6,621,121 = 6,621,121
Restricted cash (note 27) ZIRHIRE (H5E27) 7,899,346 - 7,899,346
Pledged deposits (note 27) BIREFER (5E27) 10,000 = 10,000
Cash and cash equivalents (note 27) IRENIREEHBEY FIst27) 4,410,184 - 4,410,184
24,683,712 109,314 24,793,026
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42. HEHNASHWERMTAR @
(Continued)

Financial liabilities EHaE

Financial

liabilities at

amortised cost

e 88 B s

=M

ERAaE

RMB’000

ARETT

Trade payables (note 28) B EMNMIERENEE (H528) 13,106,078
Financial liabilities included in other payables and STNEMENRIERESER

accruals (note 29) EReEE (MfsE29) 2,328,242

Due to related parties (note 41) FE{T R B 5 7RI (M 5E41) 5,437,467

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 31) st ER{T R HMMER (F5E31) 26,544,820

Lease liabilities (note 15) HESE (f5E15) 14,090

Proceeds from asset-backed securities (note 32) EERFESESOASRIE (FsE32) 5,289,177

Senior notes (note 33) BEEE (fH5E33) 2,516,434

Corporate bonds (note 34) NEMES (MIsE34) 3,465,321

58,701,629
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42. HEHNASHWERMTAR @
(Continued)
31 December 2021 2021812831H
Financial assets ETHEE
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
amortised cost FVTPL Total
R R A BNFEETA
FEN BmmN
ETHMEE ETHMEE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBFT AREBFT
Trade receivables (note 22) B 5 rEIERIE (MfsE22) 53,467 - 53,467
Financial assets included in FENTE RIE. AR EIE
prepayments, other receivables REMEENSMEE
and other assets (note 24) (F5E24) 8,231,149 - 8,231,149
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFFNIEmNEREE
profit or loss (note 26) (MFzk26) - 183,876 183,876
Due from related parties (note 41) FEUR BB 5 70 IE (Fd5E41) 8,639,706 - 8,639,706
Restricted cash (note 27) ZIRHIRE (H5E27) 7,656,569 - 7,656,569
Pledged deposits (note 27) BIREFER (5E27) 850,000 - 850,000
Cash and cash equivalents (note 27) IRENIREEHEY FTsF27) 11,221,917 - 11,221,917
36,652,808 183,876 36,836,684
Financial liabilities EREaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
FR AR EE A AR
FEH
ZRAaE
RMB'000
AREFT
Trade payables (note 28) B ENMIERENRE (HEE28) 13,603,572
Financial liabilities included in other payables and SENEMENRIEBELESERZ
accruals (note 29) EReEE (MfsE29) 2,346,383
Due to related parties (note 41) FE{T R B 75 7RI (M 5E41) 4,978,342
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 31) st E2IRTT R E &k (MF5E31) 36,163,523
Lease liabilities (note 15) HE&aE (MEs) 16,951
Proceeds from asset-backed securities (note 32) BEERFESHESOASHIE (fFsE32) 5,319,575
Senior notes (note 33) BEREE (f5E33) 4,541,066
Corporate bonds (note 34) NEMES (MfsE34) 6,770,042
73,739,454
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43. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

43.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mt F5eR R M 5E

31 December 2022
20225128318

EMTANAFERAFEER

FEMTHIA GREERATESEEAENSRT
AR BEREERATEOT

Carrying amounts Fair values
fRmEfE ATE

2022 2021 2022 2021
20225 20215 20226 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETT

Financial assets EHEE
Financial assets at fair value BAFESNBGNEHEE

through profit or loss (note 26) (M 5E26) 109,314 183,876 109,314 183,876
Financial liabilities THEaE
Interest-bearing bank and ERTRHEMER

other borrowings (note 31) (MzE31) 26,544,820 36,163,523 26,557,790 36,214,082
Proceeds from asset-backed AEMEESESNREIE

securities (note 32) (FEE32) 5,289,177 5,319,575 5,376,360 5,219,573
Senior notes (note 33) BEEE (H533) 2,516,434 4,541,066 1,703,698 3,985,812
Corporate bonds (note 34) REES (Hi5k34) 3,465,321 6,770,042 3,292,285 6,446,980

37,815,752 52,794,206 36,930,133 51,866,447

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, restricted cash, trade receivables, trade
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, and amounts due from/to related companies approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

EEEEETHE REARESEY BHEAE
TRBRHRE BEZENRIE - BZEARIE 5
ABNORE HthERREREMEENEREE
STAHMBENRIERESERNEREE  LIRE
W/ AR AR REN AT EREREERES
BAEBEDHNRZETABRRIE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

43.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group's finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager
reports directly to the chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.
The valuation results are discussed with the audit committee twice a
year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by financial institutions in Mainland
China. The Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted
investments by using a discounted cash flow valuation model based on
the market interest rates of instruments with similar terms and risks.

The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
certain proceeds from asset-backed securities have been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group's own non-performance risk for interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2022 was assessed to be
insignificant.

The fair values of certain proceeds from asset-backed securities,
corporate bonds and senior notes are based on quoted market prices.

226 &MEER (GEM) BRAE  202FFH

43.

ETMTANAFERAFEER @

FEENPYHHRPIEYHEERE A ER TSR
TARTENENBERLERF MHEEERZAY
HREER NEREAH MBHMIOTEMIA
BEENEIHER TEEGHEMANIEHAYE-
HMERVEBEEZIME - GEGRHAELZE
EEFETM R MUFRBRFEEMBHHER -

THEERBENATENBERZZH RBIER
HERIN BRIRZPZTIENATZEFRARKR DL
TRARGSRATENS ERERR

FERRENRIFLTRE MATEAMIRTEST
2BMER AEREZRAFHEMUFRKARZ
TAZzHBHE CRKRREREMERE
ZEFLHREZAFE.

FERRTAREMEDRARE TEERFESEESNAR
BREBNAFENEBBAERERESRERIRRE
AAREBEUER - ERARABKG TERPRZT
BRFEETMIRE - AEER20225F1283188
B ERTREMERNATENRRIETE S
TEKe

ETEERTRESESHNAERE - REESFKE
EEBENATEDIETHRESE -



43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mt F5eR R M 5E

31 December 2022
20225128318

43. THMITANAFERAFEER @

DT ERER
TRITAEREMTENATESEER !
BATEFENEE !

Fair value measurement using

EANTREMENATENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EETEL EAAHE EAFTER
HRE BAYE WAYE
(F—#) (€-pmk ) (B=®) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT NS

As at 31 December 2022

Financial assets at fair value

12022512H318

BATESANEENEREE

through profit or loss 2,725 106,589 - 109,314
As at 31 December 2021 20214128318
Financial assets at fair value BRATEFNERNEREE

through profit or loss 22457 161,419 - 183,876
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

DT ERER (B
FURBEAFENER:

Fair value measurement using

ERUTEERENATENE

43. THMITANAFERAFEER @

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EEmEL BEAAHE BAFUHZR

BB WAYE WAYE
(B—#R) (€t ) (B=#) s
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT N ARETFT ARETFT

As at 31 December 2022 12022128310
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t 8 $R1T R E i &= = 26,557,790 = 26,557,790
Proceeds from asset-backed securities BENBESESHMENE 1,687,955 3,688,405 = 5,376,360
Senior notes BERE 1,703,698 - - 1,703,698
Corporate bonds REEF 3,292,285 - - 3,292,285
6,683,938 30,246,195 - 36,930,133
As at 31 December 2021 12021128318

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t 83817 X E MR - 36,214,082 - 36,214,082
Proceeds from asset-backed securities BENHESESHNMENE 1,603,631 3,615,942 - 5219573
Senior notes BRERE 3,985,812 - - 3,985,812
Corporate bonds REES 6,446,980 - - 6,446,980
12,036,423 39,830,024 - 51,866,447
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44,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments mainly include cash and
bank balances, restricted cash, trade receivables, and trade and other
payables, which arise directly from its operations. The Group has other
financial assets and liabilities such as interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, senior notes, corporate notes, financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss, amounts with related companies and other
receivables. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Generally,
the Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk management.
The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for
trading purposes. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

(@) Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's bank and other borrowings
set out in note 31. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge interest rate risk. The Group manages its
interest cost using variable rate bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2022, if the interest rate of bank borrowings
had increased/decreased by 1% and all other variables held
constant, profit before tax for the year of the Group would have
decreased/increased by approximately RMB14,787,000 (2021:
RMB17,513,000).

44,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mt F5eR R M 5E

31 December 2022
20225128318

MEEEREIEERREER

FEENTIETHRTIATZORCEERELENR
ERIBITESH ZBRHIREE BSRBRREUKRES
REMEMHRE - cEREFHMNEMEERARE
Mt BIRITREMER S BERE  RBESF BRQ
TEFABENERIE BARATDMEREME
WHRE ZETMTANTIEZENRAREERNL
EEEHET-

REAEBESRTENEIZRAB AT KRR IMNE
B~ EERBKEKABHEEAR BE AEETA
BEEFESIARTHRE REBKRFHEHET
FRGARNTEESMIA -EFEERHILRRE
ZRERNEER ARBRBMN T -

(@) FIEEER
7< £ W E BB 09 TR FU K BB LR = B SR I3
PR 52 2 [ $RAT e EL At £ 30 B o < S [ 3 4
{55 A7 46 S B T L S ) 32 L e o A< £ 4
FRRITEREREN B

1220228128310 WEFMBEMEBERTT
BIERTRITERNFE EFTR1% B

EERERBNBRREDEF R IENHAR
#14,787,00070 (20214F : AR #17,513,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Foreign currency risk (b)  SMEE = Bz

FEBEEGEXZEERB ZEREBIEESL
BAEENRERASEEMURBILEE-
WENGEUETFHE INERRBRBESIE
K Eo

44, BHERAGEEBEREEK @

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
mainly arise from the Group's cash and cash equivalents and
senior notes. The currency in which they are denominated is USS.
There is no significant impact on foreign currency risk.

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) Increase/
Uss$ or in profit (decrease)
HK$/RMB rate before tax in equity
ExH BT
AR
BELEH B #52 A e F) HEx
(F ) ®wm, G wm, G
% RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT
31 December 2022 2022%12H31H
If the RMB weakens MARERETRZE
against USS (5) (124,130) (124,130)
If the RMB strengthens MARBERETHE
against USS 5 124,130 124,130
If the RMB weakens MARERETEZE
against HKS (5) 75 (75)
If the RMB strengthens HARBRATHE
against HK'$ 5 (75) 75
31 December 2021 20214R12831H
If the RMB weakens HARBRETEE
against USS (5) (258,613) (258,613)
If the RMB strengthens MARBRESHAE
against USS 5 258,613 258,613
If the RMB weakens HARBRATEE
against HKS (5) 4,886 (4,886)
If the RMB strengthens MARBRETHE
against HK $ 5 (4,886) 4,886
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

()

Credit risk

The Group divides financial instruments on the basis of shared
credit risk characteristics, such as instrument type and credit
risk ratings for the purpose of determining significant increases
in credit risk and calculation of impairment. To manage risk
arising from trade receivables, the Group has policies in place to
ensure that credit terms are made only to counterparties with an
appropriate credit history and management performs ongoing
credit evaluations of the Group's counterparties. The credit
period granted to the customers is generally six months and the
credit quality of these customers is assessed, taking into account
their financial position, past experience and other factors. The
Group also has other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue receivables. In
addition, the Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of
trade receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

Management makes periodic collective assessments for financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets and amounts due from related parties as well as individual
assessments on the recoverability of other receivables and
amounts due from related parties based on historical settlement
records and past experience. The Group classified financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets and
amounts due from related parties in Stage 1 and continuously
monitored their credit risk. The directors of the Company believe
that there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group's
outstanding balance of financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets and amounts due from related
parties.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 December 2022. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the
exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44,

()

FAF5 SRR Y 5

31 December 2022
20225128318

MEBEEEEBRKREBER @)

EE R

FERERARGERBS R (BN T AEE
REERRSEHR HEMIBEETOE NE
EEERBRREEINRAERE - nEEES
FEUCRUIE E £ B LR A B B E R TR
ERNABBEEFEELNEFARLEER
BEEEREAERNHFHHEETEET
B REFERERNEER—RAXNER 2
ZEBPHNEEHEBEEEBHM BN B
FEBAREMEEMETIE - FEETFEH
EHMEIFR N UEFREBRETH LR
HARE WA IR © I 5h > RE B E i 5T B 5 FE IR
TRIRRYPI U O] 28 - DU R BL A PI Uk [ = B8 5t
REENEHEBE cEBTESEEPHE
ERE BEEERBINEABHFAIAE
Fo

EIRE EHRH BT A TR FRIE ~ Eth AW IE R
HihBEN R EWRREERARIENSMEEFE
BRST M WRBNEEECHE B TEEEH
1HFE SRR TR e P U R Bk 75 R TR B BT U [B1 14 3
TEBNME - AEREEFE —MRHESATEN
TRIR ~ LA W R TR e ELth B 7 DA 7 W Bt
ARIENTMEEETHE UREENEE
ERE -ARBESRR FEBFAENR
TH ~ ELh S W IR e B 2 LUK FE R R Bk 75
MENEREEZ REFEHRAE LT BEFE
BEXREERR-

REEERFREE
TREHR2022F 12831 HNERETEREE
BENEEEEZRREEERAR (FZERA
HEMN BRIFEHMER T EETE IR ER AL
AN BRI R B B ERIR) WU B R BEER
DE-FMRYMNEHEESHEENEERRER
SRERGONEERR-
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B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44, A EBEEHERBE @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued) (0 EEREE @&
As at 31 December 2022 20225128318

12-month

ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1288 &Y BEFEHMNEREEHE
BEHEE

B#E Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
R FRRE FERE [y 3 st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AEBTT AE%®TR ARETRT ARETRT AEKTR

Trade receivables* & 5 W FnE - - - 50,510 50,510
Financial assets included in 5t \TB{J FUB R E A1 EUFIERY
prepayments and other ~ £EIEE

receivables
~Normal** — & 5,692,551 - - - 5692551
Due from related parties  FEUR B 5 FE 6,621,121 - - - 6,621,121
Financial assets at fair value ZATEFNBENERHEE

through profit or loss 109,314 - - - 109,314
Restricted cash ZRERE
~Not yet past due — R K5 HA 7,899,346 - - - 7,899,346
Pledged deposits BIREER
-Not yet past due — R EH 10,000 - - - 10,000
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEEY
-Not yet past due e 4,410,184 = = = 4,410,184

24,742,516 = = 50,510 24,793,026
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44, A EBEEHERBE @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

()

Credit risk (Continued) « EERE @
As at 31 December 2021 720215128318
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
2R BEGEPNEREESE
BHEE
S Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—PEE BTMERR EME fBEA % st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETH AREBTr ARETRT ARETR ARETR
Trade receivables* B A EE - - - 53,467 53467
Financial assets included in - st \TBAT R IE R MW FIEN
prepayments and other ~ SRIEE
receivables
-Normal** —EE* 8,231,149 - - - 8,231,149
Due from related parties  FEURRAHE 5 3008 8,639,706 - - - 8,639,706
Financial assets at fair value BATEFNBENERHEE
through profit or loss 183,876 - - - 183876
Restricted cash ZRFRE
-Not yet past due e 7,656,569 - - - 7,656,569
Pledged deposits BIREER
~Not yet past due — iR K5 850,000 - - - 850,000
Cash and cash equivalents IRENBEEEY
~Not yet past due —iE AR E 11,221,917 - - - 1121917
36,783,217 - - 53,467 36,836,684
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * AEBMBERBHEEFENREENER
approach for impairment, information based on the expected 1A AR E 5 U IE R B #5 3R R T 5522
credit losses is disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements. KR -UEEEETNEERMR-
There is no significant concentration of credit risk.
®* The credit quality of the financial assets included in o MErABMRIE - EMtERREREME E
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is considered NemEEr®Eaill TEENBREYSD
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no MTPEEHMEENEERBABIEM E
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant EEEREERMER]-
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Liquidity risk d) REEERRE
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between AEENBERABEBERTRBITREME
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of interest- T REEF EAERBAREERFRSES
bearing bank and other borrowings, corporate bonds, senior B EREERRERETEAE T2 ENTF
notes and proceeds from asset-backed securities. Cash flows are o REMPFERYEERERE

being closely monitored on an ongoing basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44, BERAGEEBIZEREE (&)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d)

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

nEETEE (8
FEBRNBSHRREAARMBEOIRAENS
BEENESRBEROT

Less than 3to 12 Over 1
On demand 3 months months year Total
=F
BER ZERMUA +-f@A —FENE Mt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREBTR AREFR ARETR ARETR®
31 December 2022: 2022128318 :
Trade payables BRRENHIE 13,106,078 - - - 13,106,078
Other payables HitE I Ha 2,328,242 - - = 2,328,242
Due to related parties EREESTE 5,437,467 = = = 5,437,467
Lease liabilities HEEE - 409 13,191 2,942 16,542
Interest-bearing bank and 5t S 8R1T M E &R
other borrowings - 1,616,029 10,509,405 16,437,035 28,562,469
Proceeds from asset-backed ZEILIFEHHNFEHIE
securities - 84,791 253,339 7,629,789 7,967,919
Senior notes BRER - 81,486 499,709 2,170,866 2,752,061
Corporate bonds REES - - 789,904 3,130,924 3,920,828
Guarantees given to banks  [EISE1T M ELAL B IEH Y
and other institutionsin -~ BREARTEBH AT
connection with facilities ~ BRERIIER
granted to related
companies 1,044,126 - - - 1,044,126
21,915,913 1,782,715 12,065,548 29,371,556 65,135,732
31 December 2021: 20215E12A318 ¢
Trade payables BRREATIE 13,603,572 - - - 13603572
Other payables HEtnER A 2,346,383 - - - 2,346,383
Due to related parties EEESTEB 4,978,342 - - - 4,978,342
Lease liabilities HEAE - 4,525 9,711 5814 20,050
Interest-bearing bank and 5t S ER1T M E AR
other borrowings - 919,097 10,581,133 29,116,959 40,617,189
Proceeds from asset-backed ZEILIFEHHNAEHIE
securities - 81,167 244,399 7,846,014 8,171,580
Senior notes BRER - 1,130,897 1,681,072 2,136,497 4,948,466
Corporate bonds REES - - 2,837,865 4,502,900 7,340,765
Guarantees given to banks  [EISE1T M EL AU B
and other institutions in -~ BRI PRI AR BENIER
connection with facilities
granted to related
companies 1,426,508 - - - 1,426,508
22,354,805 2,135,686 15,354,180 43,608,184 83,452,855
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a net gearing ratio, which is
based on total indebtedness less cash and bank balances divided
by total equity at the end of the year and multiplied by 100%.
Total indebtedness represents total interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, corporate bonds and senior notes. The net
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as
follows:

44,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAF5 SRR Y 5

31 December 2022
20225128318

MEBEEEEBRKREBER @)

(e)

BEAREE
FEHEAEENTIEERARESIERTE
KERNENTHEFBRNERLE DIZHH
EHUWERREERAIE-

FEEGRECER NS EEERAEASE
FEB - RERFABEERERER ~EENE
ABIRNFTRENRE - RERREAHET
ke

FEERKBEEERILEE EBERERRE
R SRITAEBR » PR LS SR A 2 48 B8 78 3R LL100% 5T
H) REZER - EFHREEIES BIRITRHEM
B AR EFREBEARBEZRE - NESEH
HREERFNEESRBLERNT

2022 2021

20225 20214

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARETT AREF T

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5T B R1T R L& 26,544,820 36,163,523
Proceeds from asset-backed securities BERFESESNEHRE 5,289,177 5,319,575
Corporate bonds RNEMES 3,465,321 6,770,042
Senior notes BRER 2,516,434 4,541,066
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IRENIRESEEY (4,410,184) (11,221,917)
Restricted cash ZIRHIRE (7,899,346) (7,656,569)
Pledged deposits BIRHER (10,000) (850,000)

Net debt B85 5E 25,496,222 33,065,720
Total equity 1w AE AR 35,583,038 37,571,705
Net gearing ratio BESEE 72% 88%

45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No information is received after the reporting period about conditions
that existed at the end of the reporting period.

45.

wmE

HEREMH

BERRSHREEARN RS HREFENRMEN

B o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FEFR R Ffd oE

31 December 2022

20225128318

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 46.

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

ERBHRBRRR

REBEPERBEMARBDYBRARNERLNT !

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B ARNKRE 1 ]
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 1 1
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Cash and cash equivalents HENRSEEY 198 98,792
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets FENRIE. EfENEHEREMmEE 418 383
Due from subsidiaries FE UL B A B 7R I8 2,622,655 3,048,767
Total current assets REEEAE 2,623,271 3,147,942
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENBE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings HEIRTT R EMER 45,271 126,875
Senior notes BRER = 41,606
Other payables and accruals HhEMRIBERESE R 413 379
Total current liabilities mEaEERE 45,684 168,860
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEERE 2,577,587 2,979,082
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEMLRERTBAR 2,577,588 2,979,083
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERsasE
Senior notes BERE 2,075,884 1,891,058
Total non-current liabilities ERBEELR%E 2,075,884 1,891,058
Net assets HEFE 501,704 1,088,025
EQUITY g
Share capital it 35,095 35,095
Reserves (G 466,609 1,052,930
Total equity 1 m AR EE 501,704 1,088,025
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2022

2022412831H

46. ZRTBHIMFFAKRR (@)

COMPANY (Continued)
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RABINREEREZDT -
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
(S R iRE R @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AT NS AREFTT AEREFT
Balance at 31 December 2020 and 2020128318 K
1 January 2021 202151 B HIVAE B 35,005 2,297,175 (69,088) 2,263,182
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERNEEGIEAHE - - (82,946) (82,946)
Dividends and distributions BERDIK - (1,092,211) - (1,092,211)
Balance at 31 December 2021 1202112831 B &R 35,095 1,204,964 (152,034) 1,088,025
Balance at 31 December 2021 and K221 128318 R
1 January 2022 2025181 HHEER 35,095 1,204,964 (152,034) 1,088,025
Total comprehensive loss for the year FNLEGEEE = = (60,441) (60,441)
Dividends and distributions BERDIK - (525,880 - (525,880)
Balance at 31 December 2022 1202212831 B &R 35,095 679,084 (212,475) 501,704

47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

board of directors on 30 March 2023.

47. HLEMEHRR

PR2023F3 A30HM B R REESETHELRET

o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEBE

el ER

For the year ended 31 December

HET-A=+-HLEE

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
2022% 20214 20204 20194 20185
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT AREFTT AEEFTT ARETT AR®TT
Revenue WA 35,318,003 40,025,826 34,875,174 25,963,108 15,971,183
Cost of sales HERA (30,138,519) (32,278,375) (27,162,266) (20,300,888) (11,145,666)
Gross profit e 5,179,484 7,747,451 7,712,908 5,662,220 4825517
Other income and gains HAU AR e & 60,041 183,846 436,406 187,641 68,577
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERS (931,729) (1,449,318) (1,152,834) (771,495) (519,332)
Administrative expenses THHE® (853,707) (1,195415) (1,196,128) (988,052) (795,006)
Finance Income WA 91,290 183,478 95,302 100,431 213893
Finance costs E=)® (236,100) (349,885) (525,246) (494,863) (571,509)
Other expenses HitBE (191,638) (44,875) (80,592) (49,065) (101,646)
Fair value gains on investment properties R B XA T EWRE 844,574 656,986 437,006 480,869 616,536
Fair value gains or loss from financial assets /A P&t AR & AIEEE
at fair value through profit or loss BENATERGZLEHE (14,168) (6,085) 77) (266) 3,102
Share of profits and losses of: L TR ARG RERE
Joint ventures BElE (732,632) 98,366 992,533 510,165 (24121)
Associates i=UNC| 491,020 641,082 (182,519) (68,769) (65,674)
Profit before tax g AR 3,706,435 6,465,631 6,536,759 4568816 3,650,337
Income tax expense liicidiab3 (1,623,285) (2,771,936) (2,717,686) (1,878.828) (1,350,460)
Profit for the year FRER 2,083,150 3,693,695 3,819,073 2,689,988 2,299,877
Attributable to: UTE AR :
Owners of the parent ISYN=IE/Z=PN 1,705,026 3,274,774 3,127,526 2,508,068 2,007,939
Non-controlling interests FERER 378,124 418,921 691,547 181,920 291,938
2,083,150 3,693,695 3819073 2,689,988 2,299,877
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBEE
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 8B E -BERER
As at 31 December
®+ZB=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20224 20214 20205 20195 20185
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT NS ANEEFT AREFT ARETFT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE 29,886,434 28,172,664 23,216,150 19,698,717 18,381,164
Current assets REEE 131,789,119 163,474,648 162,445,338 129,645,846 102,231,219
Total assets BERE 161,675,553 191,647,312 185,661,488 149,344,563 120,612,383
Equity and liabilities ‘RERER
Total equity R 35,583,038 37,571,705 36,112,406 21,379,202 17,532,190
Non-current liabilities FrEasd 28,161,764 38,628,520 36,938,270 32,676,990 22,600,859
Current liabilities nEas 97,930,751 115,447,087 112,610,812 95,288,371 80,479,334
Total liabilities BREE 126,092,515 154,075,607 149,549,082 127,965,361 103,080,193
Total equity and liabilities EERERAE 161,675,553 191,647,312 185,661,488 149,344,563 120,612,383
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
ITERBEVMEFE

Type of Total GFA
Project Properties City Address (sq.m.) Tenure Status
HEEER
BH MEEE o stk (EAK) HR DN
1. Beijing Radiance Plaza Office Beijing Qiyang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC 102975  Medium term lease Completed
TREBAE BN IR FEERTHBERMBRE FHEE BT
2. Beijing Radiance Park 18 Office Beijing No. 1 East Fourth Ring South Road, Beijing, 175418  Medium term lease Completed
the PRC
TR&ER\E YN IR FELRTRORFERE S FHEE BET
3. Chongging Jinhui Plaza Commercial Chongging No.13 Fenglin Road, Nan'an District, Chongging, 120,846  Medium term lease Completed
the PRC
EFTRES EE g HEEETRFRRBRR FHEE BT
4. Jinhui City Phase IV (Bronze Road) Commercial Chongging No.16 Nanbin Road, Nan'an District, Chongqing, 72,854 Medium term lease Completed
the PRC
SEBHMB=E \AxE) EES EL] FEEETHFEHERI6SR FHEE BT
5. Xi'an Jinhui Global Plaza (Mall) Shopping mall - Xi‘an No. 855 Yanta South Road, Yanta District, Xi‘an 124,336 Medium term lease Completed
City, Shaanxi Province, the PRC
AZEBRRES (FH) BYBS BZ FERALAERTELEEERRSH FHEE BET
6. Jinhui Building (International Plaza) Office Xi‘an No. 22 of Fenghui South Road North Section, 48,685 Medium term lease Completed
Lianhu District, Xi'an City, Shaanxi Province,
the PRC
SBAE ERES) BN BZ TERFEEREZHESE S ERRIERLR FHEE BT
7. Chuangzhi Building Commercial Xi‘an No.1 Tuanjie South Road, Lianhu District, Xi‘an 20,497 Medium term lease Completed
City, Shaanxi Province, the PRC
ElE=pNE] [EES BZ HERALAEZTENERERHEITR FHEE BET
8. Xi'an Jinhui Global Plaza (Block B) Office Xi‘an No. 889 of Jinhutuo Second Road, Yanta 27,905  Medium term lease Completed
District, Xi'an City, Shaanxi Province, the PRC
FEZEBIRRES B RN RS HERALRERTEEESIEE 8895 FHEE BT
9. Fuzhou Jinhui Mansion Commercial Fuzhou No. 492 Hualin Road, Jin‘an District, Fuzhou City, 16,760 Medium term lease Completed
Fujian Province, the PRC
BNEEBAE EES & TEEEEEMNTEREEMBI2R FHEE BT
10.  Shanghai Jingang Commercial Plaza Commercial Shanghai No. 22 Kangnaixin Road, Pudong District, 30,622 Medium term lease Completed
Shanghai, the PRC
LESEEEES EES i FE T RRNRAENE N BRLR FHEE BET
11. Suzhou Qianwan Commercial Center Commercial Suzhou No. 9 Sangyuan Road, Hugiu District, Suzhou 36,464  Medium term lease Completed
City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
FNEEBERD RS B FEDIE & BN TR EBRERIR hETEE BHET
12, Xi'an Jinhui World City Block G Commercial Xi‘an No.1201 Yanta South Road, Yanta 15,074  Medium term lease Completed
District, Xi'an City, Shaannxi Province, the PRC
AR E YR RCR EES BZ FERFELREZTREEEERE2015% FHEE B#ET
13, Chongging Jinhui City Phase V Office Chongging No.19 Nanbin Road, Nan'an District, Chongging, 69,530 Medium term lease Held for future
the PRC development
BEESEHRH_Z YN BE HEEETRRERERIOR FHEE RERRAEE
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